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March

e The Group expanded into the market of intelligence and
digitization of two-wheeled vehicles, by entering into
cooperation with a renowned domestic brand, to provide
high-end solutions for dashboards of electric bikes.

June

e The Group engaged deeply in the market of commercial
PDA by entering into strategic co-operation with a
renowned brand in the field, aiming to provide one-stop
customization services to customers.

e With its innovative design and flawless customer
experience offered, a neck wearable product designed
and manufactured by the Group won the Red Dot CGD
Design Award.

July

e The Group entered the terminal field specialized in
measurement and control, and provided customers with
PDAs dedicated for surveying and mapping.

August

e The Group launched its industry-leading AR binocular
glasses, with successful application on the “5G
Sterilization Robots”, a COVID-19 precautionary black
technology solution.

e Bulk production of Push-to-Talk over Cellular products
developed by the Group for a world-leading Push-to-
Talk manufacturer.

September

e The Group entered into co-operation with a mobile
phone brand in Taiwan, to provide them with custom-
made mobile phone services.

e The industry-leading high-end XR BOX product
manufactured by the Group was officially announced.
With its comprehensive compatibility with the
mainstream XR devices on the market, the product has
become the first choice for numerous mainstream XR
enterprises.

October

e The Group engaged deeply in the market of law
enforcement recording equipment, by co-operating
with two renowned domestic brand customers on law
enforcement equipment products.

e A neck wearable product designed and manufactured
by the Group won the CES 2022 Innovation Awards.
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November

The Group attended the product launch event of the
new Wi-Fi 6+ Router at the E-surfing Smart Ecosystem
EXPO 2021 along with various industry leaders.

Shanghai Simcom and Shanghai Sunrise Simcom
within the Group were both accredited with the title of
“National High-Tech Enterprise”.

December

Successful bulk production of a new industrial AR
glasses designed and manufactured by the Group for
a world-leading industrial AR brand enterprise, the
product drew excellent comments from the market.

The Group was singled out as an enterprise with
“Outstanding AR Innovative Application of the Year” by
“ARinChina”, a media platform.

The Group established the product line of financial
smart devices during the second half of 2021, and
entered into strategic co-operation with renowned
foreign and domestic leading enterprises in the field of
financial retail smart products, bringing forth prospects
worth looking forward to.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM
Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group achieved a loss attributable to owners of the
Company from continuing operations of HK$236.6 million (2020:
HK$21.2 million). The basic loss per share from continuing operations
was HK10.21 cents (2020: HKO.89 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to

shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BEHR

AARREBRABMZEEBERAR ([ARA])
Ex(#2x)g(EFg)REAAF MEHK
BRR(GHEIAEEDBE_T_—F1+_A
=T -RAEFE(XRFE]) 22 FEERS -

AEE  AEESSHECEEFZAQR
B A JEHE1E 5236,600,000/8 7T (Z T =
T4 21,200,0007T) © AFEEHELEE
B2 BREREERALI0 2B IM(Z BT :
0.897811L) °

RERE
#ETRAAADTRE (TR ERREA
R RIS o



ﬂs_

Chairman’s Statement
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In the past two years, the handset terminal supply chain was first hit
by shortage of semiconductors, followed by the COVID-19 pandemic
affecting the production processes of various materials, resulting in
shortage of various other components on top of semiconductors in
general. As a result, delivery took more time and prices climbed in
general, bringing unprecedented difficulties to the 3C electronic product
manufacturing industry. On the other hand, the Group was unable to
proceed smoothly with overseas business expansion as scheduled. The
Group’s business continued to move forward amid these difficulties.
In 2021, the Group recorded sales revenue of HK$724.7 million from
continuing operations, a 2.0% growth year-on-year. Gross profit was
HK$21.5 million, a 80.7% decline year-on-year. In 2021, general
price increases, insufficient supply and even stockouts of a series of
components, particularly semiconductors, posed tremendous pressure

and impacts on the cost of and shipments by the Group’s business.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERB|E

The Group has invested heavily in retaining existing employees and
recruiting experienced and outstanding talent in the industry and
substantial manpower has been allocated to functions from marketing
to research and development (R&D). Together with the fact that the
Chinese government’s pandemic-related preferential policies have
ended in 2021, the Group’s staff costs increased significantly against
the same period last year. However, the Group achieved remarkable
results in expanding its customer base during the reporting period,
securing new customers in the fields of operators, smart POS and two-
wheeled electric vehicles, founding a solid foundation to grow business
in 2022 and beyond.

Handsets and 10T terminals business

In 2021, this business segment achieved revenue of HK$567.6 million,
a 3.2% decrease against the same period last year. Gross loss was
HK$38.5 million, a 162.6% decrease as compared to last year. Due to
tense Sino-US relations and the pandemic prevailing overseas, most
of the shipments to overseas customers during the reporting period
was made for orders not executed or fulfilled in the previous year, and
growth of new overseas orders was slow. At the same time, factors such
as the pandemic affected existing customers’ own sales hence demands
from them fell short of expectation, and orders from some customers
actually fell like off the cliff. In addition, due to the shortage of supply
of semiconductors and other components, some existing orders could
not be delivered as scheduled. Although the Group secured new
contracts of considerable amounts during the reporting period, due to
the comparatively long R&D and certification cycles of the industry’s
end-user ODMs, mass production and shipment stage has not yet been
achieved in 2021, and thus the Group could not complete its shipments
very tasks in 2021. In addition, with prices of components up across
the board and the delayed delivery of normal supply cycle, the Group
needed to procure some major components in the spot market at high
prices, which resulted in a sharp increase in costs and a marked decline

in gross profit in 2021 compared with 2020.
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The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis at the end
of the reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete and/or slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in production or sale. The management estimates the net realisable
value for such finished goods and raw materials primarily based on the
latest selling and purchase prices and current market conditions. If the
market condition was to deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable
value for such finished goods and raw materials, additional allowances
may be required. During the Year, one-off allowance of inventories of
HK$48,335,000 was charged to profit or loss, which dragged gross
profit and gross profit margin down further. Excluding the provision, the

segment would have a 1.7% gross profit margin.

During the reporting period, the Group recruited a large number of
outstanding experienced marketing, R&D and management talent,
and made technological and market breakthroughs in the fields of
routers, smart POS, the central control of two-wheeled electric vehicles
and many other aspects. The new talent also brought in advanced

management concepts and models.

In 2022, the Group’s focus is to accelerate R&D, ensure production
and delivery and turn framework contracts signed in 2021 into sales
orders and complete shipments. Semiconductor supply remains an
uncertain factor affecting whether the Group could meet shipment
targets for the year 2022. The rising prices of components will also
pose great pressure on the Group in cost control. As for R&D, the
Group will focus on generalization of the semiconductor platform,
striving to replace imported semiconductors and other components
with domestic products, strengthen standardization and generalization
of key equipment, strengthen resources reserve of suppliers to achieve
mass procurement and reduce spot procurement, all for minimizing
the impact of various unfavorable factors along the supply chain on
shipments, with a view to lowering costs notably and realize delivery

targets.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERB|E

Electronics manufacturing services business

The electronics manufacturing services business (EMS) recorded
revenue of HK$95.1 million in 2021, an increase of 27.0% over the
same period in 2020. Gross profit was HK$2.7 million, a 2.1% decrease

year-on-year.

During 2021, the Group’s factories in the Mainland resumed normal
production and with customers and processed products more
diversified, revenue of the business segment increased relative to
the same period last year. At the same time, the increase in orders
translated into pressure on production capacity and more complex
processing procedures, and as manual operations make up a large part
of the production process, work efficiency was on the low side. In view
of this, the Group will continue to increase investment in digitalization
and intelligence deployment in its production operations, so as to
reduce the proportion of labor costs in total costs, while working hard
to reduce overall costs, actively improve efficiency and enhance overall

product quality and offer better service to customers.

Internet of things system and online-to-offline business

The Group entered into an agreement to dispose of its 98.7% equity
interest in Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited on 23 March 2021 and the
transaction was completed on 6 April 2021, marking the complete exit
of all of the offline business from this segment. Subsequently, the Group
will combine the 10T business with the Handsets and 10T terminals
business segment, and to provide customers with “cloud+terminal” one-

stop solutions.
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Property management

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of property
management was mainly derived from the leasing of SIM Technology
Building Block A and Block B in Shanghai, factory units in Shanghai
and Shenyang and commercial properties in Shenyang. Total area
of approximately 88,000 square meters was leased out. To utilize
our resources more effectively, the Group is developing the property
management business by leasing out the spare space at factories and

other buildings.

The revenue of property management for the year 2021 was amounted
to HK$62.0 million (2020: HK$49.3 million) with a gross profit margin of
92.5% (2020: 95.5%).

Prospects

The Group’s biggest shortfall currently lies in its supply chain. The
decline in supply chain capability in the past few years has led to a
slump in gross profit of the Group. Therefore, in 2022, the Group’s
priorities are to reduce cost and to guarantee delivery. It will also
implement integrated supply chain reform, strengthen standardized
management of materials, improve material reusability and lower
procurement costs. On the production capacity front, the Tongcheng
factory was completed and put into operation in the second half of
2021, and the Group has plan to establish a new production base
in Dongguan. It will have production capacity sufficient for ensuring
delivery volume several times higher than before in 2022 and beyond.
Regarding the next stage of development, the Group will follow the
Pareto Optimality concept in resource allocation and strengthen four
“focuses”: focus on a few key semiconductor platforms, focus on
certain market segments, focus on top customers and focus on certain
blockbuster products. The Group believes by doing so it will see marked
improvement in operational efficiency. In addition, the Group will
increase investment in R&D of own products and general semiconductor

platforms and strive to open up more new markets.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Year 2022 will probably be the most critical year in the Group’s
history. The management will adhere to the operating philosophy
of “strengthening management, reducing costs, ensuring delivery
and making up for shortcomings” and adopt a united and pragmatic
approach in leading the Group out of present difficulties and turn

around to profit as soon as possible.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation
to all members of the management and the employees for their efforts
and dedication throughout the Year. Finally, | would like to thank the
financial institutions, Shareholders and investors for their continuous

support and confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 April 2022
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from handsets
and 10T terminals business and EMS business (“Core Business”)
increased by 0.3% to HK$662.7 million (2020: HK$661.0 million). The
revenue from property management (“Non-core Business”) increased
by 25.8% to HK$62.0 million in 2021 as compared with that in 2020
(2020: HK$49.3 million). The total revenue of the Group for the Year,
included revenue of Core Business and Non-core Business amounted to
HK$724.7 million (2020: HK$710.3 million).

The gross loss for Core Business of the Group for the Year was HK$35.8
million (2020: gross profit HK$64.3 million). The gross loss margin for
Core Business was 5.4% (2020: gross profit margin 9.7%) and the
gross profit margin for Non-core Business decreased to 92.5% (2020:
95.5%) The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was
3.0% (2020: 15.7%).
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The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company from
continuing operations of HK$236.6 million (2020: HK$21.2 million) for
the year. The basic loss per share from continuing operations for the
Year was HK10.21 cents (2020: HKO.89 cents). Such increase in loss
was mainly attributable to the factors discussed below:

During 2020, the PRC government announced certain financial
measures and supports for corporate to overcome the negative impact
arising from the pandemic. In particular, the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security issued an announcement regarding
the administration of Chinese social security contributions during the
period of prevention and containment of the spread of COVID-19 and
decided to reduce or waive employer obligations on social security
contributions for a specified period from February to December 2020 to
ease the burden of enterprises during this difficult time. Approximately
HK$27,031,000 of the retirement benefits costs were waived in
2020. However, such arrangement has been discontinued in 2021.
Accordingly, the Group resumed making full contributions in 2021 and
thus experienced a considerable increase in costs. Meanwhile, as some
orders could not be produced due to the long supply cycle of electronic
components in the market, inventory cycle also extended. A one-off
provision for impairment of inventories of HK$48,335,000 was made
during the year, which caused to the decline in gross profit and gross

profit margin.
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In addition, the new management team has formulated a very aggressive
development plan that the Group’s business will have to grow rapidly in
the next few years. To this end, in this year, the Group has increased
investment in human resources, and recruited many highly professional
and experienced talents from the industry to enrich the management
and various departments of the Group. At the same time, in order to
adapt to the reality of the soaring cost of high-tech talents in mainland
China, the Group has increased the salary and bonuses of some existing
employees, so as to increase the employees’ sense of belonging and
motivation to the Group to strive to create more profits for the Group.
The above factors have resulted in a substantial increase in labour costs

over the same period last year.

The Group proactively invested in opening new product lines (e.g.
data communication products) and expanding its customer base in
2021. Specifically, the Group managed to secure orders from 2 major
operators in the industry during 2021 but almost none of the deliveries
was made due to the global semiconductor shortage. Nonetheless, the
Group’s new management took the proactive view that the Group should
not idle during the time and that the Group’s research and development
of new markets must stay at the forefront of the industry or else the
opportunity for growth would be lost. There was therefore a significant

increase in the Group’s research and development costs in 2021.

In 2021, the Group mainly focused on the development of handsets
and 10T terminals business. The number of design and development
team members was 444 in 2021 (2020: 226). Total R&D expenses of
the Group amounted to HK$178.7 million (2020: HK$64.2 million),
representing 24.7% (2020: 9.0%) of the Group’s revenue.

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year increased
by 52.2% to HK$38.5 million (2020: HK$25.3 million). The ratio of the
selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2021 was 5.3% (2020:
3.6%).
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The Group’s administrative expenses for 2021 increased by 50.8% to R-B=—F » AEBRITEFE 1 I150.8%
HK$132.1 million (2020: HK$87.6 million), representing 18.2% (2020: %£132,100,000% T (ZZ == 4 : 87,600,000

12.3%) of the revenue. BT AERAR18.2% (Z BB
12.3%) °
Year ended 31 December 2021 Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z--F4+-A=t-ALEE AHE-ZT-TFT_A=+—HIZFE
Gross (loss) Gross
Gross (loss) profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
WA E@F EBEFE WA e EFIx
HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %
BEBT HEAR % BEBT ASAL %
Handsets and 10T FHE RS ARRER
terminals business 567.6 (38.5) (6.8) 586.1 61.6 105
EMS business TR RERES 95.1 2.7 2.8 74.9 2.7 36
Total Bar 662.7 (35.8) (5.4) 661.0 64.3 9.7
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The revenue of this segment decreased year-on-year by 3.2% to
HK$567.6 million (2020: HK$586.1 million) in 2021. Due to the prices
of components up across the board and the normal supply cycle
slipping affecting on-time delivery, the Group was forced to procure
some major components in the spot market at high prices, which
resulted in a sharp increase in costs; meanwhile, as some orders could
not be produced due to the long supply cycle of electronic materials
in the market, inventory cycle also extended. A one-off provision for
impairment of inventories of HK$48,335,000 was made during the
year which caused to a marked decline in gross profit and gross profit
margin in 2021 compared with 2020. The overall gross profit margin
of this business segment decreased significantly and recorded a gross
loss margin of 6.8% (2020: gross profit margin 10.5%) for the Year.
The revenue of ODM business contributed to approximately 91% of the
revenue of this segment in 2021 (2020: 91%).
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EMS business

Due to the Group’s mainland factories resumed normal production and
with customers and processed products more diversified, revenue of the
business segment increased relative to the same period last year. The
revenue of this segment increased year-on-year by 27.0% to HK$95.1
million (2020: HK$74.9 million). The increase in orders translated
into pressure on production capacity and more complex processing
procedures, and as manual operations make up a large part of the
production process, work efficiency was on the low side, gross profit

margin decreased year-on-year to 2.8% (2020: 3.6%).

Disposal of 10T system and 020 business

In the first half of 2021, the Group completed the disposal of 98.7%
equity interest in /8ERBE HHRAF] (unofficial English translation
being Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited). A loss on disposal of HK$0.8
million was recorded in the Year. Further information relating to such
disposal is set out in the section headed “Material Acquisition and

Disposal of Subsidiaries or Associated Companies” below.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
financial information of 10T system and 020 business was presented as

discontinued operations.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$322.3 million (31 December 2020: HK$667.9 million), among
which 42.5% was held in US dollars, 55.5% was held in Renminbi
and the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, and
short-term bank deposits of HK$353.2 million (31 December 2020:
HK$281.6 million), among which 79.2% was held in US dollars and
20.8% was held in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2021, the Group also
had pledged bank deposits of HK$16.1 million (31 December 2020:
HK$5.9 million) in Renminbi for the purpose of the Group’s Renminbi
borrowings. The Group intends to finance its working capital and capital
expenditure plans from such bank balances. The Group has pledged
bank deposits to secure the bank borrowings. The total bank borrowings
of the Group amounted to HK$41.9 million as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: HK$36.0 million), all of which was denominated in
US dollars. All of the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates and

repayable within one year.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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The respective turnover period of inventory, trade and notes receivables,
trade and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business is

presented below:

AEETZEBZFE  BRESERLE
B BRNESEARERENEEH2I0T

2021 2020

—E-—F —E T4

Days Days

X X

(restated)

(feE51)

Inventory turnover period FEAEH 116 113
Trade and notes receivables turnover period JEUNE SR R E iR EEH 49 75
Trade and notes payables turnover period FEfT B B R R R 128 100

The inventory turnover period remained relatively stable in the year
2021 and 2020.

In 2021, the proportion of accounts receivable with longer credit period
decreased. As a result, the trade and note receivable turnover days
decreased for 2021 as compared to that of year 2020.

As affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, repayment schedules of certain
accounts payables had been slowed down during the Year as compared
to that of year 2020. As a result, the trade and notes payables turnover

days increased for the Year as compared to that of year 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the current ratio, calculated as current assets

over current liabilities, was 2.6 times (31 December 2020: 3.6 times).

The Group reckons that inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory into
cash and its sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-

term and long-term obligations.
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The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The
Group’s surplus funds are mainly held under fixed and savings deposits

in reputable banks to earn interest income.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables,
trade payables and bank balances are denominated in US dollars,
thereby exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. As at 31
December 2021, the Group did not use any financial instrument for
hedging purpose but it will consider entering into non-deliverable foreign
exchange forward contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposure

in US dollars when necessary.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 2,279,777,300 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

The Company has issued 2,153,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
upon the exercise of share options by employee of the Company during

the year.

Save as disclosed above, no shares of the Company have been issued

during the Year.

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$2,583.2 million (31 December 2020: HK$2,801.6 million) and the
bank borrowings was HK$41.9 million (31 December 2020: HK$36.0
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank

borrowings over total assets, was 1.6% (31 December 2020: 1.3%).

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
its capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue for
shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital structure
is constantly being adjusted according to changes in the operational

environment.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
On 23 March 2021, LBEEEYBBARZERAE (Shanghai
Yunmao IOT Limited*) (“Shanghai Yunmao”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with Cheng Shuchun and Huang Xiaoyan, pursuant to which
Shanghai Yunmao agreed to sell and Cheng Shuchun and Huang
Xiaoyan agreed to purchase 98.7% equity interest of F/8ZFE 5
AR A 7] (Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited*) at a consideration of
RMB34,180,000. The disposal was completed in the first half of 2021.

Further details of the above mentioned disposal are disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 23 March 2021.

On 26 November 2021, Simcom Holdings HK Limited (“Simcom
Holdings”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Kongtop
Electronics Co. Limited (“Kongtop Electronics”), pursuant to which
Simcom Holdings conditionally agreed to sell and Kongtop Electronics
conditionally agreed to purchase 100% equity interest of FE#H & %
GRIN BPR AR (Kongtop Industrial (Shenzhen) Co., Limited*) at a
consideration of USD3,000,000. The disposal was completed during
2021.

Further details of the above mentioned disposal are disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 26 November 2021.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, the Group did not have any

material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant

investment.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 1,651 (2020:
1,149) employees from continuing operations. The Group operates
a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all of its
employees in Hong Kong, and provides its PRC employees with welfare
schemes as required by the applicable laws and regulations of the
PRC. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, may grant share
options under the share option scheme and share awards under the
share award scheme of the Company to its employees by reference
to individual performance and the performance of the Group. Total
staff costs incurred by the Group amounted to HK$297.4 million from

continuing operations (2020: HK$163.5 million) during the Year.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of

the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”), having regard to factors including the
Group’s operating results, responsibilities of the Directors and senior

management and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme to recognise
and reward the contribution of certain Directors and employees of
the Group to the growth and development of the Group. After listing,
the Company has adopted another share option scheme and a share
award scheme, the primary purpose of which is to motivate the eligible
persons referred to in the scheme, which include executive Directors
and employees of the Group, to optimise their future contributions to the
Group and to reward them for their efforts. Details of the share option
schemes and the share award scheme of the Company are set out in

notes 36 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 26 January
2021, the Group entered into a framework agreement with the People’s
Government of Huangjiang Town, Dongguan, to signify the Group’s
intention to invest an aggregate amount of RMB2,000,000,000 to
develop the Group’s own technological industrial park in Huangjiang
Town, Dongguan, thereby consolidating the Group’s operations and
maximizing its development potential. It is expected that the Group will
invest RMB1,000,000,000 in fixed asset investment and the remaining
RMB1,000,000,000 for operating cashflow.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plans for material

investment or capital assets during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material

contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events of the Group occurred since the end of

the Year.
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LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term value for our customers,
shareholders and employees.

TARGET TO BECOME MARKET LEADER

Our target is to make the Company the market leader in handset and
|IOT terminals product solutions and services. All employees of the
Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We continue to attend to, in a timely manner,
our customers’ needs through continuous innovation in technology and
management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as
employees.
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MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision,
the Group aims to make the world a better place through our continuous
efforts.

Support from the community is vital to any corporate development, thus
giving back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of
our limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take
up our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group)
should not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich
ourselves spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can
share and practice our charitable culture so as to create a better and
more harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and
started from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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DIRECTORS

EE

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”)

aged 77, is the chairman of the Company and an executive
Director and a director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited.
Mrs Wong is responsible for developing direction and strategies
of the Group. Mrs Wong together with her spouse, Mr Wong Cho
Tung (“Mr Wong”), an executive Director, were the founders
of the Company. Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr Wong
had established a number of companies which engaged in
the electronics and telecommunications business including
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”),
one of the Group’s main operating subsidiary which was
established in November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years
of operational and management experience in the electronics
and telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at
the Electrical Department of the South China University of
Technology in 1977. Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at
Tongji University since 2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from
the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently
known as Beihang University), specialising in electrical
engineering. Mrs Wong is the mother of Mr Wong Hei, Simon, a
non-executive Director.

Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”)

aged 77, is an executive Director and the president of the
Group. Mr Wong is responsible for participating in formulation
of the direction, strategies and be responsible for the
development plan of the new business of the Group. Mr
Wong is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM Technology Limited
(“Shanghai SIM Technology”), a director of Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom and SIM Technology HK Limited (“SIM Technology
(HK)"). Mr Wong is also the director of Info Dynasty Group
Limited and Intellipower Investments Limited, both of which
are the substantial Shareholders. Mr Wong together with his
spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive Director, was the founder of
the Company. Mr Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as
Beihang University), specialising in electrical engineering. Mr
Wong has decades of experience in the electrical, electronics
and telecommunications industry. Mr Wong is the father of Mr
Wong Hei, Simon, a non-executive Director.
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Mr Liu Jun (“Mr Liu”)

aged 49, is an executive Director and the chief technical officer
of the Group. Mr Liu graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in
electronic engineering from X#ZAKE (Tianjin University)
in 1994 and was awarded a master’s degree in information
technology from R EPE R (unofficial English translation
being Nanjing Institute of Post and Telecommunications)
(currently known as B REE AZ (Nanjing University of Post
and Telecommunications)) in 1997. Mr Liu has extensive
experience in the field of telecommunication technology and
software programmes development. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr Liu has worked for the mobile research and development
centre of Motorola in Beijing and was responsible for the
development of telecommunication software programmes. Mr
Liu has also worked for China Techfaith Wireless Communication
Technology Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ of
the United States of America (“US"), from August 2002 to
March 2007, in various positions including as a director, chief
operating officer and executive senior vice president. Mr Liu was
appointed as an executive Director in June 2015.

Mr Zhu Wenhui (“Mr Zhu”)

aged 40, is an executive Director and general manager of the
finance department of the Group’s operations headquarters.
Mr Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Tongji
University in 2004. From 2004 to 2005, he was credit manager
at the Shanghai branch of Bank of Communications where
he was responsible for corporate risk management and credit
assessment. He was responsible for leading the establishment
of a financial management control system that meets the needs
of the Group’s strategic development and improving its financial
system in terms of comprehensive budgeting, accounting
analysis and risk management and control. He also has
extensive experience in capital operations projects, international
settlements, taxation and capital management required for the
operation of PRC companies. He is a Certified Management
Accountant of the Institute of Management Accountants in
the United States of America. Mr Zhu was appointed as an
executive Director in February 2021.
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Mr Gao Jun (“Mr Gao”)

aged 51, is an executive Director and chief executive officer of
the Group. Mr Gao obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer
and applications from the Department of Building Materials at
Tongji University in 1992 and the degree of executive master of
business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in 2013. He worked for Shenzhen Huawei Technology
Co., Ltd.* CEARTARRAF]) (“Huawei”) for 18 years. From
1995 to 2003, he worked in various capacities as customer
manager of Huawei's Nanjing office, representative of Huawei’s
offices in Tianjin, Yinchuan, Lanzhou, Xian and Wuhan, general
manager of northwest area and director of domestic marketing
planning department where he was responsible for meeting
the sales, marketing and service targets in the regions under
his management, formulating and managing Huawei’s general
marketing strategy. From 2003 to 2005, he was president of
Huawei’'s PRC mobile business where he was responsible for
formulating its mobile business strategy in various aspects,
including but not limited to business planning, personnel
recruitment, training and assessment, retail planning including
the management of sales channels and agents, aftersales
service planning and implementation. He was also responsible
for managing and achieving Huawei’s targets in terms of
sales, profits and customer satisfaction in the PRC market.
From 2005 to 2008, he was president of global sales and
services of Huawei Device Co., Ltd.* (ZEA&IHAE]) (“Huawei
Device”), one of Huawei's subsidiaries. He was responsible for
building the global sales and services team which included 14
regional departments globally, customer group management
department, channel management department, global product
marketing development department, market retail management
department and global after-sales service department. He was
also responsible for setting and managing global strategy and
product matching. From 2008 to 2010, he was chief marketing
officer of Huawei Device. He was in charge of, among other
things, brand planning and brand communication, management
of worldwide stores, sales team and promotion events and
achieving smartphone market share. He was also responsible
for the operation of the company’s intelligence system, analysis
and management of competitors, analysis and recommendation
of strategic alliances and opportunities. From 2010 to 2012, he
was president of global product management of Huawei Device
where he was in charge of its product roadmap planning,
product project decision-making, and product life cycle
management. He was also responsible for external cooperation
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in product solutions. He was an angel investor from 2012 to
2016. He then worked at TV Plus Holdings (Beijing) Limited*
(SRR (AL ) BRR A R]) (“LeTV Group”) for 2 years from
2016 to 2018 in various capacities, namely as president of
group smart devices business and LeTV Group’s Asia-pacific
president. He was chief executive officer of LeEco Hong Kong
Co., Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of LeTV, from 2016
to 2017, and chief operation officer of LeTV Sports Culture
Develop (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (as it was then known) from
2017 to 2018. He then worked as the group vice president of
Kangde Xin Composite Material Group Co., Ltd.* (F{S#1EA M
FEBAL D AR 2 F]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002450), from 2018 to 2019. He was
the loT(Internet of Things) business consultant of Beijing Qihoo
360 Company* (At & F23602 7)) during 2018. Mr Gao was
appointed as an executive Director in December 2021.

Mr Wong Hei, Simon

aged 49, is a non-executive Director. Mr Wong Hei, Simon
obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from Boston University
in 1995, specialising in electrical engineering. Prior to joining
Sunrise Technology Limited 2#EE TR AR QA (“Sunrise
Technology (HK)”) in 1995, he worked at the headquarters of
National Semiconductor in the Silicon Valley. He was appointed
as director of Sunrise Technology (HK) in 1999. He has been
director of Sunrise Technology Group Limited 2 #E Rl £ E
BBRAR] since February 2000. He was director of Sunrise
Electronic Industry Limited EHEEFTH#¥ AR AR from
February 2000 until 2013. Mr. Wong Hei, Simon was appointed
as managing director of Chinatronic Technology Limited from
2001 to 2003. He was the managing director of SIM Technology
HK Limited (ZaAEHXEEBRAF]) from 2004 to 2009.
During the period from October 2003 to 2007, he was director
of HBRETFTRHIZAR AR (Shanghai Sunrise Electronic
Technology Co., Ltd.). He was director of Simcom International
Holdings Limited and Suncom International Holdings Limited
from 2004 to 2013. He was director of KEHER AR (Max
Vision Limited), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, from 2006 to 2013. He served as executive Director
and president of the Company from 2005 to 2013. At present,
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon is a director of multiple investment
holding companies. He has more than 26 years of experience in
the electronics and telecommunications industry and extensive
experience in investment and business management. Mr
Wong Hei, Simon is the son of Mrs Wong and Mr Wong, who
are both executive Directors and controlling shareholders of
the Company. He is also a shareholder of Info Dynasty Group
Limited and Intellipower Investments Limited, both of which
are the substantial Shareholders. Mr Wong Hei, Simon was
appointed as a non-executive Director in December 2021.
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr HH Liu”)

aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board and the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Board. Mr HH Liu is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also
a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.
Mr HH Liu now runs a professional accountancy firm in Hong
Kong and has over ten years of experience in accounting,
taxation, auditing and corporate finance. Mr HH Liu is also
an independent non-executive director of Emperor Watch &
Jewellery Limited (stock code: 887), a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) from May 2017. Mr HH Liu was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in September 2008.

Mr Wu Zhe (previous name Wu Aihu)
(HMr Wu”)

aged 65, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr Wu
has been the professor at Beihang University in the PRC since
October 1993 and the deputy principal at Dongguan University
of Technology in the PRC since 2015. During the period from
May 1991 to October 1993, Mr Wu was the lecturer and the
associate professor in aircraft design of Beihang University.
From 1997 to 2004, he was the deputy principal of Beihang
University. He obtained a bachelor's degree in Wuhan Institute
of Construction* (EUZE# Z8T) (currently known as Wuhan
University of Technology) in 1982, a doctoral degree from
Harbin Institute of Architecture* (YA E/EE TZ6T) (currently
known as Harbin Institute of Technology) in 1988 and a
postdoctoral certificate from Northwestern Polytechnical
University in 1991 in the PRC. Mr Wu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2017.

Mr Li Minbo (“Mr Li")

aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr Li
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering from Nanjing
University of Aeronauticsand Astronautics in 1991, a master’s
degree in engineering from Beihang University in 1997 and
a doctor’'s degree in engineering from Tsinghua University
in 2001. He worked as Postdoctoral Fellow at National
University of Singapore from 2001 to 2002. From 1991 to
1994, he was college teacher at the worker college of Changhe
Aircraft Industries Company* (E/A 7 T A 7). He was a
researcher at Kingdee International Software Group Company
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 00268), from 2003 to 2004 and has been associate
professor of the School of Computer Science and Technology
of Fudan University since 2007. At present, he is the director
of the Manufacturing Data Research Office of the Shanghai
Key Laboratory of Data Science. Mr Li was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2021.
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Ms Chan Chi Yin (“Ms Chan”), CPA

aged 43, is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of the Company. Ms Chan joined SIM Technology (HK) on
April 2017 and is responsible for the financial reporting of the
Group. Ms Chan was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) on 28 June 2017 and
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company on 29
June 2018. Ms Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over ten years of
experience in the field of accounting. Ms Chan obtained a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree with majoring in
Accountancy and a Master of Science Programme in Finance
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

BRIFG 2+ ([BRZ 1 1) (CPA)

A3 ARFEFEUBRERAAWE - Rt
R-ZB—tHFNANATERMAME  aAEAKE
ZHBREEE - REEIRZZ—EFRA=TN
FEZERARABRZARWE (RAWME]) K=
Z-N\FRAZTNREREALRRZ GRS
BE - RETREBEINLGGE RN RE
BATHFER - RALHAEEPXRETHE LR
S84 (TESHB) ReRPESRLRIEZS
fiz

RANMBZEERFRAE — T —FFH

33



34

3

Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year (“Report”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 118.

The Board does not recommend the payment of the final dividend to the

Shareholders for the Year.

There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under which he/she/it

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2021 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 are set out on page
286 of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has issued 2,153,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
upon the exercise of share options by employee of the Company during
the Year.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, the Company has repurchased 96,608,000 shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The repurchase shares were
cancelled subsequently in August 2021, October 2021, November
2021, December 2021 and January 2022. Details of the repurchase

were as follows:

Number of

Month of shares
repurchase repurchased
e A5 BEIRGEE
'000

TR

July 2021 —ET-—FtA 8,286
September 2021 —E-—FNA 28,094
October 2021 —ET-—F+A 11,812
November 2021 —ZE-—%+—H 12,598
December 2021 —E-_—F+=-HA 35,818
96,608

Other than the shares repurchased by the Company as disclosed above,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 December 2021 were approximately HK$314,672,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and retained
profit of approximately HK$120,824,000.
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Aggregate price

paid (inclusive

Price per share of related
BRER expenses)
Highest Lowest 2R EEK
BS BiE (BFEHEBEEX)
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
BT BT FHERT
0.440 0.400 3,644
0.415 0.380 11,426
0.420 0.400 4,877
0.430 0.405 5,334
0.460 0.410 15,672
40,853
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Mr Liu Jun (Chief technical officer)

Mr Zhu Wenhui (appointed with effect from 3 February 2021)

Mr Gao Jun (Chief executive officer)(appointed with effect from 24
December 2021)

Non-executive Director:

Mr Wong Hei, Simon (appointed with effect from 24 December 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wang Tianmiao (resigned as independent non-executive Director
with effect from 3 February 2021)

Mr Wu Zhe

Mr Li Minbo (appointed as independent non-executive Director with
effect from 3 February 2021)

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.
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UPDATE OF INFORMATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13.51(B)

During the Year, the emoluments of the following Directors have been
changed as follows:
Name of Directors Details of changes
Ms Yeung Man Ying  Total emolument for the Year was approximately

HK$242,000 (2020: HKS$Nil).

Mr Wong Cho Tung Total emolument for the Year was approximately
HK$483,000 (2020: HK$Nil)
Mr Liu Jun Total emolument for the Year was approximately

HK$1,582,000 (2020: HK$1,379,000)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES
As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQO")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(“Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Long position in the shares of the Company

BFEXRARARGZER

Total number of

Approximate
percentage of

Name of director

Nature of interest

ESMR

Mr Wong Cho Tung
THREE

Ms Yeung Man Ying

EEME

Corporate interest (note 1)
NEVER (M)

Personal interest

fE AR

Total
4B

Corporate interest (note 2)

T B+ NEVER (Mit2)
Personal interest
B A=
Total
1BE
Mr Liu Jun Personal interest
RERE &A=
Notes:
1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting

power of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty
in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Mr Wong is the sole director
of Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited
(“Simcom (BVI)") is wholly-owned by Mr Wong. Therefore, Mr Wong is deemed
to be interested in all the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held by
Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO respectively.

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong"), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed
to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued
share capital of 2,279,777,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2021.
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As at 31 December 2021, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details
of movements in the share options are set out in note 36 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share award scheme and details of
the share awards are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 36 and the
share award scheme disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the Year nor at the end of the Year was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined
in the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any

time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the

Group was entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year; and there is
no contract of significance in relation to provision of services by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any

of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors nor the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 23 March 2021, Shanghai Yunmao, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with Cheng Shuchun and Huang Xiaoyan, pursuant to which
Shanghai Yunmao agreed to sell and Cheng Shuchun and Huang
Xiaoyan agreed to purchase 98.7% equity interest of F/8ZHEE 5
APBR/A7F] (Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited*) (“Shanghai Yunhao”)
at a consideration of RMB34,180,000. Huang Xiaoyan is a director
and general manager of Shanghai Yunhao and the spouse of Cheng
Shuchun, both Cheng Shuchun and Huang Xiaoyan are therefore
connected persons of the Company at subsidiary level. The disposal
constituted a connected transaction of the Company. Details of the
disposal are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 23
March 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is
being in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of
corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

IRERE# EEtE

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest

(H15#2) VNG 3
Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest
(H17%3) PN
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percentage of
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ordinary shares

of the Company Company
RAEARZ fEAR DB R
ZERRO#E ZENES
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(a1

734,857,000 32.23%
454,227,000 19.92%
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Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued
share capital of 2,279,777,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2021.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship
between Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong is disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr Wong is disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in
Shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there is no other
substantial Shareholders or persons who had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all

of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out

in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the Year, the five largest customers accounted for 44.58% of the
Group’s total sales and the largest customer accounted for 12.95% of

the Group’s total sales.

For the year, the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of

the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in

any of the Group’s five largest customers.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall

offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the

preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication of
future development of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion &
Analysis” in this annual report. That discussion forms part of this Report

of the Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of
the Group. Major risks are summarized below.

1. Fluctuations in the production capacity of the upstream supply

chain of terminals as a result of the long-lasting COVID-19
pandemic, structural shortages of raw materials due to
unbalanced production capacity, high inventories caused by
the failure to supply full set of materials for some projects
on schedule, and risk of collapse of upstream supply chain
companies, especially peripheral custom-made materials supply
companies, and interruption of supply:
The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 led to
instability in production around the world, particularly in countries
and regions severely hit by the pandemic. As the pandemic
continued into 2021, the output of the global supply chain
fluctuated greatly, especially the sudden shutdown of factories in
the overseas supply chain, which led to the renewed extension of
material delivery time and price spikes. The imbalance between
supply and demand of materials was deteriorated as a large
number of customers in the industry continued to multiply their
orders. The continuous increase in the demand for raw materials
such as wafer, chip packaging and testing costs, PCB sheets,
plastic pellet and paper pulp in the upstream supply chain has
led to increase in prices of the full range of electronic devices
and structural parts, giving rise to a trend of cost increase for the
Group’s downstream OEMs. The failure to assemble and produce
individual materials on schedule resulted in an increase in the
Company’s inventory. The small and medium-sized enterprises in
the upstream supply chain, particularly peripheral custom-made
materials suppliers, have comparatively weaker risk aversion
abilities. They may encounter cash flow problems and thus are
more exposed to collapse of business and supply interruption due
to the hiking raw material prices, prolonged time for customers’
reorders and backlogged inventories, which may also interrupt
the Group’s production. The Group have started to identify
additional secondary suppliers since early 2020 but still cannot
fully eliminate its risks of delayed delivery. To this end, the Group
kept enhancing its supply chain management and spending
considerable effort to monitor the delivery capabilities and quality
of upstream suppliers. To minimize the risk of delayed delivery,
the Group has been actively identifying additional secondary
suppliers and preparing their replacement certification so that
they are able to replace any custom-made materials suppliers that
may expose the Group to any risk.
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As the pandemic did not abate in 2021, the Group expects that
inefficient communication with overseas customers and difficulties
in launching new projects will continue into 2022.

Property leasing: Certain tenants may experience insufficient
cash flow amidst the novel coronavirus outbreak and there will
be risk of lease termination

The COVID-19 outbreak, which has lingered for two years,
has affected various industries, especially the service industry.
Therefore, the commencement of business of various companies
that leased buildings of the Group was delayed and their results
were adversely impacted. Especially, most of the leased shops on
the ground floor of the Group’s headquarters on Jinzhong Road
are restaurant enterprises and the impact on them is particularly
significant. For small enterprises with weak anti-risk abilities,
their cash flow is prone to shortage and they may go bankrupt.
The Group may therefore lose tenants and rental payments. The
Group continued to offer reduced rental fees in 2021 so as to
help small enterprises ride out the storm. Even so, certain small
enterprises decided to terminate the lease, which is a trend that is
expected to continue into 2022 in the opinion of the Group.

New business: self-owned brand routers and IP cameras and
POS ODM services, which increased operating costs and
significantly reduced capital flow

In 2021, the Group established two new product lines, namely
self-owned brand routers, IP cameras and POS ODM services.
In order to cooperate with the business development of the two
product lines, the marketing, research and development, delivery,
quality and other departments increased personnel, leading to
a significant increase in labour costs in 2021, which is expected
to continue to increase in 2022. In 2021, there was a small
amount of material preparation and shipment for routers and
IP cameras. However, the amount of material preparation and
inventory increased significantly in the fourth quarter of 2021. It
is expected that the amount of material preparation for routers
and IP cameras will continue to increase in 2022. In 2021, we
made investment in the R&D projects for POS ODM products. It is
expected that in the first half of 2022, we will continue to increase
our R&D investment and carry out transformation works for our
production and operation in accordance with the requirements
for the safety of POS financial equipment. Relevant material
preparation and shipment will commence in the second half of
2022. Given the long product life cycle of POS, it is expected
that the investment in research and development and material
preparation will continue to increase in 2023. It is expected that
inventory will increase and the Group’s own liquidity will decrease
since the second half of 2022.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key relationships

with employees, suppliers and customers.

1. Employees
The Company is committed to value every talent and emphasizes
that excellent employees are valuable assets for the Company.
The Group pays attention to self-improvement of staff and
provides them a working environment full of fairness, openness,
sincerity, warmth and opportunities. The Group’s competitive
remuneration system brings long-term and stable return for staff
and also takes into account the long-term and stable development
of the Company. The Group determines staffs’ remuneration
and promotion based on their capacity and contribution to the
Group. The Company sees staff with outstanding performance
who share the same values with the Company as valuable assets.
We keep trying our best to provide promising career prospect
and a platform for them to display their talents fully. Therefore,
the Company not only helps our employees to improve their
knowledge, skills and experience through performing their
own duties, but also creates good conditions in facilities and
environment suitable for their development. To facilitate the
proper allocation and development of high caliber talents, the
Company has set up an employee career development system
which focuses on both management and technical skills.
Through this system, the outperforming key members can seize
the opportunity to improve overall abilities by various ways. The
Company aims to create conducive conditions for talents to shine

and grow through career, and also build solid team with talents.
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Suppliers

The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
reputable suppliers in accordance with the principle of mutually
beneficial cooperation and international standards such as
ISO9001, 1S014001 and OHSAS18001. The Company uses a
strict social responsibility management system to manage our
suppliers, ensuring that the quality of materials provided by
the supplies meets our requirements and that their production
management systems also comply with requirements on
environment, occupational health and safety management system
as stated in relevant laws and regulations. We also make cost and

delivery plans in advance to meet delivery demand.

Customers

The Group establishes complete management systems in
compliance with national and international standards, as well as
well-known clients’ requirements, which cover product quality,
environment, occupational health and safety, information security
and product safety management. Via the clients’ satisfaction
survey conducted yearly, our clients have expressed positive
feedback on quality, logistics, cost and service. Our clients all over
the world, both new and old well-known clients, supervise and
inspect each management system of the Company every year.
Apart from this, our Company also implements Key Performance
Indicator (KPI), internal control scheme, management appraisal
program in every aspect. In order to continuously enhance
management systems of the Company, we set up a specific
department to supervise operation and pass the results to the

management on a regular basis to review.
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Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our business,
but of each of us. The Group initiates and strives to minimize our
environmental impact by using water saving facilities, saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The
Group also operates in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possesses all necessary permission and
approval from the PRC regulators. The Group also has environment
policies in place to reduce emission, raise efficiency use of resources

and reduce pollution.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws.
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations

that have significant impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not

have any material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.
On behalf of the Board
Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong
12 April 2022
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to
the Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted
by the Group emphasise a quality Board with sound internal control,

transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the then prevailing Corporate Governance Code
(“Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules during the Year.

On 24 December 2021, the Board has established a nomination
committee with defined written terms of reference in accordance with
the Corporate Governance Code. Before the establishment of the
nomination committee during the Year, the Board has not established a
nomination committee which was in deviation from Provisions A.5.1 to
A.5.5 of the then prevailing Corporate Governance Code because at that
time, the Company did not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board was responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors
from time to time to ensure that it had a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Company, and the Board as a whole was also responsible for
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the

chairman of the Board.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general
meeting of the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the
absence of the chairman of such committees, another member of the
committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to be available to

answer questions at the annual general meeting.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 June 2021
(2021 AGM"), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to illness. Mr Liu Jun, an executive Director and
the chief technical officer of the Group, chaired the 2021 AGM on
behalf of the chairman of the Board pursuant to the bye-laws of the
Company and was available to answer questions. Mr Liu Hing Hung,
an independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Board and the audit committee of the
Board (“Audit Committee”), was also available at the 2021 AGM to

answer questions from Shareholders.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the
Company by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and
effective manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the

Company and its Shareholders.
The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. setting the Company’s mission and values;
formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate
performance;

4. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest between
management and Board members; and

5. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and

three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Mr Liu Jun (Chief Technical Officer)
Mr Zhu Wenhui

Mr Gao Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director

Mr Wong Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wu Zhe

Mr Li Minbo

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on

pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with
each other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the

Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the roles of the chairman, president and the chief
executive officer were separated in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility in compliance with the
requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. During the Year, the role of the chairman was performed by Ms
Yeung Man Ying who was responsible for developing direction and
strategies of the Group. During the Year, the role of the president was
performed by Mr Wong Cho Tung who was responsible for formulating
the direction, strategies and the development plan of the new business
of the Group. During the Year, the role of chief executive officer was
performed by Mr Gao Jun who took up the responsibility of the overall
management of the Group’s product and business planning, including
management of product definition, sales, procurement, production and

delivery.

The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management
including the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by
the Board and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board

before public reporting.
The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to

indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Bye-laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Directors shall have full access to information on the
Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice during the Year. The
Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters
discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which will be

available for inspection by Directors upon request.

The Board held four meetings and the Company held one general
meeting in 2021. The following is the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company for the

Year:

Number of general Number of Board
meeting attended/ meetings attended/
Number of generalNumber of Board meetings

Name of Director meeting held held
Ms Yeung Man Ying 01 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 01 4/4
Mr Liu Jun 1/1 4/4
Mr Zhu Wenhui

(Appointed with effect from 3

February 2021) 01 33
Mr Gao Jun

(Appointed with effect from 24

December 2021) 0/0 0/0
Mr Wong Hei, Simon

(Appointed with effect from 24

December 2021) 0/0 0/0
Mr Liu Hing Hung 171 4/4
Mr Wang Tianmiao

(Resigned with effect from 3

February 2021) 0n 1/1
Mr Wu Zhe on 4/4
Mr Li Minbo

(Appointed with effect from 3

February 2021) 01 33
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

On 24 December 2021, the Board established a nomination committee
of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) comprising Mr. Liu Hing
Hung as the chairman, Mr. Li Minbo and Mr. Wong Cho Tung as the
members. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the appointment of
new Directors from time to time, so as to ensure that it has a balanced
composition of candidates appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Company. The Nomination Committee is also
responsible for assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors,
in particular the chairman of the Board. Before the establishment of
the Nomination Committee, these functions were carried out by the full
Board.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which have been
adopted by the Board are available on the websites of the Company and

of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee was set up on 24 December 2021,
therefore, the Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting during
the Year.

In December 2018, the Company adopted a nomination policy
which sets out the selection criteria in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate as Director. Such criteria include but not limited
to gender, academic background, qualifications, relevant experiences
in the industry, character and integrity of the proposed candidate.
Suitable candidate can be nominated by any Director. The Nomination
Committee should evaluate the personal profile of the candidate
based on the selection criteria as set out in the nomination policy
and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of each proposed
candidate. After comprehensive assessment, the Nomination Committee
will then make appropriate recommendations to the Board for approval.
All appointments of Directors will ultimately be based on merit while
taking into account the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits

of diversity on the Board.
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As and when required, the Nomination Committee will meet to discuss
nomination of new Directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Nomination Committee will adopt an objective
criteria, with due regard to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the
board diversity policy of the Company (“Board Diversity Policy”) as well
as the requirements under the Listing Rules and the nomination policy

of the Company.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years at each annual general
meeting of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who
have been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
but as between persons who become or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among

themselves) be determined by lot.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance,
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diversed Board.
During the Year, the Board had in place the Board Diversity Policy in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board takes into account
various elements of diversity including but not limited to age, gender,
cultural and educational background, skills, professional knowledge, and
industry experience in determining the appointment and reappointment
of the Directors and proposed candidates. All Directors appointments
are based on merits and due regard is given to the Board’s diversity to

ensure the Company can benefit from it.

During the Year, the Board was satisfied with the diversity of the
existing Board composition and did not, for the time being, set up any

measurable objective regarding board diversity.
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The composition, experience and balance of skills of the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains core members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a

regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board has met
once with all Director present to review the policies and practices and
compliance by the Company and has reviewed and monitored the

training and continuous professional development of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory
requirements. Further explanation as to how the Company generates
or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives is set out under “Chairman’s Statement” from

pages 4 to 10 of this annual report.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company provided regular updates to the Directors
on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the
Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest business
development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that they
complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Ms Yeung
Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Mr Liu Jun, Mr Zhu Wenhui (appointed
on 3 February 2021), Mr Gao Jun (appointed on 24 December 2021),
Mr Wong Hei, Simon (appointed on 24 December 2021), Mr Liu Hing
Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao (resigned on 3 February 2021), Mr Wu
Zhe and Mr Li Minbo (appointed on 3 February 2021), participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors
such as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics related to

telecommunications industry.

During the Year, the Company Secretary fully complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of professional

training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board
in achieving its goal to provide packages which can attract, retain
and motivate Directors with required qualities to run the Company

successfully.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (i) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director
and senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time. The Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee adopted by the Board are available on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year
and had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior

management of the Group. The attendance record is as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 4/4
Mr Wang Tianmiao (Resigned with

effect from 3 February 2021) 1/1
Mr Wu Zhe 4/4
Mr Li Minbo (Appointed with effect

from 3 February 2021) 3/3
Mr Wong Cho Tung 4/4

No Director took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr
Wu Zhe and Mr Li Minbo (replaced Mr Wang Tianmiao on 3 February
2021), and one executive Director being Mr Wong Cho Tung. They
have substantial experience in human resources management. The

Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung.

In addition to considering the performance of individuals and the
profitability of the Group, executive Directors, who are assisted by the
Group’s human resources department, are responsible for reviewing
all relevant remuneration information, obtaining market conditions and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee remuneration packages
for Directors and senior management for consideration and approval.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of
their own remuneration.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

FHEZEE T ERERE  IRARFES
K REREZMAHFMEE R EBRESR
Wik - URHIEERREERE 2R FF A
EARZSEHMER  (NEEBUATES
KEMEEREABRBIHMEN 26K (i)
SEEETIRAEZEXBBERTE - BHK
POEARBRARZHH - EF S RN Z HE
ZEg 2 BEBE T AR R NPTz Mk

FHNZEEeRAEFRIT TS WO B
BAEEEERSREBASHEM - HEZ
IREAR -

HESERE
EEME BIEBRE
BEESAE 4/4
THBLER -F-—F
ZH=HEHFAER) 1/1
REELE 4/4
FEOREER —FE - —F
Z A= HZE(FER) 3/3
FEELE 4/4

B EERB2EAMELRS FHIE W

HINEE G mOEk EENK - BE=RBYIE
WITESBEHELL REEENTHREE
KRB —F-A=ZHREEABLE) AR
—EBPTEFTERLL - WERANERE
BHHALELR FMEEShBEEHEL
BEEXE -

HITESEAREAFIFIBH TRENEE
BARR R AREEBNEEHIAIN - FBIPTEE
BAHMER RERTSAL - ABEERSR
EREBzHMEMNEZFMNEEeZ BN
fE o R BITERW T 2EERGHM 2 &

.
iE °



The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options and share awards.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

serving every period of 12 months.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options and/or share
awards to executive Directors in accordance with the share option

schemes and share award scheme adopted by the Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by
the Remuneration Committee based on the performance of the Group

and that of the individual Director.

Mr Wong Hei, Simon entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company to serve as a non-executive Director for a term of one year
commencing from 24 December 2021, unless terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other
and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other related
provisions as stipulated in the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wu Zhe and Mr Li Minbo entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an independent
non-executive Director for one year commencing from 25 January 2022,
unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in the bye-laws of

the Company and the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written

terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process

and other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met four times in 2021 to review with
senior management and the Company’s external auditors the internal
and external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and
discussed auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters (including the 2020 annual financial statements and
2021 interim financial statements before recommending them to the
Board for approval) and also approved the replacement of Mr Wang

Tianmiao by Mr Li Minbo to act as a member of the Audit Committee.

The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 4/4
Mr Wang Tianmiao (Resigned with

effect from 3 February 2021) 1/1
Mr Wu Zhe 4/4
Mr Li Minbo (Appointed with effect from

3 February 2021) 3/3

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wu Zhe and Mr Li Minbo
(replaced Mr Wang Tianmiao on 3 February 2021). The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has professional

qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$1.9 million as audit fees and HK$0.4 million as non-audit
fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2021.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 109 to 117 of

this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review

them at regular intervals.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect Shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review, through
discussions with the management and external auditors, the Board
conducted assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system in various perspectives,
including, among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review

covers a whole financial year.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by
key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top down
approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified,
prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish

the Group’s objectives.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under the authority
of the Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board its audit findings and

recommendations on internal control.

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the Company
continuously optimised job responsibilities and functions of different
departments according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board.
Such audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance
and risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking
into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the year
under review, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and material internal controls system and is of the opinion
that the resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate and sufficient.
Based on information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
Board is satisfied with the present risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and considers them effective and adequate.
During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,

nothing has been found which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors (who
are also the senior management of the Group) and employees of the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information
disclosure from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest

information.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group is responsible for conducting
internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to provide the
Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control systems of
the Group are effective and the risks associated with the achievement of
business objectives are being managed properly. The department also
conducts other projects and investigation work as and when required.
The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system had been
in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other major

components of the internal control system of the Group for the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) in

compliance with code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
with effect from 1 January 2019. Declaration and payment of dividend
by the Company is also subject to the laws of Bermuda, the Byelaws

and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company can declare dividends
from time to time. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the financial performance of the Group, the Group'’s expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans, retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group, the Group’s
liquidity position, the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group, and any other factors that the

Board deems relevant.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time by
the Board and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be proposed

or declared in any given period.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds
to requests for information and queries from the investment community

via the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information of the
Group to Shareholders through sending the Shareholders the Company’s
interim and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and
when appropriate and providing additional information to Shareholders

in the “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

Annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”)
provides a good opportunity for communications between the Board
and Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting and related
papers are sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and the said notice is also published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Chairman and Directors (if applicable), or the duly appointed delegate
will answer questions about the Group’s business at the Annual General

Meeting. External auditors will also attend the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s share registrar and the results
of the poll will be published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Financial and other information are made
available on the Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific
enquiries and suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in
Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To
Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS

A.
1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit

of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or

more of those Shareholder(s).

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing
Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a

special general meeting will not be convened as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical

amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as
Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, the registered office of the Company in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other

requisition.
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The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
Proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
and the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, (i) the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the Annual General Meeting; or (ii) a special general

meeting will not be convened as requested.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
SIM Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present

the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”) of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (“Year 2021" or the “Reporting Period”).
This Report describes the Group’s management measures and

performance in environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) aspects.

REPORTING SCOPE

All information contained in this Report reflects the Group’s performance
in environmental protection and social care in Year 2021. The Group
disposed of its business segments of intelligent manufacturing and
internet of things (“IOT”) system and online-to-offline (“020") business
in late 2020 and April 2021 respectively. As these businesses no
longer have any material impact on the Group, they do not fall with
in the reporting scope of this Report. The management of the Group
determined the scope of disclosure of this Report after considering the
Group’s resource allocation and the operation of its different segments.
The Group’s general scope of disclosure includes all existing business
segments of the Group, namely handsets and 10T terminals business,
electronic manufacturing services (“EMS”) business and property
management business. As far as environmental data is concerned, this
Report includes entities in all relevant segments that have significant
revenue contribution to the Group and relevantly significant ESG impact,
namely factories in Qingpu of Shanghai, Shenyang and Tongcheng.
Given that the Group’s factory in Tongcheng fully commenced its
production during the Reporting Period, the scope of this Report was
expanded to cover the relevant information generated by the Tongcheng

Factory as compared with the last reporting year.
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REPORTING STANDARDS

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
This Report provides an overview of the performance of the Group in
ESG aspects. The information in this Report is derived from the official
documents and statistical data of the Group, as well as the monitoring,
management and operation information compiled by its subsidiaries in
accordance with the relevant systems of the Group. The last chapter of

this Report contains a complete content index for easy reference.

The Group also attaches great importance to materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency in the preparation of this Report. The Group
has applied these reporting principles in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide, details of which are as follows:

Materiality: During the Reporting Period, the Group analyzed its material
ESG issues through materiality assessment, and regarded the identified
material issues as the focus of the preparation of this Report. The
materiality of different material issues has been reviewed and confirmed
by the Board and senior management. For further details, please
refer to the sections headed “Communication with Stakeholders” and

“Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: This Report, where appropriate compares quantitative
key performance indicators, and explains the standards, methods,
assumptions, and sources of key conversion factors when calculating
relevant information. As the Group changed the calculation criteria,
methods and assumptions of some information and added information
generated by the factory in Tongcheng during the reporting period, this
Report cannot meaningfully compare the data of the reporting period

with the data from the last reporting year.

Balance: This Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s
performance and avoids selections, omissions, or presentation formats

that may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the reader.
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Consistency: This Report describes the information about changes in
the public domain and calculation methods as appropriate. During
the Reporting Period, the information generated by the factory located
in Tongcheng was added to this Report, and the calculation method
of some information was changed. Relevant changes are listed in the

section of affected information with explanatory notes.

If you are in doubt or have any recommendations in regards to this
Report, or the Group’s ESG plans, you are welcome to email us at karen.

chan@sim.com.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

The Group has established an ESG structure to ensure that ESG is in
line with the Group’s business strategy and integrated ESG into the

Group’s business operations and decision-making process.

The Board is fully responsible for the Group’s ESG matters, including
formulating strategies, monitoring the Group’s ESG performance,
ensuring the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems, and reviewing and approving the disclosures in the ESG
reports. To promote a consistent ESG management across the Group,
the Group has established an ESG working group (the “ESG Working
Group”) to handle ESG-related matters on behalf of the Board. The
ESG Working Group is composed of senior management and general
staff from different departments including operations, human resources
and finance. The ESG Working Group reports its work progress to the
Board every year and it is responsible for implementing the Group’s
ESG measures, collecting and analyzing ESG information, making
recommendations to the Board on ESG matters, and reviewing ESG-

related matters of different departments of the Group.
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To further enhance the Group’s ESG performance, the Group set
environmental-related targets during the Reporting Period. The Board
reviews the progress of achieving the relevant targets annually and
ensures that the ESG Working Group has sufficient resources to
achieve these targets. The Group believes that through setting targets
and implementing relevant measures, the Group will continue to raise
the environmental, social and governance awareness of employees,
promote behavioral changes, and ultimately integrate the concept of

sustainability into the Group’s operations and development.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s stakeholders refer to groups and individuals that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business or would be affected by the
Group’s business. The Group’s stakeholders include not only internal
directors, management and staff, but also external shareholders and
investors, customers, suppliers and partners, regulators and government
agencies, non-governmental organizations (“NGOs”), media and other

various types of community groups.

The Group is committed to achieve mutual benefits and joint
development with its customers, staff, shareholders and other
stakeholders, so as to benefit the society by sharing the fruits of
its growth. Thus, the engagement of the stakeholders is a crucial
component to the Group’s business development and fulfilment of

corporate social responsibility.

In Year 2021, the Group interacted with stakeholders through a number
of channels on both regular and ad hoc basis. The following are the
communication channels between the Group and different stakeholders
during the Reporting Period, and the expectations and requirements of

stakeholders that the Group understands through these channels:
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Stakeholders Expectations and Requirements Communication channels
& HMEEER BEEE
Directors and Management ° Compliance operation Internal training and seminars
o Economic performance Intranet
Regular meetings
BEENEIRE o Bl MEBE IR &
o BRI BB R
ple
Employees o Remuneration and benefits Internal system
° Development and training Staff meetings
° Employee care Training
° Employee communication Annual meeting
° Occupational health and safety Notice board
8T . HrEN e MEBAE RS
o BERKIEI S8TIgE
. BIMAE b=
o BITER Fg
o BEREERHELE NER
Shareholders and investors ° Return on investment Social media
° Improving product and service Mass media
quality Shareholders’ meetings
° Market position Annual reports, financial reports and
o Compliance operation announcements
o Information transparency Website
° Risk management
° Corporate governance
MRERAIE & E e KREMOW AR
s  RBAERERKES RREE
o TG RS
o ARKE Fl - BHmERLE
. EEEAE wuk
. [l f B 1R
o  (REENR
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Stakeholders
B#HE

Customers

&P

Suppliers and Partners

(TR & R

Regulatory authorities and
government agencies

B ERBBUA S

NGOs and media

FER T AE A AN B
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Expectations and Requirements

HEEER

° Customer privacy protection
° Stable relationship

° Customer service quality

o Business integrity and ethics

° Health and safety

s REFFPLRE
s REBR

s  REEZE

° Business ethics and reputation
° Long-term relationship
o Fair tendering

s BmEREmEEE
o REIBIEEE
o RFHE

° Regulatory compliance
o Policy implementation
o Tax payment

° Responding to national strategies
. BER
J BURAT

o BB
o EEBIZKME

. Environmental protection
° Health and safety

o Giving back to society

° Social welfare

. EBRE
. pEEzs
. DEHE
. HEREA

R o’

Communication channels

BEEE

Mobile applications
Social media

Website

Hotline

Satisfaction survey form
Direct communication
Free R
RS

)

AR
mEERAEX
BEEBER

Direct communication
Regular review
Performance assessment
On-site inspection
HEAR

EHIRrE

BHIRT L

BIGER

Qualification review
Meetings
Direct communication

BHERE
B
= A

BEERBR

Mass media
Mobile applications
Website

Social media

Visits
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The operation of the Group affects our stakeholders who have different
expectations of the Group. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to maintain and enhance its communication with stakeholders, more
extensively collect opinions from stakeholders through various channels,
so as to present the content and information of the ESG reports in a way
that better meets the expectations of stakeholders.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group determines the scope of its ESG disclosures with reference
to the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide. The Board and the
ESG Working Group identify a series of material ESG-related issues by
regularly considering the Group’s business operations and industry
standards, and regularly inviting the Group’s stakeholders to conduct
materiality assessment. The priorities of these material issues are
assessed based on their importance to the sustainable development of
the Group and its stakeholders. The assessment relates to the current
stage of development of the Group and may change in the future. The
following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

By 8
%

AEENEBRETRFNE - MFHEHA
SEHATRAL - KK - AEBEREEES
Whnsg R ERER - BB TRTARREZ
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B o

EEFERTMG

REFERRRE - G NEAMERSINEL
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FERRE  HERERTIE)EEEREE
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BB ARENSN EETEE N HETME -
HEERUZEENBLAFIREHARER LA
FIEAREERNEREE TANZ - 186
Az AR B E AT R AR - SRR
HREE c UTEEAASEERRE e
REAHRBNHE

EERRFEEEE

Materiality Assessment Matrix

Privacy protection and data security

BB REAYEL S

an

Product design and lifecycle management

EmEE REBBEHER

&=

Diversity and equal opportunities

SR FERE

=/
T

Training and development \‘
EIRER

Customer service quality
FEERBRE
Supply chain management
HEEER

TR

PrIEE T RsaHI% T

Prohibition of child Labour and forced labour

Occupational safety and health
BT LR

B

Energy and water saving
B

B2

HEFNE

Countermeasures to climate change

EHERBE

Influence on stakeholder assessment

}/‘ Community engagement
’ HEmem

Emissions management
(exhaust gas and wastewater)

Greenljotfe gas emissions WEE
RE R (BERISK)

Anti-corruption
REE

=/
e

HAREEEBN

Influence on the Group’s business

The Group regards the results of the materiality assessment as an
important indicator for the Group’s future ESG planning and policy
formulation, and continuously promotes the Group’s sustainable
development process based on these material issues.
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ENVIRONMENT
EMISSIONS

As an industry-leading mobile communication and 10T enterprise,
the Group insists on operating its business in an environmentally
responsible manner, adheres to the concept of sustainable development
and adopts various measures to reduce the potential impact of
production and business activities on the environment, so as to achieve
harmonious coexistence between the society, the environment and
different stakeholders. We strive to integrate innovation and green
concepts into the entire product life cycle, as well as the whole process
of research and development, production, logistics and customer
service, and make unremitting efforts to reduce energy consumption,

resource consumption and carbon dioxide emissions.

In view of the global trend of emission reduction, the Group has
established an environmental management policy, including the
“Management Manual” that is in compliance with ISO9001 and
ISO14001, as well as a set of procedures and management measures to

monitor the environmental impact of the Group’s activities.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the “Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and the “Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”. To this
end, the Group regularly evaluates the sources of factory emissions, and
collects data on welding tin emissions and domestic sewage discharge
for monitoring and analysis. In terms of factory air emissions, the Group
turns on the ventilation device over its production line at appropriate
time, organizes qualified entity to monitor the industrial gas outlets,
and regularly inspects and maintains the exhaust pipe to ensure that
the exhaust gas meets the emission standards. The air emissions
from the factory were not significant. The Group’s air emission! mainly
come from the fuel used by vehicles owned by the Group and the air
emissions from the Group’s factories. During the Reporting Period,
the Group generated approximately 0.0445 tonnes of nitrogen oxides,
approximately 0.0002 tonnes of sulphur oxides and approximately
0.0034 tonnes of particulate matter from its own vehicular.

Note:

1. The information with reference to the air emissions data includes but is not
limited to “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange and the “Energy Source
Information Manual” issued by the International Energy Agency.
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The Group’s greenhouse gas emission? mainly derived from, direct

(Scope 1) greenhouse gas emissions from the use of fuels by vehicles

owned by the Group and natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas

used in the staff canteen, and energy indirect (Scope 2) emissions

from purchased electricity. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions amounted to approximately

212.46 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, Scope 2 greenhouse gas

emissions amounted to approximately 10,102.03 tonnes of carbon

dioxide equivalent, and the total greenhouse gas emissions amounted

to approximately 10,314.49 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent. The

average greenhouse gas emissions generated per full-time employees?

was approximately 7.19 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, and the

average carbon dioxide equivalent generated per square foot of factory

area* was approximately 0.012 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent. The

average carbon dioxide equivalent generated per HK$1,000 revenue®

was approximately 0.016 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

Notes:

This information does not include emissions generated by the Group’s
tenants. Greenhouse gas emissions data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and is based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, 2019 baseline
emission factors for regional power grids in China for emission reduction project
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of
China, “Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas
Emissions from Electronic Equipment Manufacturers (Trial)” issued by National
Development and Reform Commission of China, “Gasoline for motor vehicles”
(GB17930-2016) and “Automobile diesel fuels” (GB19147-2016) issued by
Standardization Administration of China, “Global Warming Potential Values”
from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5), and the “Energy Statistics
Manual” issued by the International Energy Agency.

In Year 2021, the number of full-time employees used by the Group to calculate
this greenhouse gas emission intensity was 1,434 as of 31 December 2021,
which will also be used for calculating other intensity data.

In Year 2021, the area used by the Group to calculate this greenhouse gas
emission intensity is the factory area, i.e. approximately 841,475.27 square feet,
which will also be used for calculating other intensity data.

In Year 2021, the revenue used by the Group to calculate this greenhouse
gas emission intensity was the revenue generated from the handsets and 10T
terminals business and the electronics manufacturing services business, i.e.
approximately HK$662,728,000, which will also be used for calculating other

intensity data.
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The Group set its target for greenhouse gas emissions for the first
time during the Reporting Period, aiming to reduce the greenhouse
gas emission intensity (tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/HK$1,000
revenue) by 5% by 2025 as compared to the level in Year 2021. To
achieve the target, the Group actively adopts electricity saving and
energy saving measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, including
strict control on the use of air conditioners, lighting facilities and office
appliances. Specific measures will be described in the section headed

“Use of Resources”.

In addition, the Group has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations and has formulated safe operating procedures for the
collection and storage of hazardous waste. The waste generated should
be placed in special collection points and temporarily stored by trained
specialists in temporary storage of hazardous waste equipped with fire
extinguishers, storage boxes and water sources. The Group also has
stringent requirements and rules for the disposal of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. The Group would only enter into agreements
in relation to waste disposal with companies that meet its standards.
The Group collects the relevant licences of such companies, such as
business license, the Shanghai Dangerous Materials Business License,

Road Transportation License of the PRC.

In addition, as the Group actively implements policy on pollution,
emission and wastage reduction, it has signed certain relevant
undertakings with the suppliers. The suppliers also actively cooperate
in minimizing unnecessary plastic packaging of some components
and parts. The Group also requests the suppliers to recycle and reuse
certain packaging materials. During the Reporting Period, the Group
generated approximately 1.00 tonnes of 900-041-49 hazardous waste
(waste packaging materials, containers, etc.), and the total amount
of hazardous waste was approximately 1.00 tonnes. The average
hazardous waste generated per full-time employee was approximately
0.70 kg, the hazardous waste generated per square foot of factory area
was approximately 0.0012 kg, and the hazardous waste generated per
HK$1,000 revenue was approximately 0.0015 kg; For non-hazardous
waste®, the Group produced approximately 20.48 tonnes of waste
paper boards and approximately 30.60 tonnes of waste plastics. The
total amount of non-hazardous waste was approximately 51.08 tonnes.
The average amount of non-hazardous waste generated per full-
time employee was approximately 35.62 kg, the average amount of
non-hazardous waste generated per square foot of factory area was
approximately 0.061 kg, and the non-hazardous waste generated per

HK$1,000 revenue was approximately 0.077 kg.
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Note:

6. This information includes the non-hazardous waste generated by the Group’s
tenants.

The Group set its waste targets for the first time during the Reporting
Period, and targets to reduce the intensity (kg per HK$1,000 revenue)
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste generation by 5% in 2025
compared to the level in Year 2021. The Group reduces the generation
of hazardous waste through the adoption of automated testing robots,
technological innovation, replacement of aging equipment, personnel
integration, and addition of automated assembly lines. The Group also
entrusts qualified companies to use special hazardous waste disposal

vehicles for transportation and disposal of hazardous waste.

In Year 2021, the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that had a significant impact on
the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is of the view that efficient use of resources is one of the
development priorities in sustainable development. Thus, improving
the efficiency of resources utilization not only enhances environmental
performance, but also lowers cost and optimizes operational efficiency

in the long run.

The Group’s main energy consumption’ comes from direct energy
consumption of fuel, natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas used by
vehicles, and indirect energy consumption from purchased electricity.
During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed approximately
441.58 MWh of direct energy, approximately 11,662.22 MWh of indirect
energy, and the total energy consumption was approximately 12,103.80
MWh. The average energy consumption per full-time employee was
approximately 8.44 MWh, the average energy consumption per square
foot of factory area was approximately 0.014 MWh, and the average
energy consumption per HK$1,000 revenue was approximately 0.018
MWh.
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Note:

7. This information does not include emissions generated by the Group’s
tenants. The data used in the calculation of energy consumption conversion
include, but are not limited to: How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange and
the “Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas
Emissions from Electronic Equipment Manufacturers (Trial)” issued by National
Development and Reform Commission of China.

The Group set up its electricity consumption target for the first
time during the Reporting Period, which was to reduce the energy
consumption intensity (kWh per HK$1,000 revenue) by 5% in 2025 as
compared to the level in Year 2021. To achieve this target, the Group
has strengthened internal efforts on the promotion and control measures
of water and energy conservation. For example, it reduced electricity
consumption of air conditioners in winter by utilising the residual heat of
patch production lines, while adopting cold-water air-conditioning and

energy saving lighting systems in summer.

The Group maintains strict compliance with the “Directive on the
Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical
and Electronic Equipment” (“ROHS”) and “Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals” (“REACH”) in product
design and manufacturing, so that its products meet the environmental

quality standards for exportation to the European Union.
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The Group consumes water that is supplied by the municipal tap water
company and did not encounter any issues in sourcing water that was
fit for purpose. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total water
consumption® was approximately 99,658.50 cubic meters, the average
water consumption per full-time employee was approximately 69.50
cubic meters, the average water consumption per square foot of factory
area was approximately 0.12 cubic meters, and the water consumption
per HK$1,000 revenue was approximately 0.15 cubic meters. The main

water efficiency initiatives of the Group are as follows:

Note:

8. This information does not include energy consumption of the Group’s tenants.

° We do a good job in energy and water conservation promotion
and education, so that every employee of the Group can fully
understand the importance of water conservation, their sense
of responsibility is enhanced, and we widely encourage every
employee to actively and consciously achieve and develop a habit

of water conservation;

o Promote the use of water-saving sanitary ware in the Group to

reduce waste and save water; and

o A regular inspection system has been established, and designated
personnel are responsible for inspecting and recording the water
supply facilities within the Group to ensure normal use of water
by the Group. If problems are found, measures will be taken to

prevent water leakage in a timely manner.

The Group set up the target of water consumption for the first time
during the Reporting Period, which was to: reduce the water intensity
(m3/HK$1,000 revenue) by 5% in 2025 as compared to the level in Year
2021.
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As for the consumption of packaging materials, the recyclable
packaging containers and packaging component materials of all the
Group’s finished products have identification marks and their labels
meet the requirements of “GB/T 18455-2010 Packaging Recycling
Marks”. In Year 2021, the Group consumed a total of approximately
17.27 tonnes of packaging materials for finished mobile phones, and
the total packaging materials used for finished mobile phones® per unit

was approximately 0.019 kg.

Note:

9. In Year 2021, the Group calculated the packaging material intensity by using
approximately 891,000 mobile phone finished products.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The factories of the Group are primarily engaged in manufacturing
handsets, 10T terminals and EMS, the process of which may give rise
to noise pollution and chemical leakage. To reduce the impact of noise
pollution and to aim at complying with the noise emission industry
standards, the Group educates employees on the prevention of diseases
caused by noise pollution, supervises employees to equip themselves
with the necessary ear plugs, earmuffs, cotton balls and other protective
equipments at work. At the same time, the Group also regularly
monitors the noise in the workplace. In terms of chemical leakage
management, the Group has also formulated a series of management
measures, including checking whether there is any sign of chemical
leakage and ground hardening at any time. Once a chemical leakage
is found, the Group will rectify it in a timely manner in accordance with
its Chemical or Oil Leakage Emergency Plan. In addition, the Group
has also established relevant guidelines for the collection, storage and
transfer of hazardous waste, and regularly inspects the disposal of waste
chemicals. In Year 2021, the Group did not identify any issues related

to chemical leakage.
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In order to minimize the environmental impact of its business
activities, the Group has a number of procedures in place, namely
the “SC22-QP5.04 Procedures for Identification, Evaluation and
Control of Environmental Factors” and “SC22-QP5.06 Procedures for
Identification, Evaluation and Control of Laws and Regulations and Other
Requirements”, so as to ensure the effective implementation of the

environmental protection system.

The Group has also established the “SC22-QP8.10 Monitoring,
Measurement and Control Procedures for Environment and
Occupational Health and Safety” to closely monitor and assess the
environmental impact of its business activities, so as to facilitate timely
identification, monitoring and management of material environmental
issues. The Group also ensures that all products designed and
manufactured are in compliance with the requirements under the
internal document “SC22-042 Restricted Use of Hazardous Substances
Management Regulation”. To reduce impact on the environment and
natural resources, all of the production processes of the Group are in
compliance with the ROHS green standards, including the utilisation of
materials that are of ROHS green standards in the process of mounting
with the surface mount technology, the testing of printed circuit board

assembly and the assembling and packaging process.

The Group adopts a green management system in various business
aspects, including research and development, resources development,
standardization of materials, supplier management, product
development and quality management, and establishes green indicators
to enhance the safety, environmental friendliness and energy saving
performance of its products, services and operations, as well as to

facilitate effective utilization of resources.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

R - AEBERHIE TP XM (SC22-
QP5.04RF AR A MFEIEHIZF) K&
(SC22-QP5.06/A R A LM HE b 22 5K 58 5l A0 =¥
EBEHIEF)  BAEEELZMNREZE A
) WRBEERRREEFREERE -

AREEFIE T (SC22-QP8. 105 F MMk 3 2 7
ZEERMEEGEF) - BOBRBLFE
EBHIBROTE  DIRREEHA - BTk
ERERNIRFEE - AEETERERR
HEMERITA R (SC22-026FY
ERAEEGE)NER - AEBEMBNE
EBIETimEROHSE BB - BEANUER
RGBT P~ EDRIE AR AR AR Al S B
MERIEP MESKBRTANYHRENSE
ROHSHR B E K - FHEHRE R RAEIRA

By 488
TR -

AEEEETRAFECERRBRE - S
% ARME  MRHREL HERER  E
miE  mEERFEFHMARCEEER
WHHIRE T TRENZEES - (BEER - R
BMELNZE - RIR - 806E - (TEBRAVER
BEMMA



The Group strictly follows and implements the requirements and
standards of various laws and regulations of the European Union such
as ROHS and REACH. The Group has also set up internal management
standards in compliance with the national limits on toxic and hazardous
substances in electronic information products in the PRC. In addition,
the Group has introduced comprehensive assessment procedures for
new materials that take into account the environmental requirements,
their price and quality. The Group estimates the feasibility of designing
using green materials when sample raw materials are delivered and
attaches extra care and attention to the specification of restricted
materials in design, research and development, so as to minimize the use

of restricted materials.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The impact of global climate change on the global ecology and different
industries is becoming increasingly significant, and the Group is fully
aware that climate change will affect its business operations in different
aspects. Therefore, while practicing green and low-carbon operations,
the Group has incorporated climate-related topics into its internal control
procedures, and formulated climate change policies to identify, monitor
and manage climate change-related risks, assess relevant impacts, and
formulate response strategies. Based on these policy procedures, the

Group has identified the following climate-related risks:

Physical risks

First of all, climate change has brought about more frequent and more
severe extreme weather events such as typhoons, floods, heavy rains,
etc., which may cause interruptions to transportation services, resulting
in delays in delivery of raw materials and the Group’s products. At the
same time, the rising global temperature may lead to an increase in
electricity consumption in the production process, which will in turn
drive up the cost of raw materials. The Group’s supply chain may be
adversely affected in view of the possible increase in raw material costs
and transportation disruptions due to climate change. In addition,
flooding caused by extreme weather or rising sea levels may also cause

physical damage to the operating sites owned by the Group, increasing
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the Group’s maintenance, disaster response and insurance related
expenses. In serious cases, the normal operation of the Group may be
affected, and the personal safety of employees may also be threatened.
If the Group does not deal with such incidents properly, it may also have

a negative impact on the Group’s reputation.

In response to these physical risks, the Group has purchased insurance
for employees and its related assets to protect related interests and
reduce potential financial losses. In addition, the Group has backed
up the IT system and job-related files stored on the server and off-
site locations to minimise the potential impact of business interruption
events and their impact on the Group’s business. In addition, the Group
reviews and updates its business continuity plan on a regular basis to
ensure the normal operation and proper execution of core business

functions in case of any significant events.

Transition risk

In addition to the physical risks mentioned above, the Group is also
exposed to transition risks arising from the transition to low-carbon
economy. The transition to low-carbon economy, which is subject to
constantly evolving and more stringent environmental regulations,
and the related innovations in energy-saving materials, processes and
methods of operation, may lead to an increase in the cost of goods and
services. Such transition risk may increase the cost of raw materials
used by and production of the Group. In addition, more stringent
environmental laws and regulations may increase the risk of claims and
litigation arising from its failure to comply with compliance requirements,
which may in turn affect the Group’s reputation. As a result of these
risks, the Group’s related capital investment and compliance costs may

also increase.
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In response to these transition risks, the Group regularly monitors
current and emerging climate-related trends, policies and regulations,
and is prepared to alert senior management where necessary to avoid
reputational risk arising from increased costs, non-compliance fines
or delayed response. The Group has also set targets to reduce energy
consumption and greenhouse gas emissions in Year 2021 to facilitate
the Group’s sustainable development progress. In addition, the Group
also actively explores low-carbon and energy-saving materials and
production methods in order to seize any opportunities arose during the
transition to low-carbon economy and to maintain competitiveness in

the market.

SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards its employees as its greatest asset. Thus, it fully
respects and protects their legitimate rights by establishing relevant
rules and systems. The Group issues the “Staff Manual” to employees
when they join the Group to ensure they are fully aware of their rights
and duties.

The Group treats all employees equally and provides them with
opportunities to develop their talents. When recruiting new staff, the
Group comprehensively analyses and gives fair consideration to each
applicant’s knowledge, abilities, experience, integrity, health conditions
and suitability to the position. As for remuneration and promotion,
the Group takes into account the abilities, efficiency, development of
abilities and knowledge as well as future development potential of each
employee based on his/her performance evaluation, thereby offering
employees the appropriate remuneration and development. The Group is
of the view that diversity in gender, culture, background and experience
will bring vitality and creativity to the development of the Company. The
Group has implemented related policies on compensation and dismissal,
working hours and holidays and anti-discrimination in compliance with
the relevant laws of the PRC and Hong Kong as stated in the section of
“Labour Standards” in this Report, such as providing sufficient notice
upon dismissal, providing statutory compensation and holidays. The
Group is also against discrimination on the grounds of religion, race
or gender, details of which are set out in the “Staff Manual”. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any non-compliance
relating to employment issues.
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In Year 2021, the Group was not aware of any incidents of non- RIZEZ—F  BEAKEMAN BEAREEA
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant BEEFRE - BEMEA « T - RKERRH -
impact on the Group relating to compensation and dismissal, FE#E - Ll - RERAREAMTZEIE
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal M B AEEBSEAFENERBBEEEE
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and REM -

welfare.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 1,651 employees. R-Z-—F+-_A=+—Hit KEEHXAF

The number and proportion of employees by gender, employment type,

age group and geographical region are as follows:

Gender

g3z

Male
B
Female

oyl

Employment type
EEER

Full-time
Temporary/part-time

S 34

Age Group
FipER

Under 30 years old
305RIA TR

30 - 50 years old
30 - 50%%

Over 50 years old
FB3A505%

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

1,651 28T » 15 - BEAE - FEAAR
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Number of employees
BT A

979

672

Number of employees

BT AH

1,434

217

Number of employees

BT A

908

705

38

Percentage (%)
B (%)

59.3

40.7

Percentage (%)

B (%)

86.9

13.1

Percentage (%)

B (%)

55.0

42.7
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Region Number of employees Percentage (%)
HE ETAH B2 H(%)
Mainland China 1,648 99.8
Fp K

Hong Kong 3 0.2
PEIEE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s turnover rate was approximately RZBZ—F+ZA=+—H1E - *EE0R
37.1%. The employee turnover rate by gender, age group and KL B37.1% - 1=MER - FhE R Kb E
geographical region is as follows: AHRIBETMARNT -

Gender

3]

Male
St
Female

ogid

Age Group
FHAa Al

Under 30 years old

3055 AT
30 - 50 years old
30 - 50%%
Over 50 years old
B3A505%

Region
&

Mainland China
PN

Hong Kong
HREIESE

Number of employee turnover

REETAE
367
244

Number of employee turnover

REETAE

300

310

Number of employee turnover
RERETAH

611

Turnover rate (%) 1°

REER(%) 10

375

36.3

Turnover rate (%)

MEE(%)

33.0

44.0

2.6

Turnover rate (%)

TKE(%)

37.1
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Note:

10. All turnover rates of the Group are calculated by dividing the total number of
employees in the category who left the Group in Year 2021 by the total number
of employees in the category as of 31 December 2021.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

In product design and manufacturing, the Group attaches great
significance to the aspects of product quality and safety, environmental
protection, energy conservation, comprehensive utilization of resources
and public health. It adopts a green management system to ensure a
safe workplace for staff and protects them from occupational hazards.
The Group has also developed robust monitoring and assessment
procedures in relation to environmental protection and occupational
safety and health. According to relevant procedures, the Human
Resources and Administration Department is responsible for the
supervision and inspection of the prevention of fire and danger,
hazardous substances and safe production, as well as the regular
assessment of compliance with laws and regulations, cooperating with
the supervision, review and assessment of the government and relevant
departments, as well as the inspection of labor discipline, position and
staffing, and the awareness and training of employees and related
parties. The Manufacturing Department is responsible for the safety
management of production sites, daily supervision and inspection of
environmental and occupational health and safety conditions and safety
of production equipment. The person in charge of each department also
regularly conducts self-inspection and supervises the implementation
and effectiveness of the environmental and occupational health and

safety activities of the relevant department.

The Group acts in a socially responsible manner and takes responsibility
for its staff's health and safety. It maintains strict compliance with laws
and regulations while adopting a “green” management approach. It
also diligently implements the ISO9001:2008 quality management
standards, 1SO14001:2004 environmental management standards,
IS045001:2008 occupational health and safety management standards
and ROHS directive.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded no lost days due to
work injury. In addition, there were no work-related fatalities recorded in

the past three years including the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases and the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance of Hong Kong that would have a significant impact on

the Group.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group advocates the corporate culture of “attracting talents with
success and pursuing success with talents”, which promotes staff
enhancement driven by business growth while supporting corporate
development with staff enrichment. The Group has a comprehensive
training system in place that establishes a network-based career
path for its employees. It also creates ample learning opportunities
and a knowledge sharing environment for its staff through a series
of measures, including position and ability management, skills
enhancement programme, various training opportunities, online learning
programme, internal promotion system, key employees development
programme, succession plans for key positions and leadership
development programme. Such comprehensive training system allows
employees to improve their abilities comprehensively and acquire more
opportunities of personal development in the process of promoting the

development of the Group.

The Human Resources Department keeps a personnel file for each
employee since the day of interview. Meanwhile, the Group’s internal
human resources consultants carry out career planning through
communication with staff. Depending on the development needs of
different departments and businesses, career plans of the employees
are subject to changes from time to time. In terms of staff education and
training, on one hand, the Group offers generic courses and trainings
based on the operational needs and job requirements; on the other
hand, it customises employees’ career planning by offering focused

courses and trainings.
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The Group provides company-level and departmental-level courses and
training to its employees. In addition, it arranges external courses and
training largely based on the stages of development of the employees.
Junior staff and technical management personnel are offered with
various trainings on technology and skills which primarily address the
operational needs and project requirements of the Company. In most
cases, employees are able to tackle actual problems at work after they
have completed the training. Hence such training enable employees to
achieve growth and enhance skills as well as resolving work problems.
For managerial positions, company-level training are offered in general,
where staff members are equipped with management skills required for

their positions through training that address specific issues at work.

Apart from internal training, the Group also invites external trainers to
conduct training and arranges out-of-office trainings, as well as going
out and utilising external faculty to meet the training needs of the Group.
The multidimensional, multi-perspective and multi-tiered training system
allows staff members to attain their goals in relation to operational

needs, career development and skills enhancement.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of male and female
employees trained of the Group was 100%, with an average training
hour of approximately 6 hours, while the percentage of management,
managers and general employees trained was 100%, with an average

training hour of approximately 6 hours.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is committed to taking up social responsibilities. It complies
with and incorporates relevant laws and regulations into the rules and
codes of the Group. Apart from the “Staff Manual”, the procedures of
the Group also stipulate specific requirements on prevention of child and
forced labour. To prevent child labour, the Group has clearly specified
that all employees must be 18 years old or above in its recruitment
and employment management system. In order to protect employees’
entitlement on rest hours and holidays, it has expressly stipulated
relevant provisions relating to working hours, rest hours and holidays,
labour protection and working conditions in the employment contracts
and attendance system. The Group currently implements a five-day
work scheme with 8 working hours per day, and prohibits forced labour
and forced overtime work. When any violation is discovered, the Group
will promptly investigate and report the investigation to the management
for appropriate punishment or dismissal. If necessary, the Group will

further improve the labour mechanism for violations.

The Group follows the relevant employment regulations, policies and
guidelines of the jurisdictions in which it operates, including but not
limited to the “Employment Ordinance”, “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong
Kong and the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the
PRC” and “Law on the Protection of Persons with Disabilities of the
PRC” in the PRC, to protect the human rights of the employees and

prevent child and forced labour.

In Year 2021, the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the Group relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group requires upstream suppliers to follow its policies on
environmental protection and sustainable development. To uphold
the Group’s reputation, suppliers are requested to give undertakings
regarding environmental protection requirements as well as health,
safety and social responsibility standards.

In order to ensure the implementation of environmental protection,
health and safety measures, the Group has established the “Supplier
Evaluation and Control Procedure”, “Procurement Control Procedure”
and “New Materials Introduction Procedure” and requires the
suppliers to abide by the relevant policies accordingly. Pursuant to the
procedures, the Group will inspect and evaluate each of the suppliers
to monitor and ensure their compliance with the relevant standards,
laws and regulations. In case where suppliers are in breach of such
regulations or standards, they will be removed from the suppliers list
of the Group unless they rectify the breaches within a prescribed time

limit.

The Group attaches great significance to the management of potential
environmental and social risks in the supply chain. In the procurement
process, the Group evaluates the environmental and social performance
of suppliers to ensure that suppliers understand the social, ethical
and environmental issues related to their business, and requires major
suppliers to have a management system to deal with relevant issues
and risks. In addition, the Group is committed to supporting the local
economy and giving priority to local suppliers to reduce carbon footprint
during transportation. The Group also has strict requirements for
selecting and evaluating qualified green suppliers, and has established
a management system for suppliers’ environment and hazardous
substances matters, implemented a special inspection and evaluation
process, required suppliers to provide green compliance test reports
and hazardous substance data summary forms, and sign the Green
Supplier Commitment Letter to ensure that the materials supplied must
meet the requirements of restricted substances. The Group will continue
to review regularly the performance of its suppliers along the supply
chain and the environmental and social standards in order to minimise
the potential environmental and social risks in the supply chain.
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In Year 2021, the Group had a total of 664 major suppliers. All major
suppliers passed the review of the above practices during the Reporting
Period. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
major suppliers having any significant negative impact on business

ethics, environmental protection, human rights and labour practices.

Number of suppliers of the Group by geographical location:

Location of suppliers

HEmitE

PRC B K e
Hong Kong, China PEIES
Taiwan, China A&
Other countries HABR

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has always been customer-oriented, actively developing
products in multiple fields, focusing on industry applications, and
creating 5G + Al scenario solutions, including but not limited to express
logistics, financial payment, aviation and heavy industry inspection,
smart home, police affairs, elderly care management, education,
medical health, among other fields. In addition, the Group independently
developed a big data platform to provide customers in various industries

with integrated “cloud + terminal” system solutions.

The Group and its products received the following honours during the

Reporting Period:

° The Group was awarded the title of “Outstanding Contribution
Enterprise” in the IOT industry at the IOT Exhibition 2021

° The Group was awarded the “Smart Manufacturing Pilot
Demonstration Unit” by the Ministry of Industry and Information

Technology
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° Our U3 Police Video and Audio Recorder was awarded the

“Contemporary Good Design Award”

° Our FD Project won the Innovation Award at the International

Consumer Electronics Exhibition 2022

The Group strives to ensure product safety. The Group’s main
businesses, namely handsets and 10T terminals business, EMS
business, I0T system and operation business, as well as the intelligent
manufacturing business, place product safety as their first priority. In
the course of production, the Group always adheres to stringent product
quality and control standards, so as to maintain product quality and
safety as well as compliance with the ISO9001 quality management
standards. In addition, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited and Shanghai
Simcom Limited, subsidiaries of the Group, also successfully passed the
review of IATF16949: 2016 product quality management system for the
design and production of wireless communication modules and voice
communication terminal products during the Reporting Period. During
the Reporting Period, none of the products produced by the Group and

sold was recalled for safety and health reasons.

The Group values customers’ feedback and complaints, which serve
as an important reference to improve and enhance product quality and
corporate competitiveness. The group has a set of rules and procedures
designed for managing customers and product complaints, which are
handled by a dedicated department. Customer feedback received
during the course of product design, research and development is usually
addressed in a timely manner. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not receive any material complaints regarding product quality and

services.
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In relation to observing and protecting intellectual property rights,
the Group has assigned dedicated personnel to take charge of the
management of intellectual property, maintenance of a list of intellectual
property, filing and classification of intellectual property based on its
actual value-creating potential, materiality to the Group’s development
and maintenance costs. The Group has its own intellectual property
data platform, enabling it to closely monitor the latest international
and domestic developments so as to avoid waste of resources due
to repeated research efforts and prevent infringement of intellectual
property rights. The Group recognises the importance of safeguarding
the Group’s interests by the comprehensive utilisation of intellectual
property rights. With reference to cost and expected return analysis,
the Group applies for registration of intellectual property rights that
may have material impact on the Group, such as trademarks, patents,
copyrights and domains, thereby protecting the Company’s interests
as far as possible. When cooperating with other entities or individuals,
provisions regarding the ownership, scope of authorisation, term,
allocation of subsequent research outcomes of the intellectual property
involved are set out in detail in the relevant legal documents to be
entered into between the Group and other entities or individuals. In
practice, the comprehensive utilisation of intellectual property rights

effectively protects the interests of the Group.

The Group has established regulations on product quality assurance
and recall procedures. The Group has established various control
procedures for design, development and production processes, such as
“Environmental and Occupational Health Monitoring and Measurement
Control Procedures” and control procedures for logistics, storage,
packaging, protection and delivery, which sets out the requirements
for raw materials, auxiliary materials, packaging materials, semi-
finished products and various inspection items of finished products,
inspection methods and contents. Its Inspection Department, New
Product Introduction Department and Manufacturing Department
also follow rigorous quality assurance procedures to facilitate timely
identification of quality issues and hidden risks by such departments.
These departments will also address those issues promptly, if any, to

ensure the product pass rate is in compliance with the contractual
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requirements. In recent years, the Group has also actively carried out
digital transformation and recorded all the data of each procedure in
the production process in the database to achieve process traceability.
Through big data analysis and mining, the direction of improving
product quality is exported. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations

relating to product and service quality.

The Group’s policies in connection with advertising and labelling of the
Group’s products and services are in compliance with all the laws and
regulations, such as “Advertising Law in the PRC” and “Law of the PRC
on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”, to ensure that they are
not misleading to the Group’s customers. The Group provides users with
clear instructions manual and labels to facilitate their understanding of
its products. In Year 2021, the Group was not aware of any matters of
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters concerning the Group’s products and services.

The Group puts great emphasis on information security and
confidentiality, especially those related to clients and consumers. The
“Staff Manual” sets out strict and clear regulations on confidentiality,
intellectual property, business rules, professional ethics of employees,
conflict of interests and relevant awards and penalties. In addition, the
Group has also established the “Information Security and Confidentiality
Regulation”, which includes details of related descriptions and
requirements of information security and confidentiality so as to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations such as “Regulations
of the PRC on the Prohibition of Infringements upon Trade Secrets” and
“Regulations of the PRC for Safety Protection of Computer Information
Systems”. All employees have entered into information security and
confidentiality agreements with the Group, under which they are
obliged to keep the information of clients and customers private and
confidential. Every year, the Group organises a number of trainings on
confidentiality, ensuring that every staff member is involved and trained.
The information department of the Group attaches great importance
to the security of the information system. Thus, dedicated personnel is
assigned for the system’s maintenance to ensure a safe and effective
operation of the system.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The “Business and Ethics Requirements Control Procedure”,
“Anticorruption Operation Control Procedure” and Rule 2.15 of the
“Staff Manual” of the Group set out its anti-corruption rules and
guidelines. The legal affairs department of the Group supervises the
implementation of procedures with reference to relevant standards and
legal requirements, such as “Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery” while the human resources and administration department
of the Group handles complaints of behaviours that are in breach of
the Group’s rules and regulations on anti-corruption, with the aim of
stopping unethical behaviour arising from the Company’s operation.
During the Reporting Period, the Directors and employees of the Group
received relevant anti-corruption training courses. Through the relevant
training, the Directors and employees at different levels have more
clearly defined their corresponding roles and responsibilities in anti-
corruption and business ethics, as well as the precautions for compliant

operation.

The Group has in place detailed whistle-blowing procedures. Employees
can report any fraudulent activities for seeking illegitimate benefits
by means of telephone, email, letter, etc. The Audit Department is
responsible for managing the relevant reports, conducting internal
assessments, carrying out investigations and preparing written records,
and reporting the investigation results to the management or the Board
in a timely manner for proper handling. The “Whistle-blowing Policy”
also ensures the protection of whistleblowers, including confidentiality of
identity and personal information, against reprisal for reporting in good
faith.
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The Group also has set out detailed regulations and clear requirements
on anti-corruption, prevention and investigation of bribery, extortion
and money laundering, in the “Staff Manual”. It also implements the

following measures to fight against corruption:

1. enhance promotional efforts to create a suitable environment for

efficiency monitoring;

2. improve investigation and adopt active monitoring in replacement
of passive monitoring. The Group focuses on monitoring key
areas in production and operation, such as major projects,
material procurement, waste disposal and writing off of bad and
doubtful debts, thereby further enhancing efficiency monitoring
on specific issues. The Group also actively participates in major
management activities so as to gather information on operational

and management decision-making and implementation;

3. establish rules and procedures for comprehensive governance,
with a view of treating both the symptoms and the root cause

instead of just treating the symptoms; and

4. attach importance on rectification, directly identify and close the

loopholes in management through investigation and prevention.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or

other employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, including but not limited to the Criminal Law of
the PRC, the Company Law of the PRC, the Bidding Law of the PRC, the
Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC and the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong that would have a significant impact on the

Group.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group has a long-standing commitment to serving the community
and creating positive value, and has established a community
investment policy to encourage the Group’s employees to actively
participate in social and community activities, understand the needs
of the society where they are located, and create effective and lasting
benefits for the community by considering community investment.
Ms. Yeung Man Ying, the Chairman of the Board of the Group, was
a recipient of the China Charity Award which was awarded by the
Ministry of Civil Affairs of the PRC in recognition of her outstanding
achievement to support the community. During the Reporting Period,
the Group donated RMB1,000,000 to Shanghai Zhou Liang Fu Medical
Development Foundation to promote medical development and help
more patients in need. In addition, the Group’s employees contributued
a total of approximately 44 hours of community service in Year 2021,
and actively participated in a wide range of community and charity
activities, including volunteer activities at China International Import
Expo, on-site volunteer activities for COVID-19 vaccination and various

cultural and sports activities organised by other communities.
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THE CONTENT INDEX OF “ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING
GUIDE"” OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG

KONG LIMITED
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Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Section/Statement

BREIN RS E

BB

Governance Structure

Environmental, Social and

Governance Structure

ERRE RIE - LB RERRE
Reporting Principles Reporting Standard
SRR A AR

Reporting Scope Reporting Scope
RREE HEHE

Aspects, General Disclosures
and Key Performance Indicators

Description

Section/Statement

BE - —REBERBRERER

P
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

ik

A R

Aspect Al: Emissions

BEAL : BEm4

General Disclosure

Information on:
(a)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Emission

—MHE R BRERIAEREEM - KR THAHES - BERES | KW
BEEVREESH
(@) BE: &k
(b) EFHFITABERTENRBEEELROINER -
KPI'Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emission
FARENIEIZEALL PE g AR BEE L 213,87
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Aspects, General Disclosures Description Section/Statement

and Key Performance Indicators
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KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Emission
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

RSB RUEIRAL2 B (HED) RebREEE (FBE2) R ERELNE CANEETE) | BE
RuEm) mE (A SEEEN - BIEREAE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emission
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

SEEIEFEALS FIELEEEEYRE UEHE) R (ER) BE (AT | By
EEBA - BEREHE)

KPI Al1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Emission
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BSEESIEIRALA FEERZEEYRE UEE) R (ER) ZE (AT | By
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KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target (s) set and steps taken to Emission
achieve them.
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KPI'Al1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are | Emission
handled, and a description of reduction target (s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EHA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

Use of Resources
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Aspects, General Disclosures Description Section/Statement
and Key Performance Indicators
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KPI'A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in” 000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

Use of Resources

BB IR IRA2.1
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KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Use of Resources
production volume, per facility).
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KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target (s) set and steps | Use of Resources
taken to achieve them.
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KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Use of Resources
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target (s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

RS AEIEIRA2.4 AR EGE AR E R B EIfERE - AR PTET S K | BIRE A
BIERREDEL BRI 8 -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Use of Resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EEA3 : RERARER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

The Environment and
Natural Resources
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BRIERRRER
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Aspects, General Disclosures Description Section/Statement
and Key Performance Indicators
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KPI'A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

The Environment and
Natural Resources
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Aspect A4: Climate Change

EHA4 : RiIREL

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

Climate Change

— MR BRIREHEERATREGHBEITAEEZENEARIZIEA | RIKEE
EERBUR °
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Climate Change

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
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Aspect B1: Employment

EEBL : EE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Employment
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KPIB1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full-or part-time), age group and geographical region.

Employment
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BRI - HEREBRSE

Aspects, General Disclosures Description Section/Statement

and Key Performance Indicators

BHE - —REERERERISE |#Hd =5, 88

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region.

FRERUEEBL.2 IR FERARIRMEE S HEERKLLE - =

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

BEB2 : BEHEZ2

General Disclosure

Information on:
(a)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

the past three years including the reporting year.

—REHEER FRREZETHERERREREBEBELEEN R 2
(@ BXE: R
(b) BFHBITABERZEZOEEERZLBOEER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of | Health and Safety

B EMIEIEB2.1

BETF (BEEREE) SFAT T HABRRILE -

Rz

WA TR BRI R R 216 - U RBRESITRERT
Ao

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety

RARENIEIEB2.2 ERIEEATIEAS - 2R R

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

RSB NIE1EB2.3 fREREZ S

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : #EKIE

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

Development and

E o

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. | Training
—REHRER ERRAEE BT TIEBE M A LR MBUR o s sl | 2R RIE
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Aspects, General Disclosures Description Section/Statement
and Key Performance Indicators
BHE - —REERERENISE |#H =5,/ 88

KPI B3.1

The percentage of employees trained by gender and

Development and

employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Training
management).
RSB RUEIEB3.1 R REESRNESREERE FREER) EHHZI | BREE

BEBODL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category Training
RARAERUEIREB3.2 RIURIREEEMNES  BEEETHZ N FHRE BREKEI
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : % T X8|
General Disclosure Information on: Labor Standards
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
— AR ER B IEETHEHIATIH BT AER
(@ BE: R
(b) BFHBITABERZEOEBERELRONER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labor Standards
avoid child and forced labour.
BB RUEIEBA.1 AR T BEE B PR FE e AR R EE T K58 45 T o 45 TAER]
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | Labor Standards
discovered.
RARREEBUEIEBA.2 MR BIR BRI ER A ISP ERER R 2258 BT AR
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS5 : {HAEEEE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Supply Chain
supply chain. Management
— MR EIRHEREIRIE R G RRBUE - HEEEEIR

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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BRI - HEREBRSE

Aspects, General Disclosures Description Section/Statement

and Key Performance Indicators

BHE - —REERERERISE |#Hd =5, 88

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain

Management

RS AR B 1EB5.1 it B D e EEEE o AT

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

RS AE B 1EB5.2 fat A R A ERRIB I - mEIITE BENIR RS | fEEE R
B - DARABBEIT REER A% -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply Chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored.

RS 4 B 1EB5.3 A B R S TR B Y IR IR Mt @ R A 1B 01 - DA | fHAESEE IR
RABERITRER . -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, Management
and how they are implemented and monitored.

R4 IETEB5.4 M RRHER R E ARRE R KRGHED - UKk | fEEER
ERERITREER T ©

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

Product Responsibility

—RIE

BREFRHRERNRENREREZ S - BE  RERLALES
BRI ER

(@ HE: Kk

(b) EFHETABEAVEMNBEERRONER -

R
2o
pil
0
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Aspects, General Disclosures Description Section/Statement
and Key Performance Indicators
BHE - —REERERENISE |#H =5,/ 88

KPI B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.

Product Responsibility

FASAA A FE15B6.1

EEADEXERBBTRAL 2 EEFIEAMABRKNE D
L o

EmEE

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received | Product Responsibility
and how they are dealt with.

RIBAERUEIRB6.2 BRI E m MR EIRR B B AR 0% - EmEE

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Product Responsibility
intellectual property rights.

R ERUETB6.3 i R T R ARPE S B A V1B - EmEE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Responsibility
procedures.

RSB BUIEIEB6.4 VS 242 RIE RE R BIBIEF o EmEE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Product Responsibility
how they are implemented and monitored.

RIBAERUEIRB6.5 EmEE

WIUEEEERRERALBEE - ARBERITRERS
E e

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Anti-Corruption

—RIEE

B ILEEE - R - MFFREREMN
(@ BE: Rk
(b) EBFHBITABERFENHREEEREMNNER -

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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BRI - HEREBRSE

Aspects, General Disclosures Description Section/Statement
and Key Performance Indicators
BHE - —REERERERISE |#Hd =5, 88

KPI B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

Anti-Corruption

BB IE1RBT .1

RERPALH BT ASEBBRHN D EENETRARM
MBI E K ARAARER

RES

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-Corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

RRERUEEBRT .2 AP I R R HIE R - A RAEREIMIT REER Ak o k&S

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-Corruption
and staff.

RARERUEERT .3 HimESERE TRENRESHFI RES

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

[BHEBS : HE®RE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

Community Investment

concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

interests.

— MR BN ESERBREEMTHREZEMNBREER TS | HHREE
BB R ESAEEER o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community Investment

BB RUEIEBS.1 EX BRI (HE BREE  AIHK RBE-X HRigE

1t 887) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. | Community Investment
FARERUEIEBS.2 EEFSBRMEAER (W& ERERE) HRIE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021




Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
EABERERRAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM
Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 118 to 284
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

REEITEE

MREABRIRERMNERHE - BAY
ARG ANBERERNEAZARERNER - &
LEHEERMEBABBGREMBRRLHBA

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories
as a key audit matter because of the
significant judgement exercised by

the management in determining the
appropriate levels of allowance.

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying

amount of inventories is approximately
HK$244,761,000 as at 31 December
2021. The management of the Group
reviews an ageing analysis of inventories at
the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete and/or slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable
value for such finished goods and raw
materials primarily based on the latest
selling and purchase prices, respectively
and current market conditions.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of inventories included the
following:

o Obtaining an understanding on
management process and control
in identifying obsolete and/or slow-
moving inventories items and how
the management estimates the
allowance of obsolete and slow-
moving inventories items;

o Obtaining the ageing analysis
of inventories and testing
the accuracy by agreeing its
classification by age, on a sample
basis, to goods receipt notes;

o Evaluating the reasonableness
of allowance for inventories with
reference to historical sales
records, ageing analysis and
subsequent selling and purchase
prices of the inventories; and

o Tracing subsequent sales of
inventories and/or subsequent
purchase of materials, on a sample
basis.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because
of the significant judgements required

to determine the fair value of investment
properties.

All of the Group'’s investment properties are
stated at fair value on valuations performed
by an independent professional valuer (the
“Valuer”). In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use. At the end
of the reporting period, the chief financial
officer of the Group works closely with the
independent qualified professional valuer
to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the management of the
Group. Fair value of investment properties
is derived by income capitalisation
approach. As disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, the
Group's investment properties amounted
to HK$793,755,000 as at 31 December
2021. Loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties of HK$3,028,000
was recognised.

The fair value of the Group's investment
properties was determined by adopting the
valuation techniques with some key inputs,
including capitalisation rate, market rent
and growth rate, assumptions of market
conditions and judgements based on the
valuation performed by the Valuer. Details
of the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in the valuations are disclosed in note

16 in the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

QOur audit procedures to assess the
valuation of investment properties included
the following:

C Obtaining the valuation report from
the Valuer and discussing with
the management and the Valuer
to understand the valuation basis,
methodology used and underlying
assumptions applied;

o Assessing the integrity of
information provided by the
management to the Valuer by
comparing details of rental
to the respective underlying
lease agreement. Evaluating
the management's process in
respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by the Valuer;

o Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer;

o Assessing the valuation techniques

and reasonableness of key inputs
adopted based on available market
data; and

o Performing market research and
analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment
properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and
consistent with market trends to
our knowledge.
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Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade
receivables

We identified impairment assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter

because of the involvement of the

significant judgement and management
estimates required to evaluate credit losses
(“ECL") of the Group's trade receivables at

the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s

net trade receivables amounting to

approximately HK$90,625,000 and out of
these trade receivables of approximately

HK$42,208,000 were past due.
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How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

Understanding key controls on how
the management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables;

Testing the integrity of information
used by the management to
develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing
analysis as at 31 December 2021,
on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis
with the probability of default

and recovery rates quoted from
international credit-rating agencies;
and
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Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade
receivables (contiuned)

As disclosed in notes 25 and 41 to the
financial statements, the management
estimates the ECL of trade receivables
based on an evaluation of the collectability
and age analysis of accounts on every
individual trade debtors with significant
balances and the remaining balances are
grouped based on past due characteristics
and on the management's judgement
including creditworthiness, the past
collection history and forward-looking
information. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The loss allowance amount of the credit
impaired trade receivables is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit losses.

As disclosed in notes 25 and 41 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
recognised an impairment allowance for trade
receivables of approximately HK$2,000,000
for the year and the Group'’s lifetime ECL on
trade receivables as at 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$27,290,000.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

o Challenging the management's
basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance
on trade receivables as at 31
December 2021 including
the identification of credit
impaired trade receivables, the
reasonableness of management's
grouping of the remaining trade
debtors into different categories
in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rate applied
with reference to the historical
default rates and forward-looking
information.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B X EE RS

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chan King Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

12 April 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

relEER
1A 5 = | ﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT-_—&+_A=+—HIEE

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Impairment losses under expected credit
loss model, net of reversal

Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year from continuing operation

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to the owners of
the Company
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling
interests
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Total (loss) profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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Notes

Hret

FEKEx%
YA 5
HE MARFERA

el

HAbdg A 7
BHEEEBERA T2

BUEEE - IR 8
H s Mg 1R 7
i kFHEER
SHE R SHAR
THRX
DEHE DT EE 21
A& AR 9
BRA AT 1R
Fi1E 11

SB B ANFE R 13
BRIEE&EK

BRI ETS R

NEEEE 12
AEZEE

KRR AEGERE

KEFHBELEER
KEERIEEERS

TR s R (R 5 A (B51R)

REFELEER
KECRIEREES

O A (A5)
%

ADFRE
SRR

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)

(& =51)

724,709 710,295
(703,207) (598,971)
21,502 111,324
47,597 33,101
31,823 (6,937)
(5,929) 9,515
(178,692) (64,154)
(38,504) (25,292)
(132,081) (87,593)
15,024 (497)
(3,219) (4,154)
(242,479) (34,687)
6,788 6,971
(235,691) (27,716)
(9,831) (19,477)
(245,522) (47,193)
(236,555) (21,181)
(9,245) (17,142)
(245,800) (38,323)
864 (6,535)
(586) (2,335)

278 (8,870)
(245,800) (38,323)
278 (8,870)
(245,522) (47,193)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
et FHT FAT
(restated)
(& =51)
Loss per share (HK cents) SREE (GBL) 15
From continuing and discontinued operations 2R E#HEL & K B & ISR
Basic HAR (10.60) (1.61)
Diluted i3 (10.60) (1.61)
From continuing operations REFELEER
Basic HAR (10.21) (0.89)
Diluted i3 (10.21) (0.89)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEmkHEMEZEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT-_—&+_A=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(&&=71)
Loss for the year REFEERE (245,522) (47,193)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hip 2w (FR)
[tems that will not be subsequently HEEBTIeEHIEE
reclassified to profit or loss AFEEEEZIEE ¢
during the year:
Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets, L AEEE - % -
property, plant and equipment TR 55 B i A DA SR 5 R
and properties held for sale HEMFEERE RN TE
to investment properties at fair value AR Z I E Y 2 Btk 30,967 40,642
Fair value gain (loss) on investment in equity WERNE AT EFAEM
instrument at fair value through other ZHEWENRATA
comprehensive income 2 AFEWE (B518) 1,932 (315)
Deferred tax relating to items that EAAEHOEEBEMNIER
will not be reclassified to profit or loss B ZIELERIA (7,940) (9,329)
Exchange difference arising on BMEZZ23|E8EE
translation to presentation currency ZIERER 18,300 69,912
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 mEias 43,259 100,910
Total comprehensive (expense) income ArEE2EFXD) WwmesE
for the year (202,263) 53,717
Total comprehensive (expense) income Ty &EEA2T FE ) W
attributable to: e -
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZZ =N (203,935) 59,191
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 1,672 (5,474)
(202,263) 53,717
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Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Interests in associates

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

Other receivables
Consideration receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Trade and notes receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Consideration receivables

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mAE MR R

At 31 December 2021
RZB-—F+=-A=+—H

FRBEE

REME

W% BB KRR E

ERERE

BVEE

ERRREE

N NG L

BAHEF AR E S
(MEAFEFARMZR
Watl) 2 BRAT AR

H it fE MR IR

FEWAAE

RBEE

&

FrEHEM R

FEW B ZIRA TR
HAEWIRK ~ e
KIEN IR

FEM B

& LBt 41X B 3R IR
e R)
FEERUA R FRIR
BaFEF AR (RAYE
AR ZEREE
BHEMRITER
EHRITER
RITRHBEIRE

Notes

Hiet

16
17
18
19
20
21

22
25
25

23
24
25

25
25
25

25

26

26
26

2021 2020
—E-—-F ZETF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAET
793,755 718,572
205,990 234,451
44,802 70,019
60,561 66,455
68,824 54,029
59,613 32,548
63,112 12,382

- 6,600

34,443 3,600
1,331,100 1,198,656
244,761 219,575
9,613 9,601
98,244 116,138
159,980 240,232
23,214 26,832
20,485 17,161

- 4,248

4,152 13,784
16,145 5,857
353,177 281,617
322,309 667,935
1,252,080 1,602,980
BRMRKEBARAT — T F4%H
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBARRE

At 31 December 2021
RZF-_—F+=-A=+—H

Notes
Kiat
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and notes payables FERT B SRR R =k 27
Contract liabilities EHEE 28
Deposits from tenants HRIES 27
Other payables, deposits received, HEMEAARR
accruals and deferred income BURIES  BETRIER
FEIERA 27
Bank borrowings RITEE 29
Lease liabilities HEAE 30
Tax payable FETFRIR
Net current assets REBEEFRE
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARSE
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital &S 31
Reserves Bt 32
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 &7 A AFE(G RS
Non-controlling interests IR AR 2
Total equity A
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deposits from tenants HEize 27
Lease liabilities HEAE 30
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIR A E 20
Deferred income PEIELA 27

The consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to 284 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2022 and are
signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
FHE

DIRECTOR

EF
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2021 2020
—E-—-F —EoTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
218,852 199,504
126,412 129,615
5,468 1,348
49,323 36,282
41,851 36,000
6,019 8,764
37,311 36,606
485,236 448119
766,844 1,154,861
2,097,944 2,353,517
227,977 236,254
1,653,275 1,896,148
1,881,252 2,132,402
12,931 15,463
1,894,183 2,147,865
7,620 15,797
8,554 25,075
143,158 126,465
44,429 38,315
203,761 205,652
2,097,944 2,353,517
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A 1 January 2000 RZE-35-F-A

Lossfortheyear TEEER

Otercompehensiencome. B ER
(expense) forthe ear 2INERR)

Toeloomprehensieincome.~ AEF2ENG
(expense) for ey (F%)48
Breris ofsere opfons mﬂm

St optons apsedforfeied ﬂ%ﬁf&ﬂ/ Bl
Purchase of shares under e share BR3¢
avard schere ﬂ%ﬂ i

Disposl o subsidares HEMBLT
Repurchase o ordinary Shaes ﬂ%@iiﬁﬁx
Tansterfostautoy surplus resene BBZ FRHRE

A1 31 December 2020 HoEC5E

A=t
Lossfortheyear TEEER
Otercompiehensiencome. B R
(expense) forthe ear 2INERR)

Toeloomprehensieincome.~ AEF2ENG
(expense) for ey (F%)48

Brerise ofsere opons iR

S optons psedfofeted. BRERT/ 24

Purchase of shares under e shre R 528551E
avard schere EERD

Disposol of subsidries ey EMBAZ Y

Reduction i registered capta . —f& “7
noriholy omned subsidary  FTREED

Repuchase ofordnaryshares~ EBIEER

Trnstertostautoy surpus resene BBZERESRE

At 31 December 2021 e
A=t

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT+ _A=+—ALEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LOEEEIN

Statutory Sharebased  Employee  Properties Rssets  Cpital Non-

Share Share  surplus Other ~ payment share  revaluation  revaluation  redemption  Translation  Retained controling
capital ~~ premium~ resee resene  reseme tustresene  resene  resene  resene resene profits Total  inferests Total

iR ke BERH I i g ) 2%
Br BBEE BNRE RMBR ARBE AR EREE  EMBE  WERE  AEBR  REMW &t B &
HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Tin Thr A TEr A A Thr TAr TRt TEr A TR TEr TAn

Moea) — Mokd)
W W

W K613 MX BB 1M -0y 280 Bbled 1003 5433 209234 1830 2110671
= = = = = = = = = - (B3 (B GO @19
- - - - - 34 (230) - - 95 3% 10090
- - - - (30) - B By B (o474) 8371
1 - = (1) S S = S S = = S =

- - (480) - - - - - 18 - -
- - - (18 = = - - - (3187) = (3187)
= - (3 = = = - - 19065 33 1905 2607 4512
(6818 (11030) - - - - - 6818 - (6818 (178%) - (789
- - 13 - - - - - - - (13%) S = =
2654 TH B BB BM (318 343% 1% A% IBIB 4B 21040 1548 214785
- - - - - - - - (58000 (245,800) s (4552
- - - B 1,449 - 166 - Lg% 139 43259
- - - - - - B 1449 - 16612 (458000 (203938 1672 (202,263)
25 917 - (387) - - - - - - 45 - 5
- - - (107) - - - - - 107 - - -
- - - - (13430 - - - - - (1343) - (1343)
(13141 1) - - - - - 1075 13141 1,064 (267) 97
- - - - - - - - - - - (%) 69
(8492 (27,096) - - - - - 8492 - BM (3558 - (3558
- - 1497 - - - - - - (149 - - -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes: Bt et

(a) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s (a)

Republic of China (“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year,
the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net
profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where
the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). The
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors
(the “Directors”) of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority,
to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

(b) Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for the (b)
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and the difference between the considerations
paid and the relevant non-controlling interests upon the acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-off of trade receivables
Gain arising on early termination of lease contracts

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment (gain) loss on financial assets and
other items under expected credit loss model,
net of reversal

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Impairment loss on financial assets at FVTOCI

Revaluation gain of retained interest in an associate
Share of results of associates
Allowance (reversal) for inventories
Changes in fair values of investment properties
Fair value change on financial assets at
FVTPL
Interest income
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Decrease in properties held for sales
(Increase) decrease in trade and notes receivables
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Decrease in contract assets
Increase in amounts due from associates
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
Increase in trade and notes payables
Decrease in contract liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other payables,
deposits received and accruals and
deferred income

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Interest received
PRC tax refunded (paid), net

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ZT-_—F+-_RA=+—HItFE
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EREEENE
B EERE
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MsHEUCE 5 AR
RERIESEOMELZ
Wgs
HE B AR S Was
BEHEEBEEATZ
SREEREMIERRE
(ah) B518 - BRI
BIEE 2 RIERE
BAFEFFAREBEE RS2
SREERERR
KBt N B2 RE s 2 Bt
(= NCTE i
A D)
REMFENTERE
BATEFABGZ CRMEE
RHEES
FBUA
BAFEFARSCEREE
e BIA

EEELEIAIZ
RERGME
F& (4 10) m
e &R
FEWE 5 B B = 4% (B m) R
HA YRR - Be K
B FIRR D (48 00)
BREERD
R Wirhgk 2 ) A R IRE D
JRE YA B I X RIZF R
B R RIRR A (42 0n)
e B BRI AN
BHBERD
HARMRRR - 2 WiRE -
J& SRR MR AERA
O

w2 (A MBEZRE
BEHHE
RE (BT BEHEFER

RETB (TR EZRERE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAT
(252,310) (56,652)
3,219 4,154
39,539 40,352
13,034 13,441
44,021 105,313
221 (630)
4,884 =
- @81)
(4,100) (5,613)
(31,823) 21,618
19,000 19,000
384 -
- (2,719)
(15,024) 497
48,335 (28,699)
3,028 14914
2,423 (101)
(26,273) (19,064)
(332) =
(151,774) 105,730
(91,670) 9,234
171 3,759
(18,634) 97,684
80,765 (3,824)
- 11,301
(4,124) (17,161)
4,248 (4,248)
52,602 29,062
(5,626) (58,977)
25,404 (2,694)
(108,638) 169,866
26,273 19,064
987 (1,290)
(81,378) 187,640
BRMRKEBARAT — T F4%H
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REEE

Purchases of property, plant and equipment f& B Y% - ME & &4

Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at FVTPL
Purchases of
— financial assets at FVTPL
— equity instruments at FVTOCL

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
Development costs paid
Investment in an associate
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Placement of short-term bank deposits
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits
Receipt of consideration receivables
Reduction in registered capital in
a non-wholly owned subsidiary

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid
Repurchase of shares
Purchase of shares under share
award scheme
Repayment of lease liabilities
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Interest paid for lease liabilities

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash
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2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz FET FAT
(47,653) (23,254)
294,738 111,210
(287,493) (101,970)
(48,308) (11,330)
727 1,190

39 1,212 2,845
(55,741) (68,377)
(9,807) =
(15,942) (39,987)
5,894 65,961
(109,200) (209,617)
39,000 229,000
31,639 1,246
3,937 -
(196,997) (43,083)
41,896 90,640
(36,732) (135,280)
(2,071) (1,769)
(35,588) (17,848)
(13,436) (3,187)
(11,816) (8,973)
745 =
(1,148) (2,385)
(58,150) (78,802)
(336,525) 65,755
667,935 611,714
(9,101) (9,534)
322,309 667,935




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
 E-_T - —F+-_A=+—HILEFE

—RE#

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), as the Directors
consider that it is a more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of
the shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are disclosed in note
42.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

RRBIREBARE-NN\—FREDE(KE
FDRBREZMKZAERREERAR - &
RAZEMMPER L EREXMWIEFRIA
AER —EAEE

ARBZNEEERBARE ([ARK]) o« KiR
BPBHRERABT(DET) 25 - HTREEZR
RER—BBEMAERZMERAA (B
P B EmARMTEARBRIR - BFH5#REK
WET2NEREE

ARRA—REEER AR - EXEHEAR
2 EIEA M FE42% 75 -

el

P P A 7 3 2> ) (St
g2 |) > 5T

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendment to IFRS 16

B B B 795 e 22 R 2B 1655 (B 5T AR)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

R TSI AR O - BIFR & ST 2RI 395K -
BURR BA s S 2RI 758 - BIPR B ISR 2 A S5 455 )
BUFR B 75 i e 2 Al 8 1657 2 A8 5T

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment
to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021.

TR £F B 56 1 4 32 B MR B A 4R 15 R RS AT

RAEE  AEEERFREREGESVBRRER
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AEEe)RMAEE —ET_—F A —Hzz
& FtA A0 F I AR 92 B A SRV B BR B S SR i 2
AIRERT

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
#0198 MR SRIEANESESR
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
=B AN E —FH
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

e R 8 5% B %5 3 o 2 R ([ [ P Bt
B|ERER D) 2 187T (F)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (conTINUED)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the
IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the
International Accounting Standards Board issued in June
2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include
as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impact on application of amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group has early applied the amendment in the current
year. The amendment extends the availability of the practical
expedient in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16")
by one year so that the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met.

The application of this amendment has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 17
BIBR B 3R S LRI 175

Amendments to IFRS 3

B PR B 75 e 5 MR R S 355 2 A8 5T

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

I R B 75 3 5 E R S8 10555 J2 B PR & 51 4B BI S5 28557 2 (& 7T

Amendments to IAS 1
Bl @t ERIE 158 2 (85]

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

lmaﬁﬁﬁJI%&ﬁ%M%ﬁ%EWf%ﬁ%
25}}72{’? HT

Amendments to IAS 8

BUFR & ST HERISE8SR 2 (& R]

Amendments to IAS 12

BT R E 12598 2 18R]

Amendments to IAS 16
Bl @5t 2RI 165k 2 18R]

Amendments to IAS 37
R SR FEI75E 25T

Amendments to IFRSs

BIBR B TS 3R S LR 2 1ERT

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

© BR 5 {8 1o AR A B2 3T AT R ARME AT Bl R B A 3
HER

AREE H AR IR R ERAN AT EMEARE i AR AR
#a] RAE AT BB TS S R

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

RE 4 RABBEERT?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework!

R

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

KEEHERENBE N RIREELE ZHNEE
HEFAS

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

BEESEARBIGERE M EBRIEFEL
(ZZZZF) 2 HHER]

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

R R

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

AR R E 2

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction?

HE -2 FESNEENE B BNRLERIR?

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use!

Y - BRE A — 1EE B i Al 2 PSR!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract!

EEEH— BT & ZEA

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020!
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3. EXGEEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting periods as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since
1 January 2019) or IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16),
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—FT-A=+-ALFE

EXRETBER (&)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Basis of consolidation (coNTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Basis of consolidation (coNTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the International
Accounting Standards Committee’s Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in September 2010).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Business combinations (coNTINUED)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or

liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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Business combinations (coNTINUED)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Business combinations (coNTINUED)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“IFRS 9”) would be accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Goodwill (CONTINUED) e ()

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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HEZ

T F+A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant
associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

EXRETBER (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Groupperforms;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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HEZ

T F+-A=+—BLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREBUR ()

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in electronics manufacturing services contracts
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer, as in contracts for sale of handsets and 0T
terminals, own-branded products manufacturing, sale of
goods to vending machine customers, sale of intelligent
manufacturing products and sale of properties.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, as in contracts for electronics
manufacturing services and procurement agency services, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided by the
other party.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BEREEALA  HEXEERBEIEEZE
E
BRAE

BFRERBEAT  TREKBHREZ
EETRENER 2 - BIRBASEEERKE
L EAEFTVER AR A (B 5 18 B 4T 32 5K /B
HEEWBIRA) BREA - Bl ASEEE
TEME mSRGEIEN&ER -

PN
ER—HRtERRFPRHEMIRT - AEH
BEHEAGZHERE RRMHEEEMIIR
N gl OE T ACIEN SE Y EYNEE el
mE— T REZSFERHRYE (AAEE LK
) -

HARRENHEE FHRMB AL - B
g MEBMEFPHEEM  HEE
EmRHEEENENERTRTS
SRS 2 ATE IR E B m iR - Al
RrEA e

HAREZ BITRB /LS — I RREEERN
Ema iR - AIRRERRIE - ERBERT
ERERIRGERETEFZA - ARETE
HE - RENEEERIRY - EAKER
ETRERGHERRXBRERBESRT A
IR - BRI S — T R IEER
mERBEREERE 2 EARESAE 22
AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Leases HE

Definition of a lease HEZEZ

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises and warehouse
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.
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HEZ

T F+A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

EXREFBER (8)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (conNTINUED)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease liabilities
resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREHBER (@)
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED) HE @

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED) AEBERARBA ()
Lease liabilities HEEE

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

. the lease term has changed, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates followings a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (conNTINUED)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED) HE @

The Group as a lessee (coNTINUED)

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
IFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.
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T F+A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at
amounts equal to net investments in the leases, measured
using the interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial
direct costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer or
dealer lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the
net investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREHBER (@)
(CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED) HE @

The Group as a lessor (continued) AEEEHBLHBAN ()
Lease modification HEEET

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants where primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis in the period in
which they become receivable. Government grants relating
to compensation of expenses are deducted from the related
expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income”.
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3.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

EXRETBER (&)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares/share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREBUR ()

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (conTINUED)
Shares/share options granted to employees (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share based payment reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share based payment reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share award granted to employees

For share award schemes, the fair value of services received,
determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares
granted at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in employee share trust reserve. The cost of acquisition of
the Company’s employee share trust for the share award
scheme is recorded as treasury shares (shares held for
share award scheme). At the time when the awarded shares
are vested, the amount previously recognised in share award
reserve and the amount of the relevant treasury shares will
be transferred to accumulated profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revisits
its estimates of the number of awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share trust reserve.
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3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

EXRETBER (&)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Taxation (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use asset and the related lease liability, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use asset or the lease liability.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liability, the Group applies IAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction as
a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use asset
and lease liability are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use asset over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liability resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED) BiE (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Property, plant and equipment (coNTINUED)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(CONTINUED)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position,except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

WE -~ BEKRE (E)
HELHREFZE#EEZ (&)

ERENRAEASEOERZBERT @ RIRER
FERADBRARSRENEESIN HEL
WwERRGEMEIRAKRF 2 BIEREE
Bl

WREMEREERANBEE R (BN F %
TaR)MELAREME - BIZAR ZKREE
HERAR ATE(BERNERRNES B
REAREENMASE ) 2 EAZEREA
2EHWEARER - WY RE-HFHEED R -
HEEZAEYERERERE - BRAEMHE
HEERBREEREEN -

FERRERS  REEREHENSREERE
fl & AT 8 P A BAMUR LA AR © {5t AT 2 4
B MR EEMFETAESERE BRE
s WIRABRRELEFEBFTEENY
@,

Yx - BEEREREN D ELBHRFEER
HZEERTEIEELAEMNBREEMNR 2
B - BUHHER - W% BERRHBRALENL
R PTE A MR ERBRRHEMFER
IREZEEREE RN EHEE LR SN
S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

EXRETBER (&)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

EXRETBER (&)

Intangible assets (coNTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREBUR ()

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use asset and intangible assets other than goodwill
(CONTINUED)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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EXRETBER (&)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land,
development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value is
determined based on price ultimately expected to be realised
less applicable selling expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are intially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

CE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SMIA (&)

Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

(i)

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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HEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)
Financial assets (conTiINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the assets revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

EXRETBER (&)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTinuED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including
trade and notes receivables, other receivables, consideration
receivables, entrusted loan receivable, amounts due from an
associate and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
short-term bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances) which are subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances or credit
impaired and the remaining balances are collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)
FiNANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

EXRETBER (&)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)

Financial assets (conTiINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instruments to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understand
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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HEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXREFBER (8)

Financial instruments (conTiNUED)
Financial assets (conTiINUED)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(ir)

(iii)

Definition of default (continuep)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

LR T A (&)

TAHEE ()

TR EREMIE A FE ()

(i) EHEZE (B
T L RA - AEBERE  Te@mE
ESMERIORNBATREELEE
B BRIANEBEFEERBELFH
BERBETERGENENEANERE
i o

(iii)  1EABELEE

SREEE—HIA LFH EZeRE
EfFARRREREBRANZE) 2%
ERERERRE SREEERER
BENEEREEABETIEFNAERR
U

a) BOTAREBRAHREARFEE
2

b) EREK - WERIEBHEMN
o) fERANERAEREBERAREK

REER BN LR B M EERA
HEERATERTERNES

A ERABRATLEARERTL
TS EM §



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREHBER (@)

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED) SRIT A (&)

Financial assets (conTINUED) THEE ()

Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTinueD) EEEREMIEH E (E)

(iv)  Write-off policy (iv) R
The Group writes off a financial asset when there EHERBTR S BARENHRRE
is information indicating that the counterparty is in £ o AW E UK O FRIE R A AE R (5120
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic RGEFHHERKEEABEERF A
prospect of recovery, for example, when the REREERE)) AEESHESH
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or BE KAREEEBATHREZER
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever % EMENSREENEINEAERAS
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may BB F#E TR BT RS o MUSHE
still be subject to enforcement activities under the EREUHRERE 4 - EREEZWEIERE
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal TRAPHERR o
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) TFERERERENGERER

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a finance lease receivables, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the finance lease receivables
in accordance with IFRS 16.

EHMEREEENGTERENARML 2
WK E (BIHIRENRRIEREE) &
EHRBRERE - BRI MR
RETHRARE L BURETTRE - WRLAT
EHEERHEL PR - BHEEEENMG
o RBR R SR N B R B - DR
BIERNERENRRMETE - AEH
R B R AR A FT B U 5 R TR
HEEEERRAERNER 2 B
TERIBEFEBRRER  WiRAE
SOREEERHEL AR - MBAND
NUBEKALLE S

—RME  BREEBEARESOE
XN TFAKRENMAEANRERE
EASEFERUBOREREZHNZE
B BRERERARETHERA X
RIGHOEE - slREBERENS -
ErTEHMEEEEMANRESRERR
BRI 53R E £ R E 165k 2R WAE
EfMANRERE R -

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

T F+A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

EXREFBER (8)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTiINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (conTINUED)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (coNTINUED)
For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration of the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status; and

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, but transferred to retained
profits.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

£RI A (@)

EHEE ()

EREEREMIEHA FE (&)

() FBHEEERAGERER (&
EEBFGERN  ARBENENERS
ZBB|A NIRRT -

o BHWOR: R

o [BERAMME  RERITE

EREEHENS AT A - RS A
B 6 4B A T8 B 4 45 L 0 12 B L P
e

FRR A RS RAEN@REETH -
e BAESRGEARERIR - TE
ZERT - FERATDESBEAENS

RIEREHEE
HHEEERIRSRNEENC RIS - A%
B eBURERZ EREE °

R RRRB R A B SRAER %
B B A E R MR B 2 R 2
ER RSN -

REBR NG FER R # 2 AL AP EFT AR
2HWEENEE TARERIEERE @ ]
ERBENEESHFHEFHENRTREHERTE
BENoBRERG  MEBAREGN -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREHBER (@)

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED) SRIT A (&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments THEEBRKRETA

Classification as debt or equity DA A [EER A

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity R —SEETBEBMET 2B RBEATATRE
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity FReT M A YL BERANA AR S B 8 EMARAR
instruments in accordance with the substance of the TANEEZ  DERSRABEXARATH -
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments BATA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables,
other payables, accruals and bank borrowings) are initially
measured at fair values and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CE

—E_—F+ZRA=t+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

4.

BRISTTHER AT TRESEN
FERR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are critical judgements involving estimations,
the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance
for obsolete and/or slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production or sale.
The management estimates the net realisable value for
such finished goods and raw materials primarily based on
the latest selling and purchase prices and current market
conditions. If the market condition was to deteriorate,
resulting in a lower net realisable value for such finished
goods and raw materials, additional allowances may be
required. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of inventories is approximately HK$244,761,000 (2020:
HK$219,575,000). During the year ended 31 December
2021, allowance of inventories of HK$48,335,000 was
charged (2020: reversed of allowance of HK$28,699,000) to
profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

4.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—FT-A=+-ALFE

BRI HERATTTRESEN
FERR(E)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on past-due status of individual
debtors or as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The individual assessment and provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed
for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 41 and 25 respectively.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether development costs included in
intangible assets are individually impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use calculation by reference to the
cash flow projections prepared in accordance with the signed
sales contracts of respective projects. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
development costs is approximately HK$45,591,000 (2020:
HK$57,311,000). During the year ended 31 December
2021, an impairment of intangible assets of HK$19,000,000
(2020: HK$19,000,000) was recognised and charged to
profit or loss. Details of the recoverable amount calculation
of development costs are disclosed in note 19.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

CE

—E_—F+ZRA=t+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

4.

EXRE5HHE R AT REEMR
FERF (&)

Estimated fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period using income capitalisation approach by
independent qualified professional valuer. Such valuation
was based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the valuation, the Group’s management
has made estimates concerning rental yield for rental
income to be generated by the investment properties. The
assumptions used are intended to reflect conditions existing
at the end of the reporting period. Where there are any
changes in the assumptions due to the market conditions in
the PRC, the estimate of fair value of investment properties
may be significantly affected. As at 31 December 2021,
investment properties of approximately HK$793,755,000
(2020: HK$718,572,000) were revalued.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.
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5. REVENUE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. kA

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

(1)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

Continuing operations

Segments

i

Types of goods or services

Sale of handsets and I0T terminals
Electronics manufacturing services
Property rental

Total

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Over time

Total

EmaRBER
HETH R YRR
ETUERBHER
/ESuel i

it

Lo 3
K\%_H%FEﬁEE
FER el

@t

()  DHFELEAUA

FEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--F+-A=t-HLE

Handsets and

Electronics
manufacturing

10T terminals services
business business Property
FHRRYBH ETHERE management
FSTES)S By MEHEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET TER
567,583 - -
- 95,145 -
- - 61,981
567,583 95,145 61,981
567,583 - N/ATEFA
- 95,145 N/ATEFA
567,583 95,145 N/ATEFA
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

WA (&)

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (CONTINUED)

Continuing operations

Segments

pak-l

Types of goods or services R RBER
Sale of handsets and 10T terminals 56 FH# & WEHE R %
Electronics manufacturing services B FELE IR (L FERS

Property rental L ESutic|
Total st

Timing of revenue recognition BARER R
At a point in time RE—R R
Over time BaRF

Total FCE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

() DITEELEFUA (B

FEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BT THE+-_A=+—HItE

Electronics
Handsets and manufacturing
|OT terminals services
business business Property
FH L A8 BFRUERTS management
S e MEHEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT
586,079 - -
- 74,928 -
- - 49,288
586,079 74,928 49,288
586,079 - N/A
NER
- 74,928 N/A
TNER
586,079 74,928 N/A
TNER
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

5. WA ()

(1)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (CONTINUED)

Geographical markets

Continuing operations

The PRC

Europe

United States

Hong Kong

Other Asia countries

Continuing operations

The PRC

Europe

United States

Hong Kong

Other Asia countries

PEARE
B
28
&4
AN THER

PEARE
B
£
wh
ATHER

()  DTEELEHAUA (B

HEHiE

FRSER%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-B--F+-A=+-HLEFE

Electronics

Handsets and manufacturing
10T terminals services Property
business business management
FRRME EFRERY VES
EESES HEBXK EER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TiEn TR
217,363 95.145 61,981
94,487 - -
97,517 - -
50.554 - -
107,662 - -
567,583 95,145 61,981

FERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (re-presented)
BE-T-EE+-A=t+-RILEE (857

Electronics

Handsets and manufacturing
0T terminals services Property
business business management
FH R BT HERY E
RS e HEBRK G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TER
237,377 74,928 49,288
40,774 - -
107,071 - -
19,627 - -
181,230 - -
586,079 74,928 49,288
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

5. WA GH)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sale of handsets and I0T terminals and own-branded
products manutacturing

For the sale of handsets and IOT terminals and
own-branded products manufacturing, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of usage, distribution and price to sell the
goods, and has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit
term is 0-90 days upon delivery. The Group typically
receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of goods.

Electronics manufacturing services

The electronics manufacturing services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The
normal credit term is 0-15 days. The Group typically
receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of goods.
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

5. WA ()

(iii)

(iv)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-
branded products manufacturing and electronics
manufacturing services, are for periods of one year or
less.

Leases

For operating lease: BRKEHE
Lease payments that are fixed TEREAEERK

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised approximately HK$57,355,000 (2020:
HK$47,079,000) selling profit, being the difference
between gross rental income and direct operating
expenses, as a property lessor.

(iii)

(iv)

PEEEFEXZH TEAIEEHRS
1B

HEFHREDEEL S  BEmEEmR
SUERETRERGHERNHRE R
— AT ©

HE
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-T=-—-F #HE_T_TF
+=ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—8H
LEFE LIEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
61,981 49,288

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H81t
FE AEEBEARWEDLEAER
#4957,355,0008 L (ZE =T F
47,079,000/ 7T) Z HE&mF - B¢
WA EECEFAY 2 HNERE -
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

T F+A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance, information reported to the Executive
Directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers (the “CODM”), focus on types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

In the prior year, the Group was organised into four
reportable and operating segments, being Handsets and
internet of things terminals business (“Handsets and 10T
terminals business”), Electronics manufacturing services
business, Internet of things system and online-to-offline
business (“IOT system and 020 business”) and Property
management.

Upon the disposal of 98.7% equity interest of /&=
& 5B A"l (unofficial English name being Shanghai
Yunhao Trading Limited) (“Shanghai Yunhao”) on 6 April
2021, the Group discontinued its 10T system and 020
business during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
segment information reported does not include any amount
for the discontinued operations, which are described in
detail in note 12. Prior year segment disclosures have been
represented to conform with the current year's presentation.

In the manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the business
activities of the Group are organised into the following
operating segments:

— Handsets and 10T terminals business
— Electronics manufacturing services business; and
— Property management.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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e P RR M

BHEZ

For the year ended 31 December 2021

TS+ A=1+—ALFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEERE)
Segment revenue and results PEBARES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and TRAEAEBIZZHREEBLEZWMARE
results by reportable and operating segment: BT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE— - —fF+—fF=+—HIEEF
Continuing operations FEREER
Handsets Electronics
and 0T manufacturing
terminals services Property
business business management Consolidated
FHR
A ETRERK
RIER EmES NEREERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhr Fhr FER FhEr
Revenue WA
External sales HHMEE 567,583 95,145 61,981 724,709
Segment (loss) profit o8 (58) &7 (302,061) 275 11,588 (290,198)
Other income and other gains and losses YA K £ itz
RER 57,455
Share of results of associates MEBERREE 15,024
Corporate expenses NIl F (21,541)
Finance costs BERK (3,219)
Loss before taxation BRERIEE (242,479)
BANMEEBERAR — T ——F 53k
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BT —Ft+-A=t+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cONTINUED) 6. DEER(E
Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED) 2EBAREE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (represented) BE - FE_FFf - A=+—HIFFEFEE])
Continuing operations HEREER
Handsets Electronics
and 10T manufacturing
terminals services Property
business business management Consolidated
FHR
bl STRERS
S S EE MEREER A
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T TR TR TAL
Revenue WA
External sales HMNEE 586,079 74,928 49 288 710,295
Segment (loss) proft P8 (BE) &7 (57,993) 613 10,186 (47,194)
Other income and other gains and losses At A R Atz
RER 32,563
Share of results of associates AMEBEAREE (497)
Corporate expenses N [ (15,405)
Finance costs BERA (4,154)
Loss before taxation BEAER (34,687)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss, fair
value change on financial assets at FVTPL, certain other
income, corporate expenses, share of results of associates,
finance costs and taxation (2020: without allocation of
interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss, fair
value change on financial assets at FVTPL, certain other
income, corporate expenses, share of results of associates,
finance costs and taxation). This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

6. DEER B

Segment assets and liabilities PEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TR AEFIZT 2RI EELHEEDHNE
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: ENRBEIN

At 31 December 2021

R-B-_—F+=-F=+—H

Handsets Electronics
and 10T manufacturing
terminals services Property
business business management Consolidated
FHRNBR EFRERE
RinER HESER WEEEER &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERr AT T FET
Segment assets DIEE 641,264 80,138 817,259 1,538,661
Property, plant and equipment E Y e 34,605
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16,732
Intangible assets B EE -
Deferred tax assets RETRIEEE 68,824
Interests in associates N RN 59,613
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEFARMEZE
Wz RATA 63,112
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFTABRZ
SREE 4,152
Properties held for sale HEHEME 9,613
Trade and note receivables AEE S ES -
Amounts due from associates FEUREE &8N B IR 20,485
Other receivables, deposits and HA RS ~ ZE Rk
prepayments Taft5RoE 75,752
Pledged bank deposits BIEHRITER 16,145
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 353,177
Bank balances and cash IRTTEHREIE S 322,309
Consolidated assets REEE 2,583,180
Segment liabilities HiEEE 387,956 50,744 16,660 455,360
Trade payables B SR IE 6,097
Contract liabilities BHARE 451
Other payables and accruals H A e S BR R % B AT 3R 4,769
Bank borrowings RITIEE 41,851
Tax payable eI 37,311
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 143,158
Consolidated liabilities meEaE 688,997

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CoNTINUED)

6. ZEER (H)

Segment assets and liabilities (conTINUED)
At 31 December 2020 (Re-presented)

Segment assets

Assets relating to discontinued
operation

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Interests in associates

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Properties held for sale

Trade and note receivables

Contract assets

Amount due from an associate

Amount due from non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Liabilities relating to discontinued
operation

Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

NREE
HERIERERBER
HEE

WE - BERR
EREEAE

BIVEE
ELHRERE
REYE AR 2 e
BAHESARMEE
Wgm 2 AT A
BAVEFARRLZ
TREE
BEHEYR

ERE SRR
AREE

JE W — R 2 DRI FRIR
JRE M PR B8 A ) FEE B
BERFIE

H At AR
BRINFR

BHEMRITER
RHRTER

mek

HE & IHEE R
BRAMAR
EHRENFE

ARG

Hi BN R R ERTHIR
RITEE

FEf 58

EXHBRE

meAE
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R-E-FFf - F=+—FHFEES)

Electronics
manufacturing
services
business
BFERS
YRS
HK$'000
FAT

Handsets

and 10T
terminals
business

F e A
S
HK$'000
FAET

599,594 152,980

386,532 23,303

management

Property
Consolidated

MEEEER A

HK$'000
THET

HK$'000
TR
762,683 1,515,257
69,420
71,871
24,096
4,955
54,029
32,548

12,382

13,784
9,601
6,892
5,488

17,161

4,248

4,495
5,857
281,617
667,935

2,801,636

7,026 416,861
8,408
16,745
1,457
10,247
36,000
37,588
126,465

653,771
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

2 BER (B

Segment assets and liabilities (conTINUED)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain right-of-use assets, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, interests in associates, equity instruments at
FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, deferred tax assets,
certain other receivables, deposits and prepayments
(2020: certain property, plant and equipment, certain
right-of-use assets, pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, interests in
associates, equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial
assets at FVTPL, deferred tax assets, certain other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries).
Assets used jointly by operating segments are
allocated on the basis of the revenues earned by
individual operating segments;

° other than liabilities specifically identified for reportable
and operating segments on Property management,
the remaining liabilities jointly consumed by reportable
and operating segments are allocated between
Handsets and I0T terminals business and Electronics
manufacturing services business and corporate
liabilities. Corporate liabilities include certain other
payables, accruals, tax payable, bank borrowings and
deferred tax liabilities (2020: certain other payables,
accruals, tax payable, bank borrowings and deferred
tax liabilities), and

° certain properties held for sale, trade payables,
contract liabilities are unallocated since property
development is no longer classify as reportable
segment and the operations of IOT system and 020
business segment is discontinued during the year.

PHEEREEE)
REBDBRARESESBEIEER -

s KBETHE BERRE HTERE
ﬁé CBEEFRTER  BHRTE
CIRTTERERE - RNBE AR Z#
@ MAFEF AR MRS 2 B
IH- ?Hﬂ/_\$fﬁﬁ')@5ﬁﬁ2§@i§§‘
BERBEE - & THMEKRER 1
& RFANFRIAS - Fﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ“@ﬂ%&ﬂ
ERNEEDR(CE_ZTF  HTY
% BEMRE ?@ﬁﬁ%éﬁ@ =)
ERRITER - BHRTER - RITHE
BHRIRE  REERR 2D - BAYF
Bt A AEMEERE 2 BRATE - BA
FEFABRZEMEE  BELEREER
E & THEMBKERR - e RN
TR A K FEMRPHT I8 1 R IR AR AR ER 5RIR) ©
eENES Hﬁﬁﬂﬁ’]éﬁ@& EENE
PERER B YA 2 e

s KEREMEAMEHAEEREZAEZHRN
LENBZABEN  HBRABEIRE
BT % B A R I 3T I T T L R
BHEREB 2R/ MEENBLAR
HE - UWREEAE - CXEERES
TEMEMERR - EBEHKIE - BB
B -RTEERMEEHERE (T
TE  BRETHEMEMNERR - B3R
B EAHIE - RITEERRERIRA
&) &

s MBRAMEBRIBEE/NEZHRNIEA
BYBERGIELER I REREFR
FILEE  REBORIFHEME - BN
EHEF - ANBRERTHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEER(E)

BE—F_—F1-F=1—HULFE

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Handsets Electronics
and 10T manufacturing
terminals services Property
business business management Unallocated Consolidated
FHR E73E
] TR
St £ WEEEEE EN ) &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
Continuing operations FROEEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment BB BRHNEELE
profit or loss or segment assets: WRESE
Addtions of properly, plantand equipment  FENE « BERRE 28,113 19,540 - - 47,653
Additions of intangible assets NEEWEE 55,741 - - - 55,741
Depreciation of property, plant % BRRRENE
and equipment 26,109 7,463 3173 2,793 39,538
Amortisation of infangible assets BYEERH 44,012 - - - 44,012
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREAENE 11,045 - 1123 140 12,308
Impairment losses on intangible assets BYEEERE 19,000 - - - 19,000
Impairment losses on trade receivables RERTER ENES
B RERR 2,000 - - - 2,000
Impairment losses on other receivables RERRD A RYGUERHESE - - - 1,200 1,200
Impairment losses on amounts due from RERED Y E AR EREER
associates - - - 800 800
Reversal of impairment losses on entrusted AR BER Z EUE T BT R ESRRD
loan receivable previously recognised - - - (35,823) (35,823)
Impairment losses on equity instruments at~ NEERIZ RATE AL bz
FVTOC! recognised in profitor loss RATERESE - - - 384 384
Write-off of trade receivables HsEREWE 4,884 - - - 4,884
Allowance of inventories FEEE 48,335 - - - 48,335
Loss on disposal of property, LENE  BRREE
plant and equipment BR 21 - - - 21
Decrease in fair value of investment properties  &&MEATERHD - - 3,028 - 3,028

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

6. DEER B

Other segment information (conTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (re-presented)

Continuing operations

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Additions of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment losses on trade
receivables recognised in profit or
loss

Impairment losses on intangible assets

Reversal of allowance of inventories

(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease in fair value of investment
properties

BRELER
GENRREANTAE

BREEH

REWE - BRI

REEVAE
0% BERRBAE

EVAERH
BREEENE
RERTERZEUES
B2 RERR

BVAELRERR
FERRRE
HEWE « BERRfE
< W) ER
REWEAFERD

Handsets
and 0T
terminals
business
FHR
ki
S
HK$'000
TR

4,525
51,875

23,325
66,522
1,759

6,556
19,000
(28,699)

(369)

Hibn BEHR ()
BE T _FTF =1 —HIFE#EES))

Electronics
manufacturing
services Property

business management Unallocated Consolidated
ETRE
RIS FERS

X% DEHEER RHE Ta

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEr TATL TEr TAL

7812 - 105 12,442

- - - 51,875

7,501 2,555 4,946 38327

- - - 66,522

- 4976 - 6,735

- - - 6,556

- - - 19,000

= = = (28699)

(228) = 2 (695)

= (14,914) = (14914)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CoNTINUED) 6.

2 FER (&)

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on
the location of the customer. Information about the Group’s
non-current assets is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets.

AEBRPEARERBEBEEE -

BERAKERBIINFER 2HELEXEBRA
DRBEEFP ZMEHZT - BERAAKEIFREDE
ENBERDRBEEEMGMIELERS -

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
Year ended Year ended
REIMBEEZBWA kRBEE
BEZTIEE BEZTIEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF —E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT FET BT
(restated) (restated)
(& =71) (#&=71)
The PRC e N 374,489 361,593 1,044,477 1,009,630
Europe B 94,487 40,774 - =
United States E~5 97,517 107,071 - -
Hong Kong BB 50,554 19,627 70 210
Other Asian Countries b= QTN [ETES 107,662 181,230 - =
724,709 710,295 1,044,547 1,009,840
Note: Bt -

Non-current assets excluded intangible assets, deferred tax assets,
interests in associates, equity instruments at FVTOCI, other receivables

and consideration receivables.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HtbA -~ W REE

2021 2020
—B-—-F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
(restated)
(&=7)
Continuing operations BESEEK
Other income: Heb A -
Refund of Value Added Tax (“VAT") BEN ([1BET]) B
(Note 1) (Hret1) 1,045 1,264
Government grants (Note 2) BUFIE B WA (B 5t2) 19,572 13,228
Interest income earned on bank RITAERIRELZ A B
balances 23,354 17,665
Interest income earned on consideration X8 & E b fE W SR IEBREN 2
and other receivables FBUA 2,919 944
Dividend income from financial assets BRRATEFAERGNEREEZ
at FVTPL AR B A 332 -
Others EAh 375
47,597 33,101
Other gains and losses: Hithl a2 &1 -
Impaiment losses: BB
— Finance lease receivables —ERERE - (381)
— Equity instruments at FVTOCI — R AFERT A B A E 2 R
TH (384) =
Write-off of trade receivables s PR S RRR (4,884)
Write-off of amount due from non- il g rE AR B B 2 A
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries FEFERR AR R RIB - (4,496)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant  HEWE  BE KRB Z
and equipment (E518) e (221) 617
Gain arising on early termination of lease IR FRARIFFAE A LIELE 2 Wz
contracts - 81
Net foreign exchange gain HNGE Y 3 5 200 13,583
Changes in fair values of investment HEMENTES
properties (3,028) (14,914)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A R 2 M F EE
(Note 39) (H17#39) 4,100 5,613
Gain on revaluation of retained interest EE—FEBEARZ
in an associate R 2 W - 2,719
Fair value change on financial assets BRATEFABRZEREE
at FVTPL NP EEH (2,423) 101
Others Hi 11 6,592
(5,929) 9,515
BANBEEERAT T 4% 187
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
(CONTINUED)

7.

HAWA ~ WKk ER (&)

Notes:

(1)

()

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) was engaged
in the business of distribution of self-developed and produced
software and the development of automated test equipment and
software. Under the current PRC tax regulation, they were entitled
to a refund of VAT paid for sales of self-developed and produced
software and the development of automated test software in the
PRC in 2021 and 2020.

The amount represents unconditional government grants
HK5,048,000 (2020: HK$12,265,000) received during the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was granted to encourage
the Group’s research and development activities in the PRC. In
addition, the Group has received conditional incentive payments
of HK$13,473,000 (2020: Nil) from the local government
authority in the PRC and the amounts were fully credited to profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 upon the fulfillment
of conditions.

In this year, the Group receives government grants towards the
cost of development of Handsets and IOT terminals business
of HK$1,743,000 (2020:HK$2,928,000) in Shanghai and
Shenyang. The amount received is deferred and is transferred to
other income to match actual expenditure used in research and
development activities and HK$1,051,000 (2020: HK$2,910,000)
was recognised in the profit or loss during the year. As at
31 December 2021, an amount of HK$45,736,000 (2020:
HK$44,659,000 ) remained to be amortised and is included in
other payables (for current portion) and deferred income (for non-
current portion) (Note 27).
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Bt -

(1)

)

FREESEM (L8 ARAR (T LEREED
REDHATRBEREEZHMSE - URFEEAE
{EIRBIRRE - REBEFBIRTZHREER R=F
o ER R CRFETRREEETRERE
EZ®MF - URFEEAESCRARBESN S
BERAZEERM -

hEBeEREE—_E_—F+_A=1+—AL
FREWE 2 A BUTIE B A 5,048,000/ 7T
(ZZF =2 F : 12,265,000 7T) * i ASEIARSE
BN BENREEE MR - it AEBEH
Fh B & 3 B MR LR 1 22 13,473,000
BT (ZTZTF : &) © A BRBERIGEE
EREERSHARE-_E-_—&+=-A=+—H
IFFE 2B -

RAREE - AREER B RES % EF R Y
MR 25 2 AN IR BT IB B 1,743,000 7T
(ZZ =4 : 2,928,000/7T) ° FTER 2 ©RE8B
EEME - WEEREH MR AARAHEES
WERFY - WERFAREEZHERL,051,000
BIL(ZE=FF : 2,910,0008TT) - R=F=—
F+=—A=+—8 ' —%45,736,0008 L (=%
ZT4E ¢ 44,659,000 7T) B FIB AT K 4 G
BEEFAEMEMRR (FENEE S M 5) REEWK
A GLIERIES A E) (H5E27) °



8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET

OF REVERSAL

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

RHEEEEEN N ZRES

15 HIRREE

2021 2020
—BEZ—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FAxT
(restated)
(e =51
Continuing operations BREEEER
Impairment losses (reversed) PRI FIE (B E) #ER
recognised on: RIEETE
— Trade receivables —FEIE FERFK 2,000 6,556
— Other receivables —H b FEUBR R 1,200 =
— Amounts due from associates — FEUER & A RIRIR 800 =
— Entrusted loan receivable — B ERTER (35,823) -
— Finance lease receivables —ERRERE - 381
(31,823) 6,937
9. FINANCE COSTS & R A<
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAET
(restated)
(& =71)
Continuing operations FEREER
Interests on bank borrowings RITIEERE 2,071 1,769
Interests on lease liabilities HEAEFE 1,148 2,385
3,219 4,154
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. £ EEITEREEMSE
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EEREEYTEMSE

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIEE A LR R R EBR BRI FT#HE 2 4
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong FENRABEEERERENTEENHENZ
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: BHeaAT

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEZB--FTZB=t+-ALEE

Retirement
benefits
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
BAEA
Ezhe FoRER 4 DYORES HE fpe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhn Fhn Fhn Fhn Thn Tén
(Note ;) (Note ii)
() (i)
Executive Directors #iES
Ms Yeung Man Ying FRt - 242 - - - 242
Mr Wong Cho Tung THR%E - 483 - - - 483
Mr Liu Jun (Vo i) BE 5k (i) - 947 483 - 152 1,582
Mr Zhu Wenhui (Note ) FERE W) - 665 - - 134 799
Mr Gao Jun (Note ) BEEEWH) - 32 - - 3 35
Sub-total Nt - 2,369 483 - 289 3,141
The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments FRBITEEREFEATEMS EZEBRE R
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs NEINAEEEEZEIR -
of the Company and the Group.
Non-executive Director FafEs
Mr Wang Hei, Simon (Vote 1) IR RE W) 3 - - - - 3
Independent non-executive Directors  BUF#171ES
Mr Liu Hing Hung BRELE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wu Zhe HERE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wang Tianmiao (Aote vii) THELE W) 14 - - - - 14
Mr i Minbo (Mote vi) BER5E (istvi) 142 - - - - 142
Sub-total NG 468 - - - - 468
The non-executive Director’s and independent non-executive LRI TEERB N TEE2HEEE
Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their AN EEREERARES -
services as Directors of the Company.
Total @t 471 2,369 483 - 289 3,612
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EE - BEEHITEREEMNE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#8)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CONTINUED) EENEEATEME (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE T TE+-A=t-AILEE

Retirement
benefits
Directors' Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
RIrER
EZhe EoREY Tt UGINES Salf fHe
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T i TEr TEr TEr TEr
(Note ) (Note i)
Wit (Wizt)
Executive Directors YES
Ms Yeung Man Ying ¢ van = = = = - =
Mr Wong Cho Tung THR%E - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong (Aot /i BB () - 152 340 - - 49
Mr Liu Jun (Noe i) LR - 791 510 - 78 1379
Subota st - 93 850 - 78 1871
The executive Directors” and chief executive’'s emoluments TR ITEEREERTEMES T EMNE AR
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs Nal M AEEEHE B o
of the Company and the Group.
Independent non-executive Directors B FH{TEZE
Mr Liu Hing Hung BEIEEE 156 = = = = 15
MrWu Zhe RE%E 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wang Tianmiao (Vo i) THERE W) 156 = = = - 156
Sub-fotal NG 468 - - - - 468
The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments B IEITEE e T BN R EEF
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of RNATFEE o
the Company.
Total &t 468 3 850 - 78 2,339
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

10.

EE  aFUTEREEME

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED) EEREEATEMSE (B

Notes: it

(i) Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the 0} FERREEHICACSHFMNEESKERES 2

remuneration committee having regard to the performance and
duties of Directors and the Group’s operating results.

(i) Resigned as executive Director with effect from 10 September
2020.

(iii) Mr. Liu Jun was the chief executive officer and resigned as the
chief executive officer on 22 December 2020. Mr. Liu Jun was
also appointed as the the chief technical officer of the Company
with effect from 22 December 2020.

(iv) Appointed as executive Director with effect from 3 February 2021.

(v) Being the chief executive officer of the Company and appointed as
executive Director with effect from 24 December 2021.

(vi) Appointed as non-executive Director with effect from
24 December 2021.

(vii)  Appointed as independent non-executive Director with effect from
3 February 2021.

(viii)  Resigned as independent non-executive Director with effect from
3 February 2021.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2020: one)
Director for the year ended 31 December 2021, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining four (2020: four) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances e ROERL

Bonus TEAL

Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIFEIHR
contributions

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

RADBEARAEE Z QEREMERE -

(i) MN_F_ZFLA+BERERNTES -

(il  BELEERFEERNMTE  UN-_F-_FF+=
R +-—HABEEENTE  BIERENESR
EARRBERERNE BE—Z_FF+_H
T HEBAERK -

(iv) R-B_—HF_A=HZXERNTES-

V) AARAERATEILIR-FT-_—F+=-A
“THRZRERNTES -

(V) RE—_—F+-_A-tMBAZRERFRTE
.

(i) RZEB=—F-AZHRERBUIFRTESE -

(i) R-ZE-—F-_A=ZHFERBIFNTES -

EEME

E—T -+ -_A=+-RLFE 1F
EeFMALTEE R (CE_ZF: —R)E
EEMEEREXHE - SR TR (ZF =
TE OB AL ZBIEMT

2021 2020
—EB-—fF ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
4,675 4,015

104 1,268

562 341
5,341 5,624




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. % ERHITEREEMSE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#8)
Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED) EEME (&)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZ S EA TN EE:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH EE A
HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 Tt 21,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% £ 21,500,000/ 7T 4
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group AEE  AEETRAEMESKARRS 5
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals A T2 EABE - (ERFFEHESMARSE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B ok PR 18 S N A S B R [ 1 5 S A 2 (TR
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived H - IERERME RREFEHEESN
or agreed to waive any emoluments for both years. EZHREREEMAHNE
11. TAXATION 11. FiE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
(restated)
(& =7)
Continuing operations BRESEER
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) R MEAEH ([DEAMEH]) 296 4,356
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) in AP B IR AR ([ g (ET )
the PRC - 12
Overprovisions on PRC LAT B FE R IS E R R R RS
in previous years - (132)
296 4,236
Deferred tax credit (Note 20) BIERTEIR S ([ 7720) (7,084) (11,207)
Taxation for the year NEEHIE (6,788) (6,971)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for HRAREER L RMELRRBURF] - LR
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in LM EFEELTBN ST -
Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CE

—E_—F+ZRA=t+—HILFE

11. TAXATION (coNTINUED)

11. %8 (&)

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
districts of the PRC and taking relevant tax incentives into
account. Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited (“Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom”), Shanghai Simcom and Shenyang SIM
Simcom Technology Limited (“Shenyang SIM Simcom”)
are classified as New and High Technology Enterprise and
is entitled to adopt a tax rate of 15% (2020: 15%). The
relevant annual tax rate used for PRC EIT for the Group’s
subsidiaries ranged from 15% to 25% (2020: 15% to 25%).

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant tax laws and
regulations of the PRC, which is charged at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% (2020: 30% to 60%) of the

EMSHRT MABHEESRR - IEHERE
R 2 BITHEAE - LEREFINAES

REERAR( EERERME]) - BEFE
BRLGEMARBEEERAE ([TEHE
BRI EMEZE]  WHEEKHAL15%
MR (CB-FF : 15%) - AEBEB AR

KRAZPECEMSHEBEERENT15%
2% 2B (ZEFF : 15%E25%) ©

T+ IR (E BB R T IR IR BB B R BRI A 2 A
ERPE MR E SRHED - ﬁ@ﬁﬂ?ﬁlﬁ?ﬁifﬁﬁﬁ

DIEREER E30%E60% (ZE_FF : 30%
£60%)5tE » WAIEE TR

appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions.

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss as follows:

Continuing operations
Loss before taxation

Taxation at the PRC income tax rate
of 25% (2020: 25%)

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Overprovisions on PRC LAT
in previous years

Income tax on concessionary rate

LAT

Income tax effect on LAT

Tax credit for the year

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

REERIBE P AL EBRERPAT 2R
EIESBRINT
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
(restated)
(& =51)
BEREER
BB RIE 1B (242,479) (34,687)
ﬁﬂhlﬁﬁ SEFEE25%
(ZZT-TF : 25%)stE 2 FiAE (60,620) (8,672)
TT%D%RZF#&ZW%?;%
20,811 2,810
BEFH 2 IRA Z RS 2
(19,059) (17,488)
RIERTEER 2 RSB
34,545 30,762
B ABAARBERZ HISER
(3,845) (8,471)
RIERA IR BB s E
(3,237) (7,135)
B FE B iR E R B SE EE
- (132)
REBMETE 2 24,617 1,313
T HEIEET - 12
T IS ER 2 RS TiR & - 30
REEFIEE R (6,788) (6,971)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

2. CRINEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale agreement
to dispose of its entire 98.7% equity interest in Shanghai
Yunhao that carried out the majority of the Group’s 10T
system and 020 business. The purpose of the disposal
is to generate cash for the expansion of the Group’s other
businesses. The disposal was completed on 6 April 2021,
on which date the Group lost control of Shanghai Yunhao.
The Group’s 10T system and 020 business are treated as
discontinued operations.

The loss for the current period from the discontinued 10T
system and 020 business is set out below. The comparative
figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income have been restated to re-
present the 10T system and 020 business as a discontinued
operation.

Loss of 10T system and 020 business
for the period/year FEEE
Loss on disposal of IOT system and

020 business (see note 39) (RMI7E39)

BE-E-—F+-A=1+—HLEE
RZZE-_—F=A=-+=H  AEEFZHE
EAHEER E/BEHE 2 2 898.7 %M -
MASEE RIS MR RG MEEEBE
BB R RIHEST o AEE T ARSANER
AEFBEMEBZBESRMETHE - HER
RZT_—FMANEER AEEREHX
¥ LR EGIRE o AEBKYEAERLS
MBEEBRIERD R EEL

TXHEINAHERERE S & LB AR R
BERB 2R - FeaBaR I EME2EKE
RHLBBFOET - UHYBERRLEL
EL Y TR i S

Period ended

YR RS S E S E B AR,

HEYBHE R NEE B 2 BE

6 April 2021 2020
BZE
—EC—fF
mAH
LHHA R —TETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FExT
(9,831) (15,273)
(808) =
(10,639) (15,273)

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 12. ERLEREEK (&)

(CONTINUED)

VP RRECEBRN T —F—A—H
2T —FANE BRI ER (B AL
SRR EMEEEGER) AT

The results of the I0T system and 020 business for the
current from 1 January 2021 to 6 April 2021 which have
been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income, were as follows:

Period ended

6 April 2021 2020

B5E

B —F

MmAKAH
LEHARE —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHT
Revenue WA 31,146 228,038
Cost of sales HEKAK (28,520) (221,399)
Gross profit EF 2,626 6,639
Other income HAplA 523 47
Other gains and losses Ehas & BB (14) 208
Research and development expenses R MFEER (2) (1,927)
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD SHAR (3,792) (16,563)
Administrative expenses TR (9,137) (4,222)
Finance costs BhE A (35) -
Loss before taxation BrERIE R (9,831) (15,818)
Taxation I8 - 545
Loss for the period/year ANER,FEEE (9,831) (15,273)

During the period ended 6 April 2021, 10T system and 020
business contributed approximately HK$516,000 (2020:

BE_T_—FWANBLHHE - WS
ERLEERBRAAKEERMEER SR

EFEN516,0008 T (ZE-F

FRE

cash outflow of HK$6,722,000) to the Group’s net operating
cash flows and paid approximately HK$798,000 (2020:
HK$2,447,000) in respect of investing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Yunhao at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 39.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

76,722,000 7T) © WL ERE X4
798,000/ 70 (ZE=Z4F : 2,447,000/ 7T) ©

bPEERzEERABNEE A BNREER
B39 HEE -



12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

2. ERILEE XK (8)

Loss for the period/year from discontinued
operations has been arrived at after

charging (crediting):

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in

cost of sales and services)

Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
(included in cost of sales and services)

Staff costs:
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Period
ended 6 April
2021 2020
Bz
—E-—F
MAZA
1EHARS —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FA&T
(restated)
(& E5)
RNEAR, FE BRI EER
BRI GTA)
EREERE G ABEE KRB
FAR) 9 22
B BERNMENER 9) (22)
Y - BE RERETE
- 963
EREEENE 726 3,669
BRA/FZ 2 FEKA
Gt ASHE R ARTEAA) 28,520 221,399
BIRA :
Hih 8 TR
—T& RAEMEF 4,623 13,871
—IRIRREAIE SR
1,022 1,444
5,645 15,315

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

2. ERIEE R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

On 23 December 2020, the Group entered into sale
agreements to dispose of a subsidiary, Shanghai Jizhi,
which carried out majority of the Group’s intelligent
manufacturing business. The disposal was effected in order
to generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s
other businesses. The disposal was completed on 24
December 2020, on which date the control of Shanghai Jizhi
Automation Technology Co., Limited passed to the acquirer.

The loss for the year from the discontinued operations is
set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income have been restated to re-present the intelligent
manufacturing business as a discontinued operation.

Loss of intelligent manufacturing
business for the period/year 0)%iE]

Gain on disposal of intelligent B R RLEE 1S
manufacturing business (see note 39) (RMI5E39)

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BE-—Z-_ZFf+-_A=+—HLEFE
RZB-ZTFE+-_A=-+=0 ~&EEI L
ERFENHENB AR LFHE  MALEEK
BoME RIS EK B RZMB AR
REEARESAREBEREAEEHEMER 2 H
SMMETHE - HEERZZ_TF+_HA
Z+MESER - B8R EAEEEEARAR
EEHIRE A R B B AU ES T -

AREFREERIEREXBERIIRAT
FelERaRkEtEERERNEBRBTFEE
5 DA ERERERBENIIRERILEER
7% o

AER, FEREREEY

Yo s

2020 2019
—g-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBR FHT
(4,204) (18,233)
5,613 -
1,409 (18,233)




12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

ERIERERE (&)

The results of the intelligent manufacturing business for the
period from 1 January 2020 to 24 December 2020, which
have been included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, were as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other Income

Impairment losses under expected
credit loss model, net of reversal

Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the period/year

WA
HEMA

EF

HAUA
BEHEEREEATZ
RIERTE - HkREE
HitbWozs I E1E

MR LkRAEER
SHE R IR
TR

BE A

BT A B 1R

MR

AR, FEEE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, intelligent
manufacturing business contributed approximately
HK$24,666,000 (2019: HK$59,702,000) to the Group’s net
operating cash flows, paid approximately HK$22,770,000
(2019: HK$47,741,000) in respect of investing activities and
paid approximately HK$1,362,000 (2019: HK$1,356,000)

in respect of financing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Jizhi Automation Technology Co., Limited at the date of

disposal are disclosed in note 39.

Bt ARG EMEANERA—ZE=-F
F—A—HE_T_TF+_A-_+WHHH
RS RS IS FEEH YA T ¢

Period ended

24 December Year ended
2020 2019

BZ
—EIERF HE
+=A=+mA —E-NF
LHEAFS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
134,885 126,487
(99,676) (89,357)
35,209 37,130
3,470 3,698
- (3,758)
(1,258) 152
(21,406) (23,445)
(7,984) (11,567)
(14,147) (17,686)
(31) =
(6,147) (15,476)
1,943 (2,757)
(4,204) (18,233)

HE_Z-_TF+_A=Z1+—HILEFE  Ti
BIEEKARNEEAERMCERSREFAY
24,666,000 7T (ZZ — L4 : 59,702,000/%8

70) - W E EE (4 4922,770,000/8 7T (=
T— N4 : 47,741,000/87T) @ BEEVEEE X
491,362,000 7T (ZE— N4 : 1,356,000
BIT) °

LEREEBHREERARNEERABRY
& AR REEN M EI9ARKE

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 12. BAIEKREER (E)
(CONTINUED)
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(restated)
(&&E5)
Loss for the year from discontinued RERERE R IHEE X EHELD
operations has been arrived at after R GTA) ¢
charging (crediting):
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in fEFZEE# S G ASEE RARTE
cost of sales and services) A ) 38,769 53,931
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories B BEERNMENFE (38,769) (53,931)
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREERTE
equipment 1,062 2,431
Less: Amount capitalised in development B BEERNERFARERA
costs - (82)
1,062 2,349
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 3,937 1,534
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R AR 2 FERK A
(included in cost of sales and services) (Fr ASHE KRB A) 99,676 89,357
Staff costs: BITAA :
Other staff costs HEh 8 TR
— Salaries and other benefits —TEREMEF 21,266 21,112
— Retirement benefits scheme — RGBT B R
contributions 2,033 4,409
23,299 25,5621
Less: Amount capitalised in B BEERNERFAZERA
development costs (2,025) (8,301)
21,274 17,220
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

13. XFEBHE

Loss for the year from continuing operations
has been arrived at after charging
(crediting):

Auditor’'s remuneration

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in
cost of sales and services)
Less: Amount capitalised in development
cost
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Impairment loss recoginsed in respect of
intangible assets (included in cost of sales
and services)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Less: Amount capitalised in development
costs
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Covid-19 related rent concessions (Note 18)

REEHFHBREEBBIEE N
BGTA) -

ZERE B

B A EME GTARE KRS
F7R)

B BEMERFER A

o EEAMENER

BB ERER < BUERTE

(FFASHE R ARFEARA)

W% BERRBTE

B BEMERIFRER A

W BEMENEE

FREEENE
Covid-19+BEE M & &Rk (#77718)

2021 2020
—E- —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(restated)

(& ES)

2,300 2,300
44,012 66,522
(163) (601)
(43,849) (65,921)
19,000 19,000
39,538 37,698
(1,459) (2,037)
(23,818) (26,210)
14,261 9,451
12,308 5,835

- 79

BANMEEBERAR — T ——F 53k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 13. XFEEEE (&)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(restated)
(B&=75)
Allowance (reversal) of inventories (included 17 &% (B ml)
in cost of sales and services) (note Ji) (GT ASHE RARTEEA) (Hi7ti) 48,335 (28,699)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense FER &5 < 7 17 &R AN
(included in cost of sales and services) FEASHE K& ARTEAAN) 610,552 532,403
Cost of properties sold BEEMERKA
(including in cost of sales and services) GTASHE R R A) 170 =
Cost of manufacturing services B RIS RO AR
(including in cost of sales and services) (FrASHE RRFBEKA) 92,485 72,210

Staff costs: BTHRA :

Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) BEMe Haz10) 3,612 2,339
Other staff costs Hh 8 TR

— Salaries and other benefits —TE&RHMEN 238,909 142,129

— Retirement benefits scheme —RIRREFFT B B
contributions 54,862 19,068
297,383 163,536

Less: Amount capitalised in B BB AR
development costs (37,100) (53,020)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories A BEERMMENEFE (25,039) (18,730)
235,244 91,786

Notes: et -

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020, Covid-19 related (i) HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE -
government grants/assistance amounted to HK$27,031,000 have Covid-194HRABUFIE B LA #2B)27,031,000/%5
been offset against retirement benefits scheme contributions TCE BRERET SR REESE (2021F : )
(2021: Nil).

(i) The reversal of write down of inventories arose due to sales of (i) WA FE 2 BB R EE R TRUATFEERRE
certain products which had been written down to net realisable AIERFMECEMMESE

value in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBEmRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-S-—F1-A=t—HLFE
14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final ESVTEEREE S - —FR-_T-FTF
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. TZ A=+ —RIFERSRBARKRS -
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE

For Continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows: ESEHFTEMT :

FREREER
RRAREE NEIEFIRER R EEE R TR A
TEEE

Loss for the year attributable to owners 2R 2Q FIHEA A BIE AR EE EE

of the Company

Add: hn

Loss for the year from discontinued REZREELILE
operations KR E BRI SR

Loss for the purposes of basic and ATEFESEEBN
diluted loss per share from BREXR KB EEE
continuing operations it

Number of shares ROEE

Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EEREAR REEEEN

shares for the purpose of basic L mAR IR a2 B

and diluted loss per share

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
computation of diluted loss per share did not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options since
their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share from continuing operations.

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(restated)
(g&=751)
(245,800) (38,323)
9,245 17,142
(236,555) (21,181)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
'000 ‘000
T TFix
2,317,901 2,386,582

E_T_—FR-T_TF+_A=+—H
LFE - AESEEEERR - ARAARH
RETERBREZ BRTESEZREFHER
EEBOEREBIERD - S ERRZEBR
REETTIE -

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (coNTINUED)

15.

BREE (E)

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss B8

Loss for the purpose of basic
and diluted per share

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operations is HKO.39 cents per share (2020: HKO0.72
cents per share), based on the loss for the year from the
discontinued operations of approximately HK$9,245,000
(2020: HK$17,142,000) and the denominators detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2000, the
computation of diluted loss per share did not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options since
their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share from discontinued operations.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

REFECERERILREXEK
ARBEEEARERFBEREERD R IREER
MR R SRR TIRIBIA NIRRT E

AHEEBREAREEER B

2021 2020
—E-—f —ETF
HK’000 HK'000
FHET BT
(restated)
(& E5))
(245,800) (38,323)

RSB E il EEREANEEEENS
BHAR -

RECRIEERER

R E AR I TS R AN S 518 499,245,000
BIL(ZE =T F 1 17,142,000 7T) & EXGF
MHSRERREEER 2T E BRI
4 TR TR A R E B 1R AT %0.397%8
W((ZZE=FF - GRO.725L)

HE-_ZT - —FR-T-_TFF+-A=+—H
ILFE - STEEREEEER - ARARTH
RETEERE 2 BRRTEEEBRREERLE
FELEEBNTREGERD - BB RZ
SHEREETTE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBEmRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-P-—F+-A=t-ALFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWZE
HK$'000
FAET
FAIR VALUE A¥E
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—H—H 608,388
Transfers from property, plant and EEBEYE - BB MEE
equipment 30,615
Transfer from right-of-use assets HERMRAREEE 7,602
Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets  #{# FRIEEE A R E
and property, plant and equipment = kR EERERATE
to investment properties at fair value ABRZIRE Y 2 BER 40,642
Decrease in fair value recognised R ER 2 A FER D
in profit or loss (14,914)
Exchange differences ERZER 46,239
At 31 December 2020 RZBE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H 718,572
Transfers from property, plant and HEBYE - RE&RE
equipment 25,033
Transfer from right-of-use assets HEEATRAEEE 7,200
Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets  #5{# A E A K WZ -

and property, plant and equipment
to investment properties at fair value

B kR EERERATE
ARZREYEZ BER 30,967

Decrease in fair value recognised RIEEFER 2 A FER D

in profit or loss (3,028)
Exchange differences fERZER 15,011
At 31 December 2021 R—ZE—_—F+—-_A=+—H 793,755
Unrealised loss on property valuation KRB —Fit AB&EZ

included in profit or loss in 2021 RERYZHERE (3,028)
Unrealised loss on property valuation RZBZZTFFAERZ

included in profit or loss in 2020 RERYEAEREE (14,914)
The Group’s investment properties are held under medium- REBR N2 1% &Y TIRE R BAE R

term leases in the PRC.

o

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH

205



206

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

T F+A=+—HLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

16. REY* ()

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2021 and 2020 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not related to the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent what knowledgeable willing parties would
assume about rental income for future leases in the light of
current conditions. The rate is determined by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial and industrial properties in Shanghai and
Shenyang. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of
the reporting period, the chief financial officer of the Group
works closely with the independent qualified professional
valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs. Where there is a material change in
the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to the management of the Group.
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EFERAERR -

ERfEYEZ A TER - WEZ&Re R&ER
BREBIAR - REEHR  AREHHE
EEBVABEREXRMAEMBAIE - AL
REEAENBERT RBARE - HEEZ
RFEHREEAES  BRAASEEEEER
HEK R 2 REA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED) 16.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

BREY = ()

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2021

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs
AVERE BRI AYE TAEZRAHE
HK$'000
THET
Investment properties in Shanghai - Commercial
REBZIREYHE %
Level 3 Income 530,752 (i) Capitalisation rate
E=K capitalisation (i) BRI =
approach
WABRLE

(i) Market rent
(i) TimHe

(iii) Growth rate
(jii) B RE

EREATNTERRABBETAVETEZ

TRETEEREMERTHEMA 2 AERT
RIGERATAZ N BREAZRE -

R-ZE-—%+=ZA=+—H

Range of
unobservable
inputs

GLIE =
BANBEE

5.5%-8.5%

RMB3.94-RMB10.21
per month
per square meter
BAGTAX
ARE3HUTE
ARK1021T

1.0%-1.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABE
BABEH
AFEZBR

A slight increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
Versa.

B RMEGES -
RPN TENEX
BE - RZ IR

A'significant increase
in the market rent
would result in a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

mERENEALS -
LEHATENER
B R o

A slight increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

EREMEES
SEYATENER
BE - RZIA o

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_ZT-_—4F+-A=1+—HIEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED) 16.

BREY= (H)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (conTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021 (CoONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

DFERR

Investment properties in Shanghai - Industrial

Valuation
techniques

HERT

REBZRENHE-TX

Level 3
E=K

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

Income
capitalisation
approach

WABR

Fair value

AV
HK$'000
57

118,690

Unobservable inputs

TAIBRRGARE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) BAfL &

(ii) Market rent
(i) e

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) B R =

EREATTHRGARBETAVENEZ

R-ZEBE-_—F+-A=+—H @)

& ()
Range of
unobservable
inputs
TABE
BAYEEE
6.5%

RMB1.01-RMB1.43
per month
per square meter
SASTHX
ARELOIEE
AREL43T

0.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAEE
BAZESR
ATEZER

A slight increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
versa.

B ERMEHEE
LEYATENER
BE - RZ I o

A significant increase
in the market rent
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

mEHENEAES -
SEYATENER
5 RZIA o

A slight increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

EREMENLS
2EHNTENEX
BE - RZIA o
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED) 16.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

BREY = ()

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (conTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021 (coNTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

DFERRE

Investment properties in Shenyang - Commercial

Valuation
techniques

HERT

MBS 2 IREWR B

Level 3
E=K

Income
capitalisation
approach

WABR

Fair value

AV
HK$'000
57

15,252

Unobservable inputs

GOLIE 1PN ¢

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) EAL

(ii) Market rent
(i) 5 S

(iii) Growth rate
(jii) B R

EREATNTERRABBETAVETEZ

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TUERE
BABEBHE
AFEZBR

EH (&)
R=-ZB-—$+=ZA=+—H @

Range of

unobservable

inputs

TURE

BARBEE

5.5%

RMB1.26 per month
per square meter

BRETHKA
AR¥1.267T

1.5%

A slight increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
versa.

B RMEHIES -
EHATENEX
RIE - RZIA

A significant increase
in the market rent
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

miEHENEAES
BYATENER
B8 R2ZIA

A slight increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

EREMENLE
SBYATENER
B R o

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_ZT-_—4F+-A=1+—HIEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED) 16.

BREY= (H)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (conTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021 (CoONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

DFERE

Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial

Valuation
techniques

HERT

MBS ZREWE - T3

Level 3
E=K

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

Income
capitalisation
approach

WABR A

Fair value

AV
HK$'000
57

129,061

Unobservable inputs

TAIBRRGARE

(i) Capitalisation rate

() EAR{ %

(if) Market rent
(i) T35S

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) B R =

EREATTHRGARBETAVENEZ

R-ZEBE-_—F+-A=+—H @)

& ()
Range of
unobservable
inputs
TABE
BAYEBEE
6.5%

RMB0.51-RMB1.29
per month
per square meter
BABTAHK
AREO0SITE
AR®1.297T

1.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FIBE
BABEBHE
AFEZBRE

A slight increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
versa.
BEAMLEMEHEE
SEYATENER
BIE - RZIA o
A significant increase
in the market rent
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
mEHENEAES -
EYATENER
5 RZIA o
A slight increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.
EREMENLS
SERHNTENEA
BE - RZIA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED) 16.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

BREY = ()

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (conTINUED)
As at 31 December 2020

Fair value
hierarchy

DTPERRE

Investment properties in Shanghai - Commercial

Valuation
techniques

hERD

REBZRENE-EE

Level 3
F=H

Income
capitalisation
approach

WABR(E

Fair value

AVE
HK$'000
570

503,928

Unobservable inputs

GLIE 1PN ¢

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) EAE &

(i) Market rent
(i) S

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) SERE

EREATNTERRABBETAVETEZ

' ()

RZEZTF+_A=+—H

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FAEE
BABEHE

5.5%-8.5%

RMB3.85-RMB10.83
per month
per square meter
BRETHA
ARE38LE
AR¥10.837T

1.0%-1.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABR
BAZEH
AVEZER

A slight increase in
the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
B RMEGUES -
SBYATENER
BE - RZIA o
A significant increase in
the market rent would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
mERenEAES -
SERHNTEMEX
B R2A o
A slight increase in
the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
EREMENEE
EHATENEX
B RZIA -

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_ZT-_—4F+-A=1+—HIEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED) 16.

BREY= (H)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (conTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020 (CONTINUED)

Fair value
hierarchy

DFERRE

Investment properties in Shanghai - Industrial

Valuation
techniques

fHERT

REBZREME-TX

Level 3
F=H

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

Income
capitalisation
approach

WAB

Fair value

AVE
HK$'000
57

106,212

Unobservable inputs

TURRGAYE

(i) Capitalisation rate

() ER{LE

(i) Market rent
(i) 5 E

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) R *

EREATTHRGARBETAVENEZ

BB ()

R_ZE_ZFF+_A=+—HE)

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FUEE
BANBEE

6.5%

RMB1.0-RMB1.4
per month
per square meter
BABTAK
ARELOLE
ARBLAT

0.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABE
BARESR
AFEZBR

A'slight increase in
the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
B EMENEE
SBHNTENEA
BIE - RZIA o
A significant increase in
the market rent would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
mEHENEALS -
SEYATENER
#E - RZIA o
A slight increase in
the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
EREMEHES
SERHNTENEX
BE - RZIA o



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

16. REW* ()

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (conTINUED)
As at 31 December 2020 (CONTINUED)

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques Fair value
DPERE fEERT AYE

HK$'000

TEx
Investment properties in Shenyang — Commercial
REBG 2 IREYHE %
Level 3 Income 16,032
E=K capitalisation

approach
WABRLE

Unobservable inputs

TAEERAYE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) ERfEE

(i) Market rent
(i) TimHe

(iii) Growth rate
(jii) =%

EREATNTERRABBETAVETEZ
' ()

ToBEI-A=+—B @

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FAEE
BABEHE

5.5%

RMB1.31 per month
per square meter

BAGTAX
AR¥L31T

1.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
THEE
BWAEHE
AFEZBR

A slight increase in
the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
BAMEERMEHEES
SEHNTEMER
BE - RZIA o
A significant increase in
the market rent would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
mEREMEALS
EHATENER
#E - RZIA -
A'slight increase in
the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
EREMENES
SEBYATENER
Em - R2IA o

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cONTINUED) 16.

BREY= (H)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (conTINUED)
As at 31 December 2020 (CONTINUED)

HK$'000
TR

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques
AVERE BRI AYE
Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial
REBEGZREYHE T
Level 3 Income 92,400
F=5K capitalisation

approach

WABRE

Fair value

Unobservable inputs

TUEERAYE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) ER{E

(i) Market rent
(i) TiEMHE

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) R

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified

and accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not pledged
investment properties (2020: fair value of approximately
HK$132,517,000) to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

EREATTHRGARBETAVENEZ

BB ()

R_ZE_ZFF+_A=+—HE)

Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable
inputs inputs to fair value
AABE
TABE BWABEE
BABEEE AFEZBRE
6.5% A slight increase in

RMBO0.51-RMB1.25

the capitalisation

rate would result in

a significant

decrease in fair

value, and vice versa.
BEAMEEMEHES

SEHNTENEA

BE - RZIA o

A significant increase in

per month the market rent would
per square meter result in a significant
BABERXK increase in fair value,
AR¥051TE and vice versa.
AREL25T mEReNEAES -
2ERHNTENEX
5 RZIA o
1.5% A slight increase in

the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
EREMEHES
SBYATENER
5 RZIA o

HE_Z-_—FR-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—H
IFFE - BEER e SR E = o

AEBARELE

HESBLERREEK

BEARRERBRNYFERES  HRARFERN
SAEERABERARIAREE -

R-ZT-—F+-_A=+—H NEELEEK
EME(CETZTF : RREHAF132,517,000
VBT B FIRIE - (EARNEEATES AR TR
BZER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 1% - MERRE

Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant and
improvements fixtures machinery Motor
Buildings HEME R HA BER vehicles Total
EF % R#E s RE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TER TER TET TET
COST 7
At 1 January 2020 RZ2-ZF-H-H 328,381 5319 234,906 255,153 8839 832,598
Exchange differences ExzE 18871 727 16,897 17,900 531 54926
Additions AE 747 6,321 6,980 8,047 1,159 23,254
Disposals e (108) = (1,026) (1,140) (1671) (3,945)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (850) = (122) (972)
Transfers to investment BRERENE
properties (53,713) - - - - (53,713)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FE+-A=1-H 204,178 12,367 256,907 279,960 8,736 852,148
Exchange differences ExZR 4734 358 4,853 5,737 154 15836
Additions AE (3,114) 9,620 8,267 31,164 1,716 47653
Disposals e (51) - (2,745) (2,769) (505) (6,070)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - (23,506) (1,090) (1,476) (26,071)
Transfers to investment BRERENE
properties (46,153) - - - - (46,153)
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F+-fA=1-H 249,594 22,345 243,777 313,002 8625 837,343
DEPRECIATION AND REREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 R-2-%F-F—-H 161,940 4,467 225818 165,783 6,878 564,886
Exchange differences ExzZ 10,170 2% 16,304 12,585 369 39,723
Charge for the year REE R 11,135 - 7,257 21381 579 40,352
Eliminated on disposals R EREH (102) - (913) (791) (1,587) (3393)
Eliminated upon disposal of R EKBA AR
subsidiaries - - (677) = (96) (773)
Transfers to investment ERERENE (23,098) - - - = (23,09)
properties
At 31 December 2020 W_2-2#+-A=1-H 160,045 4,762 247789 198 958 6,143 617,697
Exchange differences ExzE 2,188 117 3416 7,219 97 13,637
Charge for the year REE R 8945 2,260 5733 21,863 137 39,538
Eliminated on disposals R ERHH (49) - (1,788) (2,851) (434) (5,122)
Eliminated upon disposal of ~ REEHBAAHH - = (11,373) (826) (1,078) (13,277)
subsidiaries
Transfers to investment ERSRANE (21,120) - = = - (21,120)
properties
At 31 December 2021 W-2--#+-A=+-H 150,609 7,139 243771 224,363 5,465 631,353
CARRYING AMOUNTS KafE
At 31 December 2021 RZE--E+-A=1-H 98,985 15,206 - 88,639 3,160 205,990
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-EE+-A=1-H 134133 7,605 9,118 81,002 2593 234,451
BANBEEERAT T 4% 215
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

17. W% - M= R&RE (&)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost
less their residual values on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

W%~ BE RRETIZERARERISRERE
WIABARER THIFRITE :

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Equipment, furniture and fixtures

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

BF
HEMERES

3

Z

i BRAREE
TE

5%

The shorter of the lease terms and 5 years

HEHR MoF 2 e &
20%-25%

10%-20%

20%

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no pledged
buildings (2020: carrying value of approximately of
HK$44,725,000) to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group.

R-ZB-—F+-A=+—8 » KEFEKH
(ZE=ZF : HIFRAEEL 544,725,000/8
T0) ZIEF - EAKREBFTES —RIBTRHE
ZHER o

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EHEEE
Land use Office
rights Warehouse premises Total
11t {5 AR EE  HWAEYE “@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%-HA—H
Carrying amount REE 38,749 31,009 261 70,019
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_-F+ZA=t+-H
Carrying amount REE 30,980 7,188 6,634 44 802
For the year ended BE-E-—-5+-A=1+-H
31 December 2021 LFE
Depreciation charge nEEH 1,162 2,928 8,944 13,034
For the year ended BE-_E-EE+-A=1+-H
31 December 2020 HEE
Depreciation charge HEEHR 2,308 10,742 391 13,441
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Expense relating to short-term leases %S HATH & EREAR 2,202 2,605
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRERHERE 10,382 10,302
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEERNE 13,064 32,804

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (coNTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

18. EREEE (F&)

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of approximately 1 year to approximately 6 years,
but may have termination options as described below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner of
these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, lessors of
warehouse did not provide any rent concessions to the
Group (2020: rent reductions ranged from 16% to 22%).

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence
of Covid-19 pandemic and met of all of the conditions
in IFRS 16.46B, and the Group applied the practical
expedient not to assess whether the changes constitute lease
modifications. The effects on changes in lease payments
due to forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for the relevant
leases of HK$79,000 were recognised as negative variable
lease payments in 2020.

Restriction or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has pledged right-of-
use assets having a carrying value of approximately HK$Nil
(2020: HK$13,914,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Leases committed
As at 31 December 2021, the Group does not have new
leases that have not yet commenced.

RREFE  AEEOHESEARIE  BE
E2EZA HEAWZBEEFHMANIFE
#6%F - MERMR T XAt 4% L o FHER IR (3 5
EERER - B2 8 ASERTRA R RIS -
REERM L ETAIBUEHRE 2 RER - K
SEEAEMNZIER  YEEARITANZ
HAf o

o AEEBEFHETIEARE (ZEBEH
EREAEZR) RRAERT - AEBE/Z
EMEEn (BEAREE L) 2 BRET -
KRB ZEYERER - BB NRIEHN
Ko ZEBAYMEZHEE TINS5
WARNRETEELES -

HEER
BEZE-—F+-_A=+—HItEE "  &gE
HEAWERASEREEANESER (2
ZEF  HERPNFL6%E22%) ©

HeRREE ACovid-1I9RNRITHEEERR -
W& BRI 753 S RIS 16.46BR AV PT A 16
o MARBRAATEREZ T HHEZSE
HELENEEER - R-ZF_FTFHHEAR
Rk e EEE79,0008 T HE K
EENTERER R EEENK -

HERHIHZY
R-T-—F+-A=+—H AEEDEH
BREENTE T (ZZE_ZF : 13,914,000/
T ZIEREEE  tERASEMES —RKIR
TRVE Z AR -

SAHEEE

R-ZB-—F+-A=+—8  KREETER
RARZHAL -

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. B EE

cosT

At 1 January 2020
Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2020
Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2021

AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2020

Charge for the year

Exchange differences

Impairment loss recognised

Eliminated upon disposal of
subsidiaries

At 31 December 2020

Charge for the year

Exchange differences

Impairment loss recognised

Eliminated upon disposal of
subsidiaries

At 31 December 2021

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

B
RZE-TF—F—H
NE

HERBAF
Exz2

W-Z-FF+-A=1-A
RE

HERBRR

Exzg

RZE-—F+-A=1-H
BERRE

RZE-ZF—f—H
AEEAR
ERzE

R HEEE
= =N [

RZE-ZFF+-A=1-H
AEFMR

Exz&

R HEEE
R B A R 8

R-ZE-—%+-A=1-H

REE
RZZE-—%+-A=1-A

RZZ-ZFF+-A=1-A

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

Licence  Development Technical Customer

fee costs know-how contracts Total
ATAEE RERA EER EPaH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL THL THL TAL
99,653 1,086,694 71,339 27,514 1,285,200
43 68,334 - - 68,377
= (9,039) = = (9,039)

6,835 78,017 - - 84,852
106,531 1,224,006 71,339 27,514 1,429,390
14,179 41 562 - - 55,741
= (180) = = (180)

2,231 5,087 - - 7318
122,941 1,270,475 71,339 27,514 1,492,269
80,297 989,346 71,339 27,514 1,168,496
6,688 98,625 - - 105,313
5,898 73,142 - - 79,040
4,500 14,500 - - 19,000
= (8,914) = = (8,914)
97,383 1,166,699 71,339 27,514 1,362,935
8,689 35,332 - - 44,021
1,899 3871 - - 5,770

- 19,000 - - 19,000
= (18) = = (18)
107,971 1,224,884 71,339 27,514 1,431,708
14,970 45,591 - - 60,561
9,148 57,307 - - 66,455




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—FT-A=+-ALFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 9. BILEE (&)
Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of AEEZHAIFEE  EERMAEFEHA
the Group were acquired from third parties. BE=FEE -
The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible assets BEEGCREHAER - BEEENERE
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following BOA T HA B 5H -
period:
Licence fee 1-5 years AEE 1Z=5%F
Development costs 9 months-2 years R ofl H =24
Technical know-how 5-8 years HHE R 584
Customer contracts 3 years EEAEH 3F
The Directors reviewed on the project development status EFCEHBERENRR  WERES TIE
and identified certain projects have been postponed without BEEWHEE  WEAERNHRRLERSR
a foreseeable future economics cash inflow. As a result, an ARAlt BEZE=FT=_—F+=-A=+—H
impairment loss of HK$19,000,000 (2020: HK$19,000,000) WWFEE REZEEHBEEHEY F;EJ?%EZ,Z]K
is recognised on the development costs associated to those TR REET1E 19,000,000 T (ZE —FF :
postponed projects for the year ended 31 December 2021. 19,000,000/ 7T) °

20. DEFERRED TAX 20. EEFIE

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during
the current and prior years.

INTBRAFERBEFE - FEEMFER
TERERA (BB EERARES -

Write-down of  Impairment of

Revaluation of  Development inventories property,  Revaluation of

equity cost and trade plant and investment
instrument at FVTOCI capitalised receivables equipment properties Total

BAFEITA FEREY

Eft2EkE2 25-u34 EZEX 0% BER REME
RATRER R A RGHE Eft o3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TiEn TR TR TR
At 1 January 2020 AZZ-ZE-R-H (727) (13,494) 26,338 13,464 (93,902) (68,321)
Exchange differences ExZR 17) (1,040) 1,777 18 (6,731) (5,993)
Credit (charge) to profit o loss REgREAGR) - 6,584 (1,507) 1878 4,052 11,207
Credit to other comprehensive income ~ REM2ERETA (79) - - - (9,250) (9,329)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEETZA=T-HR (823) (7.950) 26,608 15,360 (105,631) (72,436)
Exchange differences ExZZ - (353) 2,068 129 (2,113) (269)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss RERFTA MR = (3615) 9,542 = 1,157 7,084
Credit to other comprehensive income I E 2 EREPEA (456) - - - (7484) (7.940)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (773) - - (773)
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ-F+ZR=1-H (1,279) (11,918) 37,445 15,489 (114,071) (74,334)

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 20.

IEFERTE (1)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FRIEFIAE EE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE F

At 31 December 2021, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$775,617,000
(2020: HK$570,952,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses was HK$204,665,000 (2020:
HK$141,404,000) that will expire by 2026 (2020: 2025).
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$806,084,000 (2020: HK$1,083,679,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

220 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

AT IOt A 16 8 S Ve 2 IBFE B AR AT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
68,824 54,029
(143,158) (126,465)
(74,334) (72,436)

R-TZ-—F+-F=+—H BLlET
MELEERABEN  ANEERNBRAREARD
AR IEEEL775,617,0008 T (—E-F
F : 570,952,000 7T) A] {3 88 R 2R m Al o
MRZEMBRRRIHEF R TEA - &
WEBRREEHBEE - RBAHEBEF
204,665,000/8 T (ZF =T : 141,404,000
BIL)BR T "F(CZE_TF: —_F-H
F) fEm o HtEEr SR -

RIBPBECEMRFEVE - APBERBRRRN =
ZTN\F— A - BEARSENEROKEE
BRI - LR A MR ARA L BEHTE
N BIORER 4 M| ) B B 22 $E 806,084,000 7T (=
T ZF4 : 1,083,679,000/ 7T) 1E iR AE R IE
B REAAEBEMEHIZEER RN
EIFR - ARZSERZRAERN RABRIA
A REREE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. A& N R 2R
2021 2020
—E- —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Costs of investments in unlisted RIELEMEE QT2
associates B Z AR 47,914 35,873
Share of post-acquisition profit (losses) &4 EE1 % 7 (E518) 11,699 (3,325)
59,613 32,548
The Group had interests in the following associates: REFN I HES AT P IEE LR .
Form of Principal Proportion of Proportion
business Country of place of Class of registered capital of voting
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation share held held by the Group power held Principal activities
K&
RE%R EHGRY AfRiER IEEXHE  FRROEH ERERLH figsiEs ] IERH
% % % %

2021 20 2021 0
g--F CECEE Cg0-F CRCRF

Shanghai Jizhi Automation Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered 49 89 49 ) Development of automated
Technology Co., Limited capital (Note i) (Wote i) fest equipment in the PRC
(“Shanghai Jizhi“)

et 2z s 1 3 HE ki HER 49 49 49 9 EREREELR
([ Lige]) (Wi ) 3k

LERENEENE Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered 40 4 40 4 Software development
BRAR(HERE) capttl

B HE A ifEs 40 4 40 0 BEE%
LEERETERAR Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered 415 - 415 - Developmentof handsets
([E55R)) capttl (Note i) (Note i) and 107 terminals business
in PRC
i ke hE g 415 - 415 - HERETEIEE
(i) (i) B

ERNRKEEERAR T FFR 221
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CE

21.

—E_—F+ZRA=t+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTINUED)

21. REE N F] 2 s ()

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
incorporated /8485 with registered capital of RMB20,000,000.
Initial capital injection of RMB4,000,000 was made by the
Group upon incorporation. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group has injected RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$4,800,000) into /B E (2020: capital commitment of
RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to HK$4,800,000). The Group’s

capital commitment is set out in note 34.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed
of a 51% interest in Shanghai Jizhi to third parties for proceeds of
RMB26,668,000. The disposal of a subsidiary is set out in note
39.

The Group has 49% ownership interest and voting rights in
Shanghai Jizhi. By considering that the Group has no sufficiently
dominant voting rights to direct the relevant activities of Shanghai
Jizhi unilaterally, the Directors of the Company conclude that
the Group only has significant influence over Shanghai Jizhi and
therefore it becomes as an associate of the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Shanghai Jizhi as at 31
December 2020 was HK$30,342,000, subject to HK$2,719,000
gain on revaluation of the retained 49% interest of Shanghai Jizhi
in 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
entered into a sale agreement to dispose of its 8.6% equity
interest in Shanghai Zhenkang Electronics Limited (“Shanghai
Zhenkang”) that support the Group’s handset and IOT Terminals
business in the PRC. The Group originally owns 50.1% equity
interest in Shanghai Zhenkang. The disposal was completed on
16 April 2021, on which date the Group lost control of Shanghai
Zhenkang. With 41.5% equity interest in Shanghai Zhenkang,
the Directors of the Company conclude that the Group no longer
controls but has significant influence over Shanghai Zhenkang
and therefore it becomes as an associate of the Group. The fair
value of the Group’s investment in Shanghai Zhenkang in 16 April
2021 is HK$2,234,000.

In addition, the Group has injected an additional RMB4,150,000
(equivalent to HK$5,007,000) into Shanghai Zhenkang for the new
registered capital issued by Shanghai Zhenkang in July 2021, in which

the new registered capital were contributed by the shareholders in

proportion of their shareholdings.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash

dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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(ii)

(iii)

ES -
($855145,007,0008 7T) fE B LB REN —F —

BHE_Z-—AF+T-_A=+—BIEFE &K
SEAMKRZLEERTE  TMEARBARE
20,000,0007T ° 7~ B 7 5t il A 32 B 4] 201 &
AER#¥4,000,000T - HE=ZT=-—F+= A
=+—HBIEFE AEBEEMLERFEIEA
R #4,000,0007T (485 144,800,000/% 7T) (=&
ZZF  BAREPE ARY4,000,0007T (165 R
4,800,000/ 7T) ° ANEME 2 & AR EEH ML
34

BE_ZT-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE A£H
ME=FHE HERES1%NER - FTFRIER
AR26,668,0007T ° A FAMIE AR K HE SR
BRI ©

REBHES LBREIORNMAERERE RERE
o ZREIARSEI R AR R A
B EEE LBRENIEREE  ARARESR
RAEEYH LBREEFERTES  EILEK
RAEE B E R A

RZZ_ZTFE+-A=+—H  AEER LK
BHIRE A TFER30,342,000/8 7T » ARFR
T TESH BT 249%RE a2 Wik
2,719,000 7T 5E °

HE-_T--—F+-A=1+—HILLFE  ~%£EH

BRI HEWRH WHEER LEXFETAR
RAE([EEREE]  ZARXFHASERHESN

F B B AR E 1) #08.6% R - AEREIR
SR EBERN50.1% K - ZEHEER =

“—FEATRARK  AEERZARESH
LSRRG - AR LEEREE41.5%
et - MARRERERRAEETHREG Lg%
FEHEREARTES  AUZARKAAE
EHBERE - AEER —F - —FWA+<A
H DEERNIRE N A TER2,234,000/8 7T

AEED R DEREREINEEAREA4,150,0007T
—FtA

BATEVREMEAR - B i E A RRIZ RS 255
BRLE DI E -

B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (coNTINUED)

21.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

REE Q8 2 ()

Summarised financial information of each reporting period is
not disclosed as it is not material to the Group.

Summarised financial information of material associates
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSs.

Summarised financial information of material associates
(CONTINUED)

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

Shanghai Jizhi

Current assets MENE E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mENBE
Revenue WA

Profit for the year N g F

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of Shanghai Jizhi BB EEETE
Non-controlling interests of Shanghai /&S B AR 2
Jizhi ‘s subsidiaries eI RS

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBN LSS 2
interest in Shanghai Jizhi HERRERE R L
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZNS£ @7 F/EHE 2

in Shanghai Jizhi Reas i) AR TE (B

EREHMBERNRZLREE - AAEEAR
SEMELTAERK -

ERRE LR UBEREE
TXHIAEEEZR LN E 2 W EE R
2 - NTHBERBERRIBIBEEENBERE
EAREL B E NRIM SRR TR 28 -

EERE AR ZMBEREE (5D

REREMEWmETR - BERTRAEESE
ENER o
FHRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FT
116,415 143,576
13,755 5447
(34,064) (96,373)
210,509 125,295
34,184 31,198
VA _E Bt 78 & RHE 2 B AR S B IS ek R FT TR
REE &R Tz ez HBRE (B AR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
96,106 52,650
- 3
96,106 52,653
49% 49%
47,092 30,342
BANBEEERAR T S5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. REtE QT 2 S ()

BRI EE B AT NAEER

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

2021 2020
—E=-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
The Group’s share of losses REBEELEE (1,726) (3,325)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEERZEHERTZ
Group’s interests in these associates M ARETEREE 12,521 2,206
22. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCl/ 22. AV EFAEMEEW R
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL HKIE/EQS}ZEE—rAEfﬁﬂgﬁ
BLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFEF AREMEE RS
comprise AT ABIE
Unlisted equity securities outside RAEBLAINE E T IRAE S 63,112 12,382
Hong Kong, at fair value (note /) (R DFE) (K1ati)
Financial assets at FVTPL comprise: EBEATEFABENEREERT
Listed equity securities in REB EMRAES B ATE) 4,152 6,408
Hong Kong, at fair value
Unlisted investment outside RBEBLAINE ETHIRE - 7,376
Hong Kong, at fair value (note ii) (BRAFE) (B aZi)
4,152 13,784

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(CONTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

22. BAFEFAEMZERERR
AIH BRAVEFARENE
BMEE (8

Notes:

()

(ii)

The Group’s unlisted equity securities investments in 2021
represent the 2.1997% and 14.97% equity interests respectively
in two private entities established in PRC. The Directors have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as at
FVTOCI.

In 2020, the Group’s unlisted securities investments represented
the 6% and 14.97% equity interests, respectively in two private
entities established in the PRC. However, the Directors is unable
to obtain the financial information of the unlisted equity securities
of 6% equity interest investment in a private PRC entity with a
carrying amount of HK$384,000 and therefore consider that
the irrecoverable amount from this unlisted equity investment is
minimal. An impairment of HK$384,000 is recognised in the other
gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The amount represents a contract of wealth management
investment with a company engaged in asset management
business and a bank in PRC. The principal of approximatety
HK$7,200,000 as at 31 December 2020 was unsecured and
unguaranteed.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Group, the fair values of the
wealth management investment as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$7,376,000, including fair value changes of HK$176,000
during that year. The wealth management investment was mature
during the year 2021.

23. INVENTORIES

Wit

(0] ARER B —F 2 EMBRAFHRERERR
MEER BRI Z FLEEE D BI5E 22.1997%
R14.97 %51k - ERDERHRFIRARE AR
AFEFARMEE RS BATA

NZZ_TF  AEEZFLETEFRERR
MEEFBERIZILELERDRIFHEL6% R
14.97 %5 4E - AT EFEEBUSH — R B
BEEZ6%RARERE 2 Ik EMBRAES (BR
A 73384,000/870) MBI B A K - EILRAZIE
ERRARENTRIRESEE ) - EREE=
- —F+- A=+ AUEFEZHEMEERE
B RERIR(E384,0008 7T °

(i) FZEREETR-FARFEEEEEBIARR
—HERITAI L EERREAN - N =&
FHZRA=1T—BZA£#%7,200,00087T ' &
AR R EER -

AEEEERER  ZEVEEERER-_T=F
F+=ZA=1+—HZAFEE7,376,000ET ' B
BZEZ AP EEE)176,0008TT - ZBHEE
BREEDR-ZS=_—FEFH -

24.

Raw materials =¥t
Work in progress ERm
Finished goods SRk

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

23. F&
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T
184,062 167,843
25,320 28,336
35,379 23,396
244,761 219,575

24. FEHENE

The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

AEBRFEHEMEOLNPE - PIERHEH
EMEDARA R AT BIRHEZ BRIRETIE

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

25. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

25. HttRBeMEE

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating
to Handsets and 10T terminals business and Electronics
manufacturing services business is 0-90 days. A longer
period is granted to a few customers with whom the Group

S BT R I AR AR S B T RS R TS
HEREBEBZERZ —REEHA/TED
R DEEAKEARFRBRHEBMBERR
REZEFPEERRZEEH - WERHEY

has a good business relationship and which are in sound
financial condition. There is no credit given to sales of
properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for credit losses, as well as notes receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of
the reporting period, which approximated the revenue
recognition dates:

Trade receivables JEUNE 5 8RR
0-30 days TEI0K
31-60 days 31 £60K
61-90 days 61290k
91-180 days 91£180K
Over 180 days HBiB180K

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE

Trade receivables FEWE Z BRI

Notes receivables (Note) FEWERR (B752)
0-30 days T E30K
31-60 days 31260k
61-90 days 61E90K
91-180 days 91£180K
Over 180 days HBAE180K

Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks

received from the customers.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

RRTEEH-

AT RRIE R (RERWAZ BHRE) &
WE 5 ER (NG EEBRRE) L RBKREER

RERAHEL ZRREDT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FIT
57,907 50,795
6,356 28,060
7,289 7,444
15,408 6,427
30,955 30,744
117,915 123,470
(27,290) (26,490)
90,625 96,980
5,034 -
495 7,577

13 2,936
1,832 8,446
245 199
7,619 19,158
98,244 116,138

Hiet - BIREERRRFWEERRITE 2 AL RE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

25. HttRE) € ME E (#)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. The Group has policy for provision of ECL,
which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and age
analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are grouped based on past due characteristics and
on management’s judgement including creditworthiness, the
past collection history and forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$42,208,000 (2020: HK$46,724,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$1,156,000 (2020: HK$4,456,000) has
been past due 30 days or more and is not considered as in
default because there was no historical default of payments
by the respective customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of
HK$6,031,000 (2020: HK$31,279,000) are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD"), which are not denominated
in the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 are set out in
note 41.

EMEMHEPA  AEEgHEEETPH

FEAMK - AREEAREK - RESHEEK
B 5 MR B 2 AT m AR A E R AR R D AT
(MEREHIBEEE K erEE AR EE
OB ARERE 2 A (BREEEFE - B
EERCELAELER  BEHEEEE
BB -

R-ZT-—F+-_FA=+—H KEEDHE
WE SRR EHBEERBERHEBHM
BRHE#E 542,208,000 T (ZE -8 :
46,724,000/ T) H) FE IR BR 3R o TR HA 4 64
0 1,156,000/ T (ZZE = : 4,456,000
7570) B HA30K kA 1B SRR AE LY -
TSR EBRRPIERELANRUEL - NEEW
ERZEEHFEETMEER - AEBEL EH
ZEERFHEAEAR -

R-—ZT-—F+-A=+—0 - 6,031,000/
T (=T 4 : 31,279,000/ 7T) IR E 5
IRFUAETT ([ FHE - WIELEREEE
BRI EMEHE -

HE_ T ZTFR T —F+-_F=+—H

I FERWE BRI ERH AR IS E N T
41 -

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

T F+A=+—HLFE

25. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

25.

Ht RS SMEE (@)

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will
be settled within twelve months after the end of reporting
period except for amounts of approximately HK$6,600,000
(2020: HK$6,600,000) due from former subsidiaries of
the Group, which are secured, interest bearing at 7% per
annum, guaranteed by the existing shareholder of the former
subsidiaries. The amount of HK$6,600,000 was originally
repayable on 31 December 2026 and therefore classified
as non-current assets in 2020. During the year ended 31
December 2021, a supplement agreement was entered into
by the Group with the former subsidiaries of the Group and
the other receivable is to be repayable by the end of 2022
with a revised interest at 4% per annum. As a result, the
whole outstanding amount of HK$6,600,000 was included in
other receivables at 31 December 2021 and disclosed and
disclosed as current assets. Deposits mainly represented trade
deposits paid to third parties.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments:

VAT recoverable AT EIEER

Interest receivables FEWHE,

Deposits paid to suppliers for HBEGTESIHNT
purchasing inventories HERGZIES

Receivables from a customer for
purchasing materials on its behalf

Prepayments TEfSFRIE
Rental and utility deposits HMERKEZES
Other receivables E th eI BR R

Less: Amount not receivable within
one year shown under

non-current assets Z I

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

el —BFFRRBYRIER

B IERENEER TSI
THR—FRKE

Hi KRR AERR 28 KRR EH
Re+ A AREE - M ERAKSE E [
B A R FKIB 416,600,000 T (ZFE-FF :
6,600,000 7T) B A B - LEMNET7EE
B - BATHBARBRERREEERRI
6,600,000 TREBER T -_~"F+=A
—t+—HEEZ RER-_ZT_ZFHHEAER
PEE - HE_T-_—F+-_A=1+—HILF
B ANEEERSE B ARG LT
& HEWRTEER S FRAEE -
CIEETF A E B4% - Bt » 6,600,000/ 7CH)
FEHREERBCEEARDEETARE
——FF+ A=+ AMNEMEKE - ZE
TEAINFE=ZF2EFEE -

AT REMERER ReERBENKEBEZD
i

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
69,386 61,465
- 6,847
58,188 62,084
- 80,377

9,323 8,571
2,390 2,569
20,693 24,919
159,980 246,832
- (6,600)
159,980 240,232
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

25. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

25. HttRE) € ME E (#)

The following is the breakdown of consideration receivables: AR R RE B RA AR -
2021 2020
—B—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current BNHA 23,214 26,832
Non-current JEBNHR 34,443 3,600
57,657 30,432

The consideration receivables represent the sales
consideration from the disposal of the Group’s subsidiaries
in which the amounts are repayable in accordance with the
terms of sales and purchase agreements. Details are set out
in note 39.

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and associates

Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

Details of impairment assessment of other financial assets
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set
out in note 41.

KRR EREHERNEEMNBRARMNHEERE
HAZEFRARBEEHRGHEE - 715

BAAKIEES9 °

FELW B N R e Bt 2 RIS IR IR R R AR IR

BRRAREER R REEREE -

HE_T-—FR T -"FTF+-_F=+—H
IEFEEME S EMRET GBI NME
41 -

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

26.

T F+A=+—HLFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

26.

BIERRTER EHRTEN
RETEGRRE

27.

The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2020:
1%) per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash,
short-term bank deposits and pledged bank deposits was
an amount of HK$268,325,000 (2020: HK$282,897,000)
denominated in RMB, which is not freely convertible into
other currencies.

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$16,145,000 (2020:
HK$5,857,000) as at 31 December 2021 were pledged
to secure the short-term general banking facilities granted
by banks (2020: short-term general banking facilities and
discounted bills).

At 31 December 2021, short-term deposits receive fixed
interest rates range from 1.45% to 4.02% (2020: 0.22% to
5.10%) per annum with original maturity over three months.

At 31 December 2021, bank balances and short-term bank
deposits of HK$279,791,000 (2020: HK$671,939,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

27.

AEBZIRITEBRIRESTENARKE BT
MZETLFHE o BITERIRFEFIRETE - £
EMRBIE(CE_ZTF : 18) - RITEHRK
BE - EHRITERARBEFRITFERAE
FE—E U ARKEGHEZ 3I8268,325,00075 7T
—Z T4 282,897,000/ 7T) © i E A
A ERERAEMEN -

REBR -_ZE-—F+_-_A=+—H2ZR1TF
716,145,000/ 7T (CE—F4F : 5 857,000
7L) B THEIF - (EARESIRITE LR A —ARIER
TEE (CE-FF - RITEEEH—MET
BhE M ARIRE R 2 ) -

R-B-_—&E+-_A=+—8 " REHBEA
“EANR EZEEERREUEFFIE] 45EE
4O02B(ZZ-T4F : 0.22EE5.10E):t B 2
JE ST -

RZFZ—F+ZA=1—H  UXTEN
SRTTAS R I A2 HRERTT 17 3279,791,000/8 7T
(ZZ =% : 671,939,000 7T) - BHEKIE
W3 AMER SR E BRI AL A

TRBEE

Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposits received
and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables (other than for the construction
of properties held for sale) principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30-90 days.

Payables and accrued expenditure on construction of
properties held for sale comprise construction costs and
other project-related expenses which are payable based on
project progress measured by the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

27. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

27. TREE

(%)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables
at the end of the reporting period is presented based on the
invoice dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes
payables is as follows:

0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31 60K
61-90 days 61FE90K
Over 90 days HBHAEIOKR
Trade payables FERTE SRR
Notes payables JERT R
0-30 days EEKIFN

As at 31 December 2021, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$16,834,000 (2020: HK$4,610,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Other payables, deposits received and accruals
The following is the breakdown of other payables, deposits
received and accruals:

Deferred income (note) BEIEWA (H13E)

Payables on acquisition of property, WHEMIZ - RE K
plant and equipment e 2 FETBR R

Accruals FEETRIE

VAT payables eI ER

Other payables E M FETER R

Deposits from tenants HARES

AT RRBERRAIEE BN ESRARE
BRENESRACEEAHAENER 2%

i BBV Z BRER AT
2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
124,475 129,913
3,144 1,884
4,844 5,899
46,027 47,167
178,490 184,863
40,362 14,641
218,852 199,504

R-Z-—F+-F=+—H  ENEZEZEX
M EERNBIEEITAHE 2 5IH16,834,0007%8
F : 4,610,000/87T) © ARAFIE
WIEA RSB TR ERTE -

E(-E-F

— = —=

Hitb AR - ERRSRIERE

T ARMENER  BWiRe RETRIEY
DT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEBT
45,736 44 659
2,566 8,396
30,236 18,807
4,193 849
11,021 1,886
13,088 17,145
106,840 91,742

RANKEBERAR

R FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

27.

EREE @)

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had deferred income
on government grants amounting to HK$45,736,000 (2020:
HK$44,659,000). Government grants are given to support the
research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting
to HK$44,429,000 (2020: HK$38,315,000) represented the
income that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within
12 months of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates
of the related assets and therefore has been presented to non-

current liabilities.

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

28.

MiF RZZEZ_—F+_A=+—B  AEEFEFT
15 B WA ZiEIEW A 45,736,000 (ZE =T
4 44,659,000 7T) ° BATIE B WA T AR
TREEBETFRERRMZFE - URKEY
c ZEHBEEBEZEW AR
BEHEERAIARIBEEE 2 ERBER
% c BINEBERAZECEBA+TBIE—%

44,429,000/ 7T (ZE = Z4 : 38,315,000/ 7T)

2R BEREEECTER - HHAMIA
TERRERPHRI2EAARBERTEER - A

2 ARFRBAME -

BNEE

Sale of handsets and I0T Terminals

Electronics manufacturing services

Sale of goods to vending machine
customers

Sale of properties
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HETREYBER S
BT RERBHER
AEBEREPHEER

HEWF

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EBF
+=A=+—-8B +=-A=t+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
123,232 124,484
2,730 2,990

- 1,847

450 294

126,412 129,615
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28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

28. XN EE(E)

Contract liabilities, that are expected to be settled within the
Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
based on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or
services to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and
2021, the entire balances are recognised as revenue to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2021
and expected to be recognised during the year ending 31
December 2022, respectively.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sale of handsets and IOT Terminals/Electronics
manufacturing services/Sale of goods to vending machine
customers

When the Group receives a deposit before the sale of
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
typically receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of
goods.

Sales of properties

The Group receives a percentage of contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. The percentage are specific to
each contracts based on the location and selling price of
the properties. The deposits result in contract liabilities
being recognised until the customer obtains control of the
completed property.

EMERAKEEREERENEENANA
BEINREAEERATFEESRIRBORTE
BEENBERAHAE -

PR _E_EFER T —FF+-_A=+—H
Wa@%ﬁﬁa'ium%ﬁ%%%ﬁiff
T F+ A=+ —HALEFENBRRERE
WARTESEREE—E_—F+-_A=1+—H
I FERER -

HEHRANABNESEEEYEN—RER
(F3/ NN

HEFRRMBAKE EFRERE ™E
BEREFHEER

HARERIHEEEmATKIIZE - HEKRE
MFBERBELANEE  BEEABAHM
BRZBANBBEERARLE - REFBBER
HE BT mATER30% E50% 8 R E

HEME

AEBEREFP R EEBHRARERRAL
BEMNEX-BDLIERERSE - BHEKIIIR
BEYEONEREEHEREEME DL
BECANBERERPMEHE RTYEMNZE
Bl T LARERR ©

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

T F+A=+—HLFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS

29. RITEE

Unsecured short-term bank
borrowings (Note 1)
Secured discounted bills (Note 2)

Notes:

IR AIRITER
(Hit1)

The short-term bank borrowings are unsecured, interest bearing
at London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus base point
of 70% and LIBOR plus base point of 90%, respectively and
repayable within one year from the date of withdrawal. The bank
borrowings are denominated in USD.

As at 31 December 2020, discounted bills included an amount
HK$36,000,000 denominated in RMB, which was the functional
currency of respective entities of the Group, and were secured
by notes receivables. The average effective interest rates of the
discounted bills at 3.11% per annum. Bills were issued through
intra-group transactions and the relevant group entities discounted
the bills to independent third parties. The bills receivable and
payable issued between group entities were fully eliminated on
consolidation.

The Group’s discounted bills were secured by investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, right of use asset and
pledged bank deposits of as disclosed in notes 16, 17, 18 and 26
respectively.
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BIERBIRTRE W22

pat -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
41,851 =

- 36,000

41,851 36,000

RHRITEEREER  ZEBRITRAXFEN
E ([LIBORI) 5 hin70% E 2 K LIBOR 5 1190 % £

BhETE - ARRHR B s —FAEE - RITE
EUASETTAHE -

R-ZZE_ZTF+-_A=+—8 RRAEREHE
UHEASEEER EERARBHEZERE
36,000,000/ 7T) » I AR E AR - Bh
RARBZFPHERFENERR31IE - 25REE
BEENRR 53T MAARKERRERIER
RTBUF=)7 - KEEREMBET 2 RENE
NRBERRE ARR 2BUKH -

AEERERZRTIARENE WX BER
R EREEENAREERRITERIERER
(D RIRMEELG ~ 17 » 18 R26 HEE) ©
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

30. HEEME

Lease liabilities payable: EREEEE:
Within one year —FR
Within a period of more than one year —FRENF AN

but not more than two years
Within a period of more than two years MERERFAEE
but not more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement with B REBERMRR12(E AR EEE

12 months shown under current liabilites 2 78

Amount due for settlement after 12 months  3EVREI & EFTRA 1218 B4 ZI &5 &

shown under non-current liabilities 258

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities range from 2.90% to 5.66% (2020: from
3.41% to 5.66%).

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

2021 2020
—E--F el 23
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
6,019 8,764
3,834 7,237
4,720 17,838
14,573 33,839
(6,019) (8,764)
8,554 25,075

FERARAERENNEFEEERMNER
2.90EZ5.66E (ZT-FF : 3.41EZ5.66
B -

A THINAREEE BRI TR AN 2 E
KAHENHERE

HK$’000

FHBxT

As at 31 December 2021 NR-E-_—F+=-F=+—H 72
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTFF+_A=+—H 212

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH

235



236

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL

31.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2020,
31 December 2020 and
31 December 2021

Issued:
At 1 January 2020
Exercise of share options (Note 36)
Shares repurchased
and cancelled

At 31 December 2020
Exercise of share options (Note 36)
Shares repurchased

and cancelled

At 31 December 2021

*  The amount is less than HK$1,000.
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FAXE(EO.1 BT EiEh

5B

TTERERHE (BY2236)
v SRS SN )

RZZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H

1T (B722£36)
SRS G Eh)

RZZE—_—F+=-A=+—H

IR

Number Share
of shares capital
RHEE &S
‘000 HK$'000

T FAT
3,000,000 300,000
2,430,724 243,072
4 _*
(68,182) (6,818)
2,362,546 236,254
2,153 215
(84,922) (8,492)
2,279,777 227,977

* ZEEBETR1,0008TT -



31.

SHARE CAPITAL (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

31. BRA (@)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares through the Stock

Exchange as follows:

Month of repurchase

Bm A4

July 2021
—E-—F+tA
September 2021
—E=—FNA
October 2021
—E=—F+A
November 2021
T —F+—HA
December 2021
== —%+=A

Number of
ordinary

shares
repurchased
BEEBERHE
’000

TR

8,286

28,094

11,812

12,598

35,818

96,608

As at 31 December 2021, the Company repurchased
96,608,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate consideration
of HK$40,853,000 including which 84,922,000 ordinary
shares are cancelled upon repurchased and the remaining

11,686,000 ordinary shares are cancelled in January 2022.
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year ended 31 December 2021.

BE_ZE-—S+-A=1+—BHILFE &2
FIBREHMRATIEA T ARBEE ARG R

Aggregate
consideration
paid (before

Purchase price per share expenses)
EfERE
BREBEEE (RHERBER)
Highest Lowest HK$’000
BS BIE FET
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0.440 0.400 3,544
0.415 0.380 11,426
0.420 0.400 4,877
0.430 0.405 5,334
0.460 0.410 15,672
40,853

BE_T-_—F+-_A=+—H ARA"LA
ﬁﬁMS%om%ﬁﬁﬁ%ewom%ﬁﬁ
» 284,922 000/% I AL 7A B Bl B 5L 8 -
ﬁ%Tll 686,000 EBRAIR T - —F —
A - BE-T-—F+-A=+—HILHF
B AREBATERESE  HEXBEAR

NEEFA ETES -

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL (coNTINUED)

. RN (1)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as

follows:

Months of repurchase

BE A%

January 2020
—ZT-TF—RH
April 2020
—EFFUA
May 2020
—ECEFRHA
June 2020
ZECEERA
October 2020
—ECEFF+A

Number of
ordinary shares
repurchased
EBE
ZEREE
’000

TR

8,794

8,338

28,506

20,000

2,544

68,182

The above shares were cancelled subsequently after their
repurchase. Neither the Company nor any of the Company’s
subsidiaries purchased, repurchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s shares during the years ended 31

December 2020.
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HE-T-ZT

BIEIBR R FTIRIA T A B E B &8

Purchase price per share

BRERE

Highest
RS
HK$
BT
0.285
0.249
0.265

0.265

0.400

Lowest
&K
HK$
BT
0.265
0.198
0.248

0.249

0.400

Aggregate
consideration
paid (before
expenses)
EfERE
(RHNERER)
HK$’000
FET

2,455

1,778

7,398

5,197

1,022

17,850

EAE R EREREE  BE_T %
TZA=+—BLEFE KRR RARBER
MEARBEEE - o - HESKEOIARAF

EfIAD ©

F+ZA=+—HIFE AR

=
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

32. RESERVES 32. f#fE
HK$'000
FHET
Properties revaluation reserve YIEB L HE
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—HF—H 202,921
Gain on revaluation of properties and ~ Efh#¥3 R F A#EEE 2 I
right-of-use assets 31,475
At 31 December 2020 R-BE-_ZF+-_A=+—H 234,396
Gain on revaluation of properties and B3 MEREEE 2 W
right-of-use assets 23,804
At 31 December 2021 R_EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H 258,200
HK$'000
FHET
Assets revaluation reserve EEEMLHE
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_FTF—HF—H 2,181
Fair value change on investments FENEAFEF AR M 2ERE
in equity instruments at FVTOCI FBRATE 2 A EE (236)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF+—_A=+—H 1,945
Fair value change on investments FENEAFEF AR 2ERE
in equity instruments at FVTOCI FBRARTEZ AT EEE 1,449
At 31 December 2021 R_BE-_—F+-_A=+—H 3,394
BANBEEERAT T 4% 239
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

32.RESERVES (CONTINUED) 32. f#E (&
HK$'000
BT
Translation reserve BRE
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—HF—H 120,003
Exchange differences arising on BMEZZ2Y|EEEENERER
translation to presentation
currency 66,275
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKN B A A 1,905
At 31 December 2020 R_ZE-_ZTF+_-_HA=+—H 188,183
Exchange differences arising on BMEEEY|ERELANERER
translation to presentation
currency 16,612
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA R 1,075
At 31 December 2021 R-_TB-_—F+_-_H=+—H 205,870
T
33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 33. KEHERH
The Group as lessor ARBERLBEA
All of the properties held have committed tenants for ARG ZMEABHEATN6EAZ10F
approximately 6 months to 10 years (2020: 4 months to 9 (CTZFF  OEAEASF) -
years).

FREERENREEERENFENT

Minimum lease properties receivables on leases are as

follows:
2021
s —fF
HK$’000
FH&x
Within one year —FR 5,293
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERT (BREMEREBEN) 116,758
After five years AFi% 13,584
135,635

240 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 33. KEPELTH(E)
(CONTINUED)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RIEHR - AEBBEARIL 2 KA RKEMA
with tenants for the following future minimum lease SFIEMAT
payments:
2020
—EEF
HK$'000
FAET
Within one year —FR 52510
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEATF (BEMFEREEA) 80,211
After five years AF% 18,976
151,697
34. COMMITMENTS 34. EiE
2021 2020
—BZ—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Expenditure in respect of investment 2] #MBRN R A B RE T
in an associate contracted for but Bz B@EN— g AR
not provided in the consolidated ZIARZ (W721)
financial statements (Note 21) - 4,800

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

T F+A=+—HLFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

35. RIKBHETE

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required to
join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$55,884,000 (2020:
HK$22,545,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Covid-19 related
government grants/assistance amounted to Nil (2020:
HK$27,031,000) have been offset against retirement
benefits scheme contribution.
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REBRBARBME BTG AEEMBER
BIEERY —HBESE - MBERBENR
EEREHAEMARBESTE - HFIZRESE
REFEHME—BHLLIEL - WIRKRBE TS
ZIRBIRE T 2R AR & B R R o 9818
CEElCEERASBNAEMEES FER -
H—BUBREsEESRR - ERRESTEIH
R AEEEEZHZE2HEBREEM
B -RIE—FRZFETF+A=+T—
A - WELU AR BRI AS S B R AR 2R
FE NN

AEERPEZHBRARERTEZERR
A 28 —IREZE I A E BT E R
B E - MEARARTEKNANEERD
Fe e AR AR A5t B 3K - NEREBLR KR
a2 E—BEREREEHRR -

FN - RNEBERE SR AEEES5,884,000% T
(ZZ =4 : 22 545,00087T) * MREFAE
WmRBR 2R - REAEBIRERT S8 R)i%
L R MT S 2 EFREUEE -
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Covid-19t8RABFIE B WA MBN T BT (=F
ZF4F : 27,031,000/ 70) B IR RAEFIFHE
PRI o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

36. BB ERTE

The Company had two share option schemes, including post-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Post-IPO
Options”) and new share options scheme (the “New Share
Options”). Post-IPO Options and New Share Options were
adopted on 30 May 2005 and 1 June 2016, respectively.
The major terms and conditions of the two schemes are set

out below:

(A) Post-IPO Options

(i)

(iii)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as
the Directors may consider appropriate.

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the
10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options was
duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Post-
IPO Options must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 12 December 2008 (i.e. 151,749,000
shares) and in any event the total maximum
number of shares which might be issued or
issuable upon exercise of all outstanding options
should not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date
of grant. No consideration is required to be paid
by the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

o the nominal value of the share.

ARBEMBRBRETS - BRERAREE
BBEEA B (AR AFBERBRETS])
KBt 8 (B ERT3)) - BRAR
BERBRESE BRSO IR _F
ZRFRARA=TERZZE—RENA—HER
o MIERTEIZ T2 HFHEENT

(A) BRAMBERBRETS
(i) BWERZ2EERHEHE -

(iy 2EEBFEEAREREINITES "
NREBESAIRERREBELEMA
4

(i) RZZTZENF+=A+=H - F2
AIRRIEN BB —TBRRRE TS
XA E R EREE210%—
B ER o IRIBEE X AFREERER
WEETEIR] T35 A RRAE AT Y
ERRHEE TEBAR-ZZ
NE+-—B+—_RDBTRHZ
10% (B1151,749,0008% /&%) - M
B TEFTA MR T 2 B A i a]
BEE BT BITZRERMNEA
o ERMATEREANA BT
RHiRE B TARA 230% ©

(iv)  FERRAE 2 B (BB ) W ERE
L HBRESAEEEEANED -
AR A DEGER 2 BRES AR
{g °

v) BREZTEENERNUTZES
=
. R B EARR (9 2 YT {E

e ERRLBHFAERKZH
Befn 2 FHWTHE : K

s RipZEE-

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

36. BT 8 (80

(A)

Post-IPO Options (CONTINUED)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015. No further option can be
granted thereafter but provisions of the Post-IPO
Options shall remain in full force and effect in
all other respects.

On 19 July 2013, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under
the Post-IPO Options to eligible participants
thereof, including certain employees and
business partners of the Group (“Grantees”).
The Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 63,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company upon exercise in full.

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding
1% of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee,
if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued or to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding one per cent
of the total number of shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BRARBEERBRETSZFH
BEE-Z-RFRA-TARRIE
—EHAEXN - RETAERHBK
- BEERAREERERES
ZIEXERB R EINA TR
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R_F—=FtHTIhB QA
REEBRXAFEZEERBRETS
A8z ER2EE (BEAE
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& 2£63,000,00017 A # -
PR I PR B AT SR B A R T
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fisd AR A PMEI 1218 A B3R R 32
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

36. BT 8 (80

(B) New Share Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other eligible
participants as set out in the scheme rules.

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Share Options and any
other scheme of the Group must not exceed
255,789,630 shares, being 10% of shares in
issue on the day which the New Share Options
was approved by the shareholders, unless
approval of the shareholders has been obtained,
and which must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the ordinary shares in issue from time to time.
As at the date of this report, the total number
of ordinary Shares available for issue under the
New Share Options is 255,789,630 shares,
which represents 10.23% of the issued shares as
at the date of this report.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date
of grant. HK$1 is required to be paid by the
grantee an acceptance of options.

The exercise price of an option must be no less
than the highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

o the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

The life of the New Share Options was effective
until 1 June 2026, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the New
Share Options shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects.

(B) #rRBIR#ESHE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BRER2EERIAE -

2EEQRIMREINTES
NGt BIRAIFE 2 b A ER S
B o

RTS8 R AN SR B T A
fOETEING TR 2 BT A AR T
FEmA] FEITZESRMNEE TE
B38255,789,630/% i1 » BI#TEE
AR SIS S A BT
7210% * BRIEBEVSARERBLAE -
MEZERT « BEINTEBBT
BB 3 1TD 230% » RANIRE
BH - RN AERT B AT (3817
AR B 255,789,630 A%
5 HERARE BHERITER
i%210.23% °
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B HIREA A X B AR - &%
BRAREXBEEAXNREDE

JG ©
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e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

36. BT 8 (80

(B)

New Share Options (coNTINUED)

(vii)

(viii)

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding
1% of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee,
if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued or to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding one per cent
of the total number of shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

No share options were granted, exercised
lapsed or cancelled under the New Share
Options during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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(vii)

(viii)

fisl AR A PMET 1218 A B3 B 42
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BRIFEBCRIRAE LA LR
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AR EfRIAESR AR LB AR

HNMEAEER BIERINR B
Pt B IE1218 A AR AR AR
SR AR 8 B (1R A BT T )
MEBFATEEE T RERTZ
AR FABEE (BREITRE
AR RTTREE) T2 BT RE
T2l A KiBBE BITRMD A
1% - QIZIRFEIMNR KRR
ERARBABRRNBERAE LS
THE - MRB2EE N EBRE
ATERERLBRLER ©
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A=+—RHLFE - SERENE
ARAERT 2 L R T (T B A e
DIV B IS R b R sk A R B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CoNTINUED) 36. EBIRAETTE| (&)

The following table disclose details of the Post-IPO Options TRFFBAFARBEE R DFAZERERET
held by the grantee and movements in such holdings: S 2B B RS R B
Outstanding at
Exercise Outstanding at 31 December
price 1 January 2021 2021
Category of Name per share R=B=-% Exercised Lapsed during R=B=-%
participants of scheme  Date of grant Exercisable period Bk -A-A during the year the year +=B=1-H
SEERH STEER RHAH s i@ HRITHE ERffE EREY WRITHE
(Note) HKS
i) BT
Employees of the Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 154.2015-18.7.2023
Group 0.346 9,896,000 (2,153,000) (597,000) 7,146,000
r5BES BRNFEER  ZT-=F ZZ-RFMATHAZ
BRETE  tAthB  ZEZ=£tAt/\R
Consultants Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 154.2015-18.7.2023 0.346 45,400,000 - - 45,400,000
el BRORRER T _E-TENATREAZR
BREE  tAThE  ZE-=FtATAR
Total 55,296,000 (2,153,000) (597,000) 52,546,000
5t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 52,546,000
RERA T
QOutstanding at
Exercise Qutstanding at 31 December
price 1 January 2020
Category of Name per share i Exercised Lapsed during
participants ofscheme  Date of grant Exercisable period i —R-A during the year the year
SEERH HEE2 b=k 1168 1R AT FRTIE ERXR AL
Employees of the Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 15.4.2015-18.7.2023
Group 0.346 12,600,000 (4,000) (2,700,000) 9,896,000
r5BES BANFEER  ZT-=F ZZ-RFfMATHAZ
BRETE  tAthB  ZEZ=£tAt/\R
Consultants Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 15.4.2015-18.7.2023 0.346 45,400,000 - - 45,400,000
el BRORRER T _E-TENATRAZR
BREE  tAThE  ZE-=FtATAR
Total 58,000,000 (4,000) (2,700,000) 55,296,000
&5t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 55,296,000
RERATATHE

EBRMRERERAT T F4H 247
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

36.

T F+A=+—HLFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

36.

BT 8 ()

37.

Note: In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the

four year from 15 April 2014.

In respect of the options granted on 19 July 2013, the closing
price of the shares immediately before the date of grant was
HK$0.335.

In respect of the options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2021, the weighted average closing price of the shares
immediately before the date on which the options were exercised
was approximately HK$0.435.

The grantees who were consultants of the Group are Mr Lin Bifen
and Mr Tang Yuanyi. The share options were granted to them so as
to incentivise them to contribute to the research and development
activities of the Group.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no share option expense with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the Group’s share option reserve has been
recognised.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

37.

B - BRBERARARERBEEABN - —=F
TtATHAEREREGLZERAMS - A=
Z—ENA+ I AR EFEFFIEHF25%
2RISR

BR-FB—=FLATHhARLNERENS -
PRAD PR BRI B HIRT MU /B /0,335 7T

REHE-T-_—F+-_A=1+—HLEFERTE
HREIRIE S - REEARETE B IR M &0
TR TH{E 4 A0.4357 7T ©

MBE T ERE TR G E RN EBERMFAR
A o RRERDERES EABRS RAEEN
MEEBEL TR -

BRI B AT R B 2 AR 2 A
ERBEERE - T RRAE B WA
IEHERE - HE-T-—FR-T-BF
+oAS+—BILEE - ERERERSEE
AR B TR 2 R AR S, -

eI R

On 30 September 2020 (“Date of Adoption”), the Board
adopted the Share Award Scheme for the purposes of
recognising the contributions by certain employees,
Directors, and consultants of the Company (“Eligible
Persons”) and giving incentives thereto in order to retain
them for the continuing operation and development of
the Group and attracting suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

The total number of the shares to be awarded pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the Date of
Adoption (i.e. 236,509,030 Shares). In any 12-month period,
the maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a
selected person shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the Shares as at the Date of Adoption.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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RO REFE - UBEARARAETIE
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—FT-A=+-ALFE

37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (cONTINUED) 37. Rfv R EE &8 (&)
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by BRIEESSRIBER D R SR A R EIRA
the Board pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, #R1E - BRIRRD 2B ENET 21 B F 40 B BB AT+
the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for FRBERILER - HimE T HE— PR L ZE
a term of 10 years commencing on the Date of Adoption, (BEE R T - WA =R &8 M Al B %
after which period no further awards will be granted but the HEEREN ENGEEN s BB U ERNER
provisions of the Share Award Scheme shall remain in full TNEPARR 1 SR Bl 2 R X e ESR E A 1E
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the T R R ESIMER I AEEZER N RE
vesting of any awards granted prior to the expiration of the e
Share Award Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no share of the BT —F+_A=+—HLEFE - &R
Company was awarded under this share award scheme. AL EAR PR AR (0 SR ED AT 21 1E D (AT ARt 22D -
As at 31 December 2021, there are 41,630,000 shares RZEZ—F+ZA=1T—8H ' gtZt&l#H
(2020: 8,008,000 shares) held for such scheme with H41,630,000% %0 (ZZ =Z4F : 8,008,000
carrying amount of HK$16,623,000 (2020: HK$3,187,000) AR R) - WMEBRMEtRHE Rt 2 REE
accumulated in employee share trust reserve. /16,623,000 T (ZZE=FF : 3,187,000/

JT) ©

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the RO REE S 2 FBEERARARIRA=S =
announcement of the Company dated 30 September 2020. TENA=TRZAS -

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BEALIRS

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management representing the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 10 during the
year was as follows:

pSEUE R
BERIZ AR A

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.

FTEEEAS ZHMH
RAEE G FIOMEBERRESTMENE
ZEBRABMET

2021 2020

—E-—fF —EEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

3,323 2,261

289 78

3,612 2,339
EERFETHRABZMeBFMEESLE
BASEKEES  BAAMREZEERARX

BETIZBERETE °

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

39. HEMBE AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021
a) Disposal of Shanghai Yunhao Group

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into an
agreement to disposal of its entire 98.7% equity
interest in Shanghai Yunhao, indirect subsidiaries of
the Company, to an independent third party of the
Group, at a cash consideration of HK$40,811,000.
The disposal was completed on 6 April 2021, on
which date when the control of Shanghai Yunhao was
passed to acquirer. The Group’s 10T system and 020
business are treated as discontinued operations.

b) Disposal of Shanghai Zhenkang

Tthe Group has entered into another sale agreement
to dispose of its 8.6% equity interest in F/EZ=FE
FABR A F(unofficial English name being Shanghai
Zhenkang Electronics Limited) (“Shanghai Zhenkang”)
that support the Group’s 10T system and 020
business, to independent third party of the Group, at
a cash consideration of RMB800,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,032,000). The Group originally owns 50.1%
equity interest in Shanghai Zhenkang. The disposal
was completed on 16 April 2021, on which date the
Group lost control of Shanghai Zhenkang. With 41.5%
equity interest in Shanghai Zhenkang, the Directors
conclude that the Group no longer controls but has
significant influence over Shanghai Zhenkang and
therefore it becomes as an associate of the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BE-B-_-—Ft+t-A=t—-HLEE

a)

(b)

HE LEZFEE

RZZEZ—F=A=+=8 ' x&E7F]
TR EERARBNBEZERBA R
RN 2 2098, 7 %R T AREEH
By E=7 - HEMNERL0,811,000 &
T o HEEEENR-_Z-—FMAXE
TR EEEEMNEHIEE R B EE
ZWER c AREBYBERGRES

EBRIERDRIELEXT -
HE FBER

AEEBFYS—BHERZE  LAEAR
SEBIE=FHE I FAEB YA
AENEBEEBN EEERETHERA
Al ([ LEEE]) W8.6%KHE  BerE
A ARHES00,0007T (FH% 721,032,000/
TL) o AKBERLHEAR LIEERE/50.1%
g - HEFBEENR - -_—FWA
TARBREK  AEBRZAXAY EE
EENEGE BHRELEERES
41.5%PHE HEERABAEETHE
Bl EBER  BHEEEAFEN B
BEEZ A R AN E BRI A AR o
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

39. HEME AT @)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

c)

Disposal of Shenzhen Kongtop

On 26 November 2021, the Group entered into an
agreement to disposal of the entire equity interest
inFEHRE % OFYI) AR A A (unofficial English
name being Kongtop Industrial (Shenzhen) Co.,
Limited) (“Shenzhen Kongtop”), indirect wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company, to independent
third party of the Group, at a cash consideration

BE-B-_-—F+t-A=t—-RLEEH)
) HERIER

R-FE—_—F+—HA=+~H A5E
RV HHEARR 2B BARER
FE(FRINARAR (TFRIERD B2
R ETAEENBYE = BeX
{&/43,000,000% 7T (1§57423,400,000
HBIT) c HEEHER -_T-——%1+—H8
“+ZHZEK - BRMEHERZBE

of USD3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately BEWIER -
HK$23,400,000). The disposal was completed on
22 December 2021, on which date the control of
Shenzhen Kongtop was pass to acquirer.
Consideration received: BUWARE :
Shanghai Shanghai Shenzhen Total
Yunhao Zhenkang Kongtop
EBER bBER RYIEHR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT FAT
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 3,341 1,032 4,680 9,053
Deferred cash consideration EERESRE 37,470 = 18,720 56,190
(Note) ()
40,811 1,032 23,400 65,243
Note: izt -

The deferred consideration of Shanghai Yunhao will be settled
in cash by the buyer on or before the year 2026. The remaining
90% deferred consideration is separated into six instalments with
7% interest per annum.

The deferred consideration of Shenzhen Kongtop will be settled
in cash by the buyer on or before the year 2023. The remaining
80% deferred consideration is separated into two instalments with
LIBOR +1% interest per annum.

EEERNELEREBRHETR T _RFh
AIABREAEE - R TI0%BRIEREN RINHIX
- FFRBT%

RYEANELERBEHETR T _=Fk
AIABR SRS - R TB0%BRIEREN RMHIX
- ZEBERTRERE+1%FFERFE

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

39. HEME A7 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

BE-E-—F+-A=+—HLEE@#@

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: EAREEHENEERERSN
Shanghai Shanghai Shenzhen Total
Yunhao Zhenkang Kongtop
EEER LBEE FYIER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAxT FAT FAT FAT
Property, plant and equipment Y - R X 736 94 11,964 12,794
B
Right-of-use assets FREESE 1,878 = 17,904 19,782
Intangible assets mEEE 162 = = 162
Deferred tax assets BT IHEE 498 - 275 773
Inventories FE 7,072 12,412 3,156 22,640
Trade and notes receivables ESrWGEIE R 14,349 132 15,417 29,898
BN EE
Other receivables, deposits and Hb e sRIE - 33,273 4,840 3,510 41,623
prepayments e RIER
FRIA
Bank balances and cash IRITEHRRIRE 699 4,064 3,078 7,841
Trade and notes payables B 5 FRIE K (15,702) (11,812) (9,776) (37,290)
JERT IR
Other payables, deposits received, Efh 508 - (1,781) (4,280) (6,011) (12,072)
accruals and deferred income BdRS
EETER K
FRIERA
Lease liabilities HE&E (2,002) - (19,430) (21,432)
Net assets disposal of BEHEEEFE 39,182 5,450 20,087 64,719

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 39. HEMEB A 7] (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+t—HLFE@#)
(Loss) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (BB W=
Shanghai Shanghai Shenzhen Total
Yunhao Zhenkang Kongtop
bBER be=ERE RYEH st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FH&T FAT FAT
Consideration received and receivable = YR 4 M EI 40,811 1,032 23,400 65,243
RKE
Fair value of residual interest REBERZ = 2,234 = 2,234
AE
Non-controlling interests disposed of & & JF2R% (2,464) 2,720 = 267
T
Cumulative exchange differences RKRENB R A 16 285 774 1,075
in respect of the net assets of 25 i) R Iy F A
subsidiaries reclassified from equity ~ WEHHIEE
to profit or loss on loss of control of BB A
subsidiaries RIEEFEZ
REtExR=R
Reclassification of other reserve RETEAMEEE 11 = = 11
rofa
Net assets disposal of BEHENEE (39,182) (5,450) (20,087) (64,719)
FE
(Loss) gain on disposal HE (B518) (808) 821 4,087 4,100
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HENBESRAFEEE
Shanghai Shanghai Shenzhen Total
Yunhao Zhenkang Kongtop
EBER bsEER RYEHR et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT FAT
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 3,341 1,032 4,680 9,053
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A BEHERE (699) (4,064) (3,078) (7,841)
disposed of e RkReF
4]
2,642 (3,032) 1,602 1,212
The impact of Shanghai Yunhao results and cash flows in bEEEEE RS R E N A BAEEER
current period and prior year is disclosed in note 12. SOEEPABIET ] DI ER o

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CE

—E_—F+ZRA=t+—HILFE

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

39. HEMHE AT (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

As referred to note 12, on 24 December 2020 the Group
discontinued its intelligent manufacturing business at
the time of disposal of its subsidiary, Shanghai Jizhi, The
Group entered into sale and purchase agreements with two
independent third parties, namely F/EERMEEEAE
{2 (BRAE) (unofficial English name being Shanghai
Bai Ni Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)) and ESBEHTEBTIEAELX (BRA
%) (unofficial English name being Shanghai Lianxincheng
Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)),
at a total consideration of RMB26,668,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$31,889,000) to dispose 51% equity
interest of Shanghai Jizhi. The disposal was completed in
the year ended 31 December 2020 in which the Group lost
controls in Shanghai Jizhi.

BE-B-BF+-A=t—-HLEE

uJiZZZEWuEIZFﬁTE' i b S el ety 1Y

AR & A R LSRR
MR REE - AREEMAETES

FENEBERCEEBEAELE (EREE)
R ESHENCEERABLE (BREE))
RN EE R - BREARARE26668,0007T
(tHE74931,889,000/87T) * LAHE LGS
51%f5HE - HEFHERBE_T_TF+=
A=+—HIFEZRK Bl AEBAEE L
VIR B B o

HK$’000
FHET
Aggregate consideration received: 2 WABNRE :
Cash received BUWER & 6,043
Consideration receivable (note) FEWRAE (H22) 25,846
Total consideration received B e E 31,889
Analysis of aggregate assets and liabilities over which ¥k XiZ4IRNBEER
control was lost: BENDN
HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B kB 199
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,179
Intangible assets WL EAE 125
Interest in associate P NI 3,944
Inventories FE 65,154
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 K H Ab5RTE 75,224
Bank balances and cash RITEBERE 3,198
Trade and other payables BB SR EMFRIE (68,671)
Contract liabilities SREE (22,701)
Lease liabilities HEaE (996)
Tax payables FERI 1A (4,005)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 52,650

Note: The consideration receivable has been fully settled in cash by the

acquirers in March 2021.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 39. HEMEB A 7] (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued) BE-_E-TE+-A=+—HLEE@E)
HK$'000
FET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBARZWE :
Consideration received and receivable B R FERAE 31,889
Fair value of residual interest RASE 2 REBE=m 2 A TFE 27,076
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (52,650)
Non-controlling interests disposed of B E 2 IFER (2,607)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the AR BT B A B I R
net assets of subsidiaries reclassified from equity to HESENOER
profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiaries BERrME AR EE
FE REtERER 1,905
5,613
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENFHESRA
Cash consideration received BYERERE 6,043
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of W BEHEZRITEHRKIES (3,198)
2,845
The impact of Shanghai Jizhi results and cash flows in LBRERERASRENAFERBEFE
current and period year is disclosed in note 12. VR BRI 1255 -

ERNBEEERAT T G458 255
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

40. REZRUEE 2 B EH IR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2020
Financing cash flows

RZZZTF—HF—H

MERTRE

Non-cash changes: RS EE :
Foreign exchange SNEE
New lease entered/lease FEIMNAEE
modified LIEFTHE
Interest expenses FESZH
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR

At 31 December 2020

Financing cash flows

RZZBZZTFF+—A=+—H

MERTME

Non-cash changes: IR FE) -
Foreign exchange SNGE
New lease entered/lease el AE
modified LIEETHE
Interest expenses FES
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) &} E A 7 (41:£39)

At 31 December 2021

KRB —F+=—A=+—H

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

ATERBHIAKERASREY (BESRE
FIFRCEY) 2BE - RESHABZAR
TZEERSRERE  IHENAKENEGRE
RERBERTOERKESREDNASR °

Bank Lease

borrowings liabilities Total
SBITRE HEEE E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET FET
77,936 9,184 87,120
(46,409) (11,516) (57,925)
2,704 1,947 4,651

- 32,677 32,804

1,769 2,416 4,185

- (996) (996)

36,000 33,839 69,839
3,093 (12,964) (9,871)
687 23 710

- 13,959 13,959

2,071 1,148 3,219
- (21,432) (21,432)

41,851 14,573 56,424
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41.

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

TEMITHE

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt, which include
the bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

EXEREE

AEBEEEEAZ BNAEBBLERERD L
T BRAKEE TS ERER BB
BEELE  YWRKASRRT KRS EHR -
AEBEZEAGBERERFR(RERRT
fEE) RARBHE ARGHER (BFEC TR
A RBEMREGN)  BEEEEHNELALRE
RHeZEERNKAREERERRBZRER -
Fhit - AEEREBZAAE  BITHRIAR
BITHEIBRRBES FEEBEANGE
AEE BERBENAFEERERTE -

Categories of financial instruments SR T EER
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets CRIEE
Financial assets at amortised cost TR ER AT RN S REE 886,056 1,143,474
Financial assets at FVTPL BRFEFAERNEHEE 4,152 13,784
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BEAFERGAEMEEKER
R AR T A 63,112 12,382
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost B $HA A 296,213 281,738

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and notes receivables and payables, other receivables
and payables, accruals, amounts due from associates,
consideration receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings (2020: equity instruments at FVTOCI,
financial assets at FVTPL, trade and notes receivables
and payables, other receivables and payables, accruals,
entrusted loan receivable, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate, consideration
receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, lease liabilities and bank
borrowings).

M EREEN B RRBE

AEBEZ T2 T ABREAFEF AR
EHNEZBRATE HAFEFABRZ S
BMEE  BRNENEZEREZE  HbfE
WRENERR - BETER - BUREE AT - &
WHRE - BEARITER - EHRTER R
TRERREE BERBEURRTEE(CE
—TF  BRFESFAREEREZIRAT
H BAVEFABRZEREE  BRKEE
NEZEFREE - EMERREMNER - &
AERA - BEZFEER  BURMBARR—H
B R APFERBCR R - BRAK(E - EEA
RITER - BHRTER  RITEHREAS
HERBARRITEER) °

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CE

—E_—F+ZRA=t+—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

41.

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 41% (2020: 46%) of the Group’s sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost
23% (2020: 25%) of costs are denominated in the group
entity’s functional currency.

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities
are trade receivables, bank balances, trade payables and
bank borrowings and the amounts are disclosed in notes 25,
26, 27 and 29 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

usD v

BB EIE Y B RSB ()

ZETRT A ZFIENBRM EP IR - 8%
ST AMEABRIARBRRBEZZERR
ZHERHEN T - EBREEERERZERE
%+ DARECRBE IS A BUREVE B 1616

B
AEBZRWBARIAINEHETEE » 4
EEEIINERR o NREBHERLN41%(ZZ
ZTF  46%) KB EEH ﬁﬁaﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁ%‘
BN E B ETE - MK23% (ZZ =T F ¢
25%) PN AN E A S B B RS M se B M THE -

Pﬂi i

r

\

RIREHR - NEBUE B EEBRBINEEE
N EEAHENTESHEE R ABEARR
B BITRER  ENESERAKBITE
B HAMSED IR FE25 « 26 « 27829
FRIREE o

R|ERR - AEBUINSTHENEEEER
ERABENEREENT

Assets Liabilities
BE &8f&
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-THF B —ZT-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FHET
422,852 703,218 65,129 4,610
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

41. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Currency risk (coNTINUED)

The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency expose
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2020: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2020: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2020:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an decrease in post-tax loss where RMB
weakening 10% against USD for the both years. For a 10%
strength of RMB against USD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below
would be negative.

Decrease in post-tax loss BB 1% B 1R
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD

bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the
Group at the end of the reporting period.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and notes receivables, contract assets, other receivables,
consideration receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and associates, short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of these
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

B B B IR 1Y B AR ()

Eim e ()
ERERESIINERR YRNEFEREZEY
HEAINERR -

TRAMIHAEEHNARE L ETHE
2fE10% (ZZE=ZF : 10%) BKE ° 10%
széfﬁ 1 10%) RE B EEFTFLHIMNEE
ATREHIRM A EEE) - FRESITERIEMN
SINEHERMAEEE®IER  YAERHE
10% (T =F4F : 10%) S E L HAREHR
I ESEIEL AR - L THERRRARE
HETEMEFERZBELIO% R RIEEER
Lo N ANREEHETTFELOR @ BrEIEEIER
ERREERNTE  mEHBEELas-

2021 2020
—E-—F —EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fix FABT
27,203 64,365

Bat - EERMAREERRERRASZTIHEZRE
BRITRER  BRRENRBEARRITEEZR

ERERR B EF
AEENEERREZREBUESERRE

B ANEE - Eﬁﬂﬂﬁzﬁﬁ- CEBRE &
L= YN UNCTE 223 & B R b
RITER - SERRITERIARIRITHESR -

R=FB= R —F_FTHEF - H=+—H -
AEBRHF T RERTEEMASECHER
EMEEMBRIZEANEERR - RZFE
ERGEEMBIARAMR ZBREE -

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ

T F+-A=+—BLFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

41.

SRELT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed every year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of IFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors of the Group
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2021, five
(2020: five) customers amounting to HK$66,262,000 (2020:
HK$49,847,000) comprised approximately 73% (2020:
51%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers
are within the same mobile phone technology industry and
wireless communication modules industry in the PRC. The
management closely monitors the subsequent settlement of
the customers. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Consideration receivables

For consideration receivables, the management of the Group
makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of these amounts based on the historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management of the Group believes
that there is no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and management assessed
the loss allowance based on 12m ECL, and considered
them to have low credit risk, and thus no loss alliance was
recognised.

Bank balances, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits

The credit risk on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are majority banks/financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by external credit-rating agencies.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BB EIE Y B RSB ()

FEm R B E TG ()

JEW B 5 R

REEREEERR  AEEEEEERK—
AR FEETFERBEREERM - K
MERFEPR - AEERBARERFER
RHMEEERPHNEREE  YREFPHEERE
BERE - FPNRBRFNSFETRE - &
SEDABEMEITER - UEREESES
HEKZKROEE - it AEERESER
R IE R BRI B8R E R LIRS RIBAIE
EBRRIGETTER AR B B B R ERE T
e BME @ AEEEERA - AKENE
=N RN Y A

AEEGFEEERBETRNER BRREFR
ETRFE - R-_ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H"
BRAZ(ZCE_ZTF : AR)BFNREBER
66,262,000 7T (—Z B =T 4 : 49,847,000/
) hASENEKE SIRFA73% (=T =
TE 51%) c ZERFURPEREHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—FT-A=+-ALFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 41. €@ T A ()

B B B IR 1Y B AR ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

FE /R R B E L ()
AEENAMEERRERTHEFEATER

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Al

Trade receivables/
contract assets/
finance lease receivables

Internal credit rating Description ERE SRS SHEE/ Other financial assets
ABEEFR B EHRMERE HitemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL -
have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired 12m ECL
EnEREREEER
(Ve RSEANBORBRE - B EEARATE — W EEERE 12 AEHEEER
Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
Watch list settle after due date not credit-impaired
ERALCERIBAZEER  EREAIBAETT EanEREREEER
BRLE HE —WEEERE 12 A EHEEER
There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information developed Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
Doubtful internally or external resources or overdue by 180 days not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
or above
EERR B BBREANTIIINIERERNERT S FanBHRREEEE FanBHRREEEE
A&k REBEEN  H@HI80EHMU L —WEEERE — W EEERE
There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
Loss or overdue by 360 days or more credit-impaired credit-impaired
EanBREREEESS AnBHRRREEEHE
B1B ERERPEELREERBEE60H A —=ERA —EERE
There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect Amount is written off Amount is written off
Write-off of recovery
BREERABRBEARARENHELE - MASEIEY
G| Bl FIAR B IR A 8 SR SREEME

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 41. €W I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BSERERN B ZEECR (E)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED) =B R R ETS ()
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRANAEEEETEHEEBETHENS
Group’s financial assets, contract assets and finance lease MEE  GHNEEMERREAENEER
receivables which are subject to ECL assessment: %
2021 2020
—E--F “T-TF
External Internal Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating ~ 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
Wi HBEETR  AIBEETR 12fEARELEHENEERR REAE RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERL TEL
Financial assets at amortised cost
RESERANENSRER
Bank balances and cash 26 A (Aa3-A3) N/A 12m ECL ‘ 100,489 254,592
RTERERE 26 A (Aa3-A3) TER 2ERBHEEERS
B (Baa2-Bal) NA  12mECL 221,745 413339
B (Baa2-Bal) TER  12EREHEEEE
C (Caal) N/A 12m ECL 75 4
C (Caal) TER  12EAESBEESE
322,309 667,935
Short-term bank deposits 26 A (A1) NA  12mECL ‘ 74,082 72,000
RERTER 26 A(A) TER  12ERRHEEES
B (Baa2) NA  12mECL 279,095 209,617
B (Baa2) TER  12ERESEEEER
353,177 281,617
Pledged bank deposits 26 B (Baa3) NA  12mECL ‘ 16,145 5857
BERRIEN 26 B (Baa3) TER  12ERESEEEER
Trade receivables 25 N/A (Note ) Lifetime ECL (proyision matrix) 24,142 21,363
- goods and services T Wity)  EnBHESEEEEGEER)
AR SER 2 Lowrisk ~ Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 41,127 54,787
—BmRk% ERR  EnEHESEEERUEEERE)
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL (not predit impaired) 27,351 11,603
BRrE  EoROERGEEE(EEEHE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not ;redit impaired) 17 2,967
MR EnREEREEERUARERE)
Loss Creditiimpaired 25,278 32,750
BR EERE
117,915 123470
Notes receivables 25 A(A1-A3) NA  12mECL 5,529 7,686
EREE 25 A (A1-A3) TER  12ERBHEEESE
B (Baa2-Bal) NA  12mECL ‘ 2,090 11,472
B (Baa2-Bal) TER  12ERESHEEEE
7,619 19,158
Other receivables 25 N/A (Notea) ~ 12m ECL 19,239 19,705
EftelE 25 TiER Wida)  12EABHEEESR
N/A Loss  Creditimpaired 1,454 5214
T BR  EERE
20,693 24.919
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 41. €@ T A ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies B EREEN B ZEECR (E)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED) EE R R EFFE ()
2021 2020
—B--% ZZ-TF
External Internal Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating ~ 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
M SHBEEFR  ABEEFR  12BARELBRIRIEERE REAE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR THL
Amounts due from an associates 25 N/A (Notea)  12m ECL ‘ 20,485 17,161
el e ARZE % A Wida)  12EABHEEER
Amounts due from non-controlling 25 N/A (Notea) ~ 12m ECL - 4,248
shareholders of subsidiaries TER Wi#a)  12ARBHEESSR
FEUIHE A RFHER R R F0E 2
Consideration receivables N/A (Note a) 12m ECL 57,657 30,432
EURE TEm Wita)  12EARHEERR
Other items
HitER
Finance lease receivables N/A Loss  Creditimpaired - 381
FEYRETHE TEm BRE  FERE
Notes: B
a. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group a. RASEERBRERMS @ ASEFERAAHER
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has THEEERR BV ERERTREEIGM -

increased significantly since initial recognition.
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (conTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

a. (CONTINUED)

2021

Other receivables
Consideration receivables
Amounts due from associates

2020

JEMLE A AR TR
U ARAE
JEU — R & R BIFOR

Other receivables FEMTE fth BR K
Consideration receivables FEWRIE
Amount due from an associate FE U — el A B RIE
Amounts due from non-controlling FEURKT B A E]
shareholders of subsidiaries FEFE AR AR SRR IE
b. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied

the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance

at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding

balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected

credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped

by past-due status.

264 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BB EIE Y B RSB ()

FEm R B E TG ()

Wiz (&)

a. )

—BE-—F
Past due Not past due Total
B E:3npat] Ey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHERT
6,414 90,996 97,410
- 57,657 57,657
- 20,485 20,485

T oTE
Past due Not past due Total
BHR S abt 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
5,214 176,224 181,438
- 30,432 30,432
- 17,161 17,161
- 4,248 4,248

b. HEKBSEARAWEENS @ A5ECHKA
B W B 765 ¥R 5 2R R S 95k L ARt B A s B TR
HEEBENEREE - RATEAREESR
SEERENEBAN  RNEBRARBHKR
DHEMBEEREEZSHENBRREEES -
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e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 41. €@ T A ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies B EREEN B ZEECR (E)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

FE /R R B E L ()

Hiet : (&

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(CONTINUED)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for its customers
because these customers consist of a large number of
small customers with common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade receivables and contract assets which are assessed based
on provision matrix as at 31 December 2021 within lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit impaired with gross carrying amounts of
HK$90,235,000 and HK$23,139,000 (2020: HK$69,357,000
and HK$43,536,000) respectively as at 31 December 2021 were
assessed individually.

b. (€)

EAAEEEERREEN—B5  A%EFEA
BEHANRRTHEEESHRE - DHRZSE
BREEENSZABHRARBSEENNES K&
BEERBA WGERZ A B HZERNE S -
TREBEEHEKZESERARENEERFER
BEOEH  ZEREKESEIRE-_T=—F
T A=+ RAADBANESREEEE(WEE
ERE) AR BEBEETIE  c AEEEHR
T+ A=+ BAEFEAKEELEH
SEEREREAESD /90,235,000 T &
23,139,000/ 7T (ZZE =4 : 69,357,000/ 7T
K43,536,00078 7)) E 15 A BT TIEBIFE o

Gross carrying amount FREAE
2021
—E-—F
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
THEER EWE SRR
HK$’000
FET
Current (not past due) BNER (R Hp) 19,496
1-60 days past due #HI1E60K 0.07% 483
61-180 days past due #HI61 =180k 1.42% 3,435
181-365 days past due #HI181 2365k 26.19% 728
24,142

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

41. @ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (conTINUED)

Notes: (coNTINUED)

b.

BB EIE Y B RSB ()

FEm R B E TG ()

Wiz (&)

(CONTINUED) b. (%)
Gross carrying amount (CONTINUED) FREAE (&)
2020
—E_TF
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
T EE R FEWE R
HK$'000
FHT
Current (not past due) BNER (R HR) 16,137
1-60 days past due BHIIE60K 0.11% 4,100
61-180 days past due 61 =180k 2.20% 624
181-365 days past due #HI181 365K 40.59% 502
21,363

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group provided
an impairment allowance of HK$18,000 (2020: HK$662,000)
for trade receivables, based on the provision matrix. A reversal
of impairment allowance of HK$1,014,000 and an impairment
allowance of HK$2,996,000 (2020: impairment allowance of
HK$695,000 and HK$5,200,000) were made on debtors with
significant balances and credit impaired debtors respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group write off
several trade debtor balances of HK$4,884,000 (2020: Nil) in
which these debtors are having financial difficulties to repay the

trade balances to the Group.
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HEEIREREBEEB AR FHANE L BRENRMG
&t W BREB TV EKARKS B AI SRR
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BEZ-—F+_A=+—RALFE AEEREE
AR A A B 5 R AT R R E B #518,000/8 7T (= F
ZTF 662,000 7T) - WHAE BBREHRNEUIRR
RAERRE YR Bl B ER EBHE1,014,000/8 7T
RAEHRER#2,996,0008 T (2 =T F : REREE
695,000/ 7t % 5,200,000/ 7T) ©

BEZZT-—F+-A=1+—HIFE  "EBEMHEK
E 2B HEREMH4,884,0008TT (T2 -F 4 : ) » He
ZEBEEANEENEEE 5 RSB R -



41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

41. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

B B B IR 1Y B AR ()

FE /R R B E L ()
TR RIBEOE BN E 5 RRIEL 8
R EmARBREEER 2 -

As at 1 January 2020 RZZ=ZTF—[—H
— Transfer to credit impaired —BEEEERE

— Impairment losses recognised —-BERERAEBE

— Impairment losses reversed —-BERHNESE

— Write-offs —HisH

Exchange adjustments B 5

As at 31 December 2020

N—E-_FF+-A=1+—H

— Transfer to credit impaired —BEEEEERNE
— Impairment losses recognised —ERRAEEE
— Impairment losses reversed —BERAESE
Exchange adjustments B 5

As at 31 December 2021

W-_E-—F+-A=+-H

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written

off is subject to enforcement activities.

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL

credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
EnBRES EnBHES
FEBE FEBE

(BREERE) (FERE) @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TER TER

3,506 24,881 28,387

(197) 197 -

- 7,854 7,854

(66) (1,232) (1,298)

= (10,185) (10,185)

728 1,004 1,732

3971 22,519 26,490

(543) 543 -

2,000 15,809 17,809

(2,996) (12,813) (15,809)

(420) (780) (1,200)

2,012 25,278 27,290

EEEMBTESARBREVBRAER Y EE
AT U E TRE - B ER E S M R B R
Ko MEBAETEEXEETRERR TR
AP ERE) - EHEMEHNEKE ZRKE
AR HINRBITIAS ©

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

41. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (conTINUED)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for entrusted loan receivable.

As at 1 January 2020
— Impairment losses recognised

As at 31 December 2020

— Impairment losses reversed
Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2021

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances

that has been recognised for other receivables (Note 25).

As at 1 January and 31 December
2019
— Impairment losses recognised

As at 31 December 2020

— Impairment losses resognised
— Write-offs

As at 31 December 2021

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

M=
— DR
R-E—

==
— 2R
— s
N —

==

EEE R E 1S ()
TREIE BEWREZ T ERIEL R E B R
1H 2 I0R -
Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
EmBHREREEEE
(EERE)
HK$'000
FH&T
- 7 —= E'E )E] H 34,601
—EERREEE -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for consideration receivables.

As at 1 January and 31 December 2019 RZT—NF—
+=—B=+—

— Write-offs — i s

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 HR-ZT-T4F+
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Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of
bank borrowings as discussed above and the short-term
liabilities which are required to be repaid within three
months from the end of the reporting period. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

41.

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (conTiNUED)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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TREJAEESBRBENRTAHOEMA -
FZRDBBEAEEARAINNRERERAZE
BEENAMRRSRERE - ABME - Mt
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FfEMERE - RbIETESREBENSIHAR
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Carmying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  orlessthan 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month ~ 1-3months to 1 year 1-Hyears cash flows 2021
e S
T=A
BER AAETRENE =t-A
TN E HR1fEA 123@R  3EARLE 1255 5% EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TiEn Fin Tim T TR TEx

2021 “E--F
Trade and notes payables  ETE BEFRER - 218,852 = = = 218,852 218,852
Other payables and accruals  EfEREHREHER - 35,150 - - - 35510 35510
Bank borrowings RfEE 108 15429 9320 17553 - 42302 41851
Lease liabilties gk 343 529 1,587 4231 8,849 15,19 14573
210,320 10,907 21783 8,349 311,859 310,786
Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  orlessthan 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month  1-3months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2020
RZT-ZE
T4
HERY ATRERE =1-H
TR 1A 1237 3M@AZlE 1255 % LEERE
% HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% Thn Thr T ThT ThT TERL

2020 k23
Trade and notes payables BT E HEFRERE - 199,504 - - - 199,504 199,504
Other payables and accruals ~ EMEREREFBE = 46,234 = - - 46,234 46,034
Bank borrowings BiTEE 307 37,105 = - - 37,105 36,000
Lease liabilties fEafk 341 825 2476 6,603 26800 36,704 33839
283,668 2476 6,603 26800 319,547 315577
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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41. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
certain other receivables fixed rate consideration receivables,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances (2020: certain other receivables pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and bank
borrowings).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate consideration
receivables, bank balances and bank borrowings (2020:
variable-rate bank balances).

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change
on market interest rate and will consider hedging changes
in market interest rates should the need arise. A 100
basis points (2020: 100 basis points) change represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis
The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a
result of the change of market interest rate is insignificant
and thus variable-rate bank balances are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

If interest rate had been 100 basis points (2020: 100
basis points) higher/lower for variable-rate consideration
receivables and bank borrowings, and all other variables
were held constant, the impact to the Group’s post-tax loss
for the year would be increase/decrease is as follows:

Increase in post-tax loss BRA1& BRI N

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

41. @I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Price risk

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group is exposed to
other price risk through its listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL and FVTOCI. The Group also invested in certain
unquoted equity securities for long term strategic purposes
which had been designated as FVTOCI.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. If the price of the respective investment in listed
equity securities measured at FVTOCI had been 10% higher/
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s other comprehensive income (net of tax) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 would increase/decrease
by HK$4,733,000 (2020: HK$929,000). If the prices of the
respective investment in listed equity securities measured at
FVTPL had been 10% (2020: 10%) higher/lower, assuming
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
increase/decrease by HK$347,000 (2020: HK$1,880,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial
assets and FVTPL are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Group
uses market observable data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The
chief financial officer of the Group works closely with
the qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The chief
financial officer reports the findings to the Directors of the
Company at the end of the reporting period to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the

inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Financial assets
SHEE

1. Equity instruments at FVTOC\
- Unlisted equity securiy (6%,
equity interest in a private entity
established
in PRC)

AOTEH) K2Rk

ZBATE ‘
— 9 FiRAE 5 (R R ER e
LA EE 26%/HiE)

- Unlisted equity security (14.97%
equity interestina pnvate entity
established in PRC)

e

LRAE
LIV

7 (R B
vi

r 2 1407% HiE)

- Unlisted equty security (2.1997%
equity interest in a private entity
established in PRC)
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7 (N — AR B
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2. Financial assets at FVTPL
- listed equity security
BATE R EREE
- FifRAES
- Unlisted investment

~FLTRE

Fair value

RUTASZATE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E--f& %%
t2A=t-8  +2A=1-8
HK$'000 HK$000
THT T
- 38
28,865 12,000
34,247 -
4,152 6,408
- 7376

Fair value as
at hierarch

1788

Level 3

Level 3

Level 3

Level 1
24
Level 2

£=
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Akt e
Significant Relationship of
unobservable unobservable inputs
Valuation technique(s) nputs to fair value
and key input(s) Eﬂ "J% FURZE A\
HEROREERARE BATENRE
Market approach - in this approach, PB muttiple of a Anincrease in the
price to book value (PB multiple) group of comparable adjusted net assets,
adjusted with discount for lack of companiesinthe  holding all other variables
marketability was adopted for the market in the similar ~ constant would increase
valuation of the ownership of the business the carrying amount.
investee base on PB multiple of a group
of comparable companies in the market
in the similar business. _
mek-EgnER RETS—A  DHRLAtE ffrE S
R ROA AR T EERE e [Ris 1% - 3%
[ (M)  HRREANNEE  AHARNHEE SEMEAN
Eg%gﬁﬁzm%mLﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂ HEEEEN -
JhiliiES
Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset Anincrease in the
book value of assets and liabilities of the ~ value of the investee adjusted net assets,
investee are adjusted to their fair value. holding all other variables
constant would increase
o ) the carrying amount.
n%ﬁ@ﬁgﬁ‘*ﬁ§§32§§& _ #BEnY HAEANES
EEMEAEREREAATE BELAETE F” ﬁm
%@@@@ﬂ
Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset An increase in the
book value of assets and liabilities of the ~ value of the investee adjusted net assets,
investee are adjusted to their fair value. holding all other variables
constant would increase
\ ) the carrying amount.
ﬂﬁﬁ@ééﬁ ﬁ&ﬁﬁzéé&  RRERY fufra A& S
BENRAEIE2EATH BEZAERE (RiF 1% - 3%
SEMEAN
BEEEEN
Quoted bid prices in an active markets. NA NA
- ERTTER NER NER
Market price quoted from a company N/A N/A
en aged in asset management business N N
AtSAEEE K AR o i 0l
m%%%
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

. SR T A (&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

SMTAZATENE @D
FEBEERBERAFEH B2 L BEES
AL ()

E=RATEN B HE

Equity instruments

at FVTOCI
BAFERA
Hib 2wk
AT A
HK$'000
FAET
As at 1 January 2020 RZZEZZTF—H—H 669
Purchased BE 11,330
Total losses in other comprehensive income Hiv 2 MmN 2 EEREE (315)
Exchange adjustment PE X B 698
As at 31 December 2020 RZBE_ZTF+-_A=+—H 12,382
Purchased BE 48,308
Total gains in other comprehensive income HE2mies 2 W ia s 1,932
Impairment loss recognised ERERREEE (384)
Exchange adjustment ME TR 874
As at 31 December 2021 R_ZE-_—4F+-_A=+—H 63,112

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of
HK$1,932,000 gain (2020: HK$315,000 loss) relating to
unlisted equity securities classified as equity instruments at
FVTOCI held at the end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of “assets revaluation reserve”.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. T EMB AT 2B
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 RZB-Z—FR-_ZF-_ZTF+-_A=+—HK
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: NElZWBARFROT ¢

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital AAARBRAEE/ HMER LA
Name of subsidiary HMAL/ R EETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
if: Pk AERHY R/ RER E# 3 ITEE

2021 2020 2021 2020
“®--f -Z-FF -—B--F -E-ZE

SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited British Virgin Islands USD12,233 RERR
("BvI") LRRI2233 %
ZTEMETAT=H
ABRLHES
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REETTEARAR Samoa USD2,002 RABR
“NANETZATER  EER2000%T
REDHE
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing of Handsets and
LERERRE The PRC RMB200,000,000 |07 terminals business, Electronics
-WAEET-AAA AR manufacturing services business and
f ARE200,000,00070 Property management in the PRC

EEEETHRNBRLERT
ETRERBIERRS

RYzHEER
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
LEAER The PRC USD5,000,000 and [T terminals business in the
“EECET-RRA EfER PRC
el 5,000000%7 B SR RARF R RES
Hinzi
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited! 23 September 2003 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
LEBERTEETRRAR! The PRC 1SD400,000 marketing of the Group’s products
ZEESENAZTEA O HMER and provides logistics services in the
e 400,000% 7T PRC
EPERE e HEREEAKE
ERRREmTRE
Suncom International Holdings 12 January 2004 Ordinary share USD1 - = 100% 100% ~ Investment holding
Limited BV B RERER
“TIRF-A1ZH
RERIES
SIM Technology HK Limited 21 April 2004 Ordinary share HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Provision of administrative services in
BNBEAERAR Hong Kong LaRIET Hong Kong
ZTIMERA=T-A R BRI
&

EBRMRERERAT T F4H 275
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. TEWE QT Z5F1E (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital AOAMERAER/ ARER 2L
Name of subsidiary AL/ R EETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
(il IR AERE R/ RER EE [ IEEE

2021 2 2021 200
Zg--f "E-%E Cg--f —EC%E

Shanghai Speedcomm Technology 16 November 2005 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited The PRC RMB7,500,000 RARR
DERUEEARGARAR  —ZERE+-A15E  EER
A ARET 500,007
Max Vision Limited 17 September 2003 Ordinary shares HK$2 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
AeARAH Hong Kong LER2ET RERR
“ERSENATLA
3
Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited" 8 December 2003 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
FERET (L) ARAF! The PRC 1SD200,000 marketing of the Group’s products
“FT-FECRNR gL and provides logistics services in the
'? 200,000%7 PRC
ERERE M HERERASE
EmRREEmRRS
Shanghai SIM Technology Limited* 2 August 2006 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
B (HE)ERAR The PRC RMB40,000,000 the PRC and property management
ZEERE/\AZA Al FRE TR RARR IR
H ARE40,000,0007T HEEE
Shenyang SIM Technology Limited? 25 October 2007 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
B LR BB AR The PRC 1SD10,000,000 the PRC and property management
ZEREETACTRA AR TERE TR RARRINE
e 10,000,000 7 HEER
Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited 8 November 2007 Registered capital - - 60% 60%  Properties development in PRC
(“SYRE"? The PRC USD4,300,000 EPEfENEER
RAEZ (tF) BRAR ZEREET-ANA AR
il 4.300,000%
Shenyang SIM Simcom* 24 July 2008 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing of Handsets and 10T
NERAEA The PRC RMB30,000,000 terminals businss in the PRC and
“EE\ELAZTRA  HER Electronics manufacturing services
HE AE#30,0000007T business in the PRC
EPEEETRRIBARGERR
STRERBHEREN
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. T EM B R T ZF15 @)

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital ADAMERAER/HRER 2L
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ R EETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
KEAR#E RERES R/ EhER Ef ] TTER
2021 2020 2021 2020
Zg--F CEC%E ZEC-F CECRE
Shenzhen Simcom Technology 28 August 2008 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
Limited* The PRC RMB5,000,000 and 10T terminals business in the
MIFRERRERAR! ZFE\E\AZT/\B AR PRC
GilE ABH5,000,0007 PR SR RARFRRES
Binzi
Simcom Holdings HK Limited 22 September 2008 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RAAREEERAA Hong Kong HKS1 RARR
“FF\ENA-TCH  ERRLER
&%
Shanghai iLove Limited 27 February 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
FEVSAEERNERAR  ThePRC USD3,000,000 RERER
ZERNECACTER  EfER
i 300000057
Shanghai Xinkang Electronic 5 January 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Limited The PRC RMB20,000,000 RERR
EESREFRRARAR Z2E3NE-REA AR
# ARE20,000,0007
Goldsey Limited® 31 January 2008 Ordinary shares - - - 100%  Investment holding
BtARARE Hong Kong HK$18,000,000 BERR
“EE\VE-A=+-H  E@R18,000,000%7T
&
Smartwireless Technology Limited" 13 February 2007 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
IPELRENARRAR  ThePRC RMB20,500,000 and 10T terminals business in the
TERYECATER HMER PRC
el ABRH20,500,0007T OB R R TR R AL
£
Shanghai Mobile Phone Public 21 December 2009 Registered capital - - 87.5% 87.5%  Design and development of Handsets
Testing Platform Co., Lid.* The PRC RMB20,000,000 and 10T terminals business in the
LEFRAHARRETEER —SEAETZA=T-B #ER PRC
ARt LG ABRH20,000,0007C B et MR TR R s
%
Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited® 7 March 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Properties development in the PRC
FMRABEFARAA The PRC RMB20,000,000 BN ENEER
ZE-E=RtR HMER
i AR%20,0000007
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FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. T EME R T ZF1F @)

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital AAAMERAER/ HRER LA
Name of subsidiary AL/ R EERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
if: Pk RERE RA/RER ER B ITEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
Zg--F CZC%E ZE--F CEC%F
Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited* 24 April 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
THRAREBRAR! The PRC RMB50,000,000 RERR
ZE-SERAZTEA HRER
il ARE50,0000007
Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things 7 June 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
Technology Limited" The PRC RMB10,000,000 and online-to-offline equipment in the
THEEMBENEERAR  —2-=5/AtA Al PRC
GilE7 AEH10,000,0007 ErEREIBRRZIRERTE
Shanghai Wide-Top Financial 17 July 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Finance lease service in the PRC
Leasing Co, Lid! The PRC USD17,000,000 AR AR E R
LRERHARERRAT! ZE-EtATtR AR
‘? 17,000,000%7
Alpha Apex Limited 26 October 2012 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Samoa Usp1 KRR
g2 e = 3 VN E ST
BEDHS
Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited® 28 August 2014 Registered capital - - - 98.7%  Procurement and trading of snacks in
LEERBABRARP The PRC RMB33,500,000 the PRC
ZE-MENAZTAR AR EREREZRRERES
hE ARE38,5000007
Shanghai Yunmao IOT Limited* 11 October 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
PEZEMBENBARAT  ThePRC RMB10,000,000 and online-to-offiine equipment n the
Z2-METAT-B EftER PRC
iz AR10,000,0007 ErEREIRERTRERSE
Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech 28 October 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Limited* The PRC RMB30,000,000 equipment in the PRC
BB RERAR! ZE-METAZTAR AR EPERZEDRERE
H AR¥30,0000007
Shanghai Simcom System Limited* 17 March 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Building design and construction of
AEBERAREN(LR) The PRC RMB20,000,000 smart home In the PRC
BRAF ZE-MEZRTHA AR EPERA LR R R
e ARE20,000,0007T
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

42. TEMEA T 2 F1F @

Name of subsidiary

KEARZR

Guandong Chentuo Robot
Technology Co., Limited*
BRRAEEANRERAA

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HRAL/ R
RERES

11 March 2015

The PRC
“Z-RF=A+-A
e

Shenyang Jingxingcheng Automation 24 August 2015

Technology Co., Limited?
TEREARDRARAR?

Hangzhou Yunyou Trade Co.,
Limited®

MHEREZBRA

Shenzhen Yunding Vending
Operators Co., Limited

MIMELEHEERESAR
Ry

Shanghai Bachen Intelligent
Technology Co., Limited*
HEERERRTRRAR

Shanghai Pami Intelligent
Technology Co., Limited*
PEERERNERARAR!

Ningbo Yunjing Supply Chain
Management Co., Limited®
ERERERERERARS

Fujiansheng Yunxiang Supply Chain
Management Co., Limited®
REAEMEEERERAR

The PRC
“Z-R%\AZTREA
e

3 November 2015
The PRC
“Z-1F+-fA=A
e

16 January 2015

The PRC
ZE-RE-R17A
e

14 October 2015

The PRC
“Z-RE+A+0A
T

14 March 2016

The PRC
“E-F=A1EA
T

24 June 2016

The PRC
ENEAAZTER
P

3 August 2016

The PRC
“Z-RE/\A=R
ke

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BERAR

R/ EhER

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

AR
AR10,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

i
ARE10,000,00070

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000

HhER
ARE2,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB7,000,000
AR
ARET 000,000

Registered capital
RMBA,500,000

AR
AR5,5000007T

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

AR
ARE10,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000

iR
ABRH2,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

&R
AR%10,0000007

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
ADRFERATE/EREA LA
Directly Indirectly
Ef ]

2021 2020 2021 2020
Zg--F CEC%E ZEC-F CECRE

Principal activities

IERH

- - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC

EERSRERIRE

- - 60% 60% Development of automated test

equipment in the PRC
kP EREADRIRE

- - - 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
ERESERES

- - 70% 70%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREETRES

- - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
and 10T terminals business in the
PRC

ERERSR AR TRR RS
Binsh

- - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC

ErERS AR

- - - 51% Trading of snacks in the PRC
ErAtsTRES

- - - 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
EPEitsTRES

RANMREBRERAR — T FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. TEWE QT Z5F1E (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital RAARBRARE/ HRER LA
Name of subsidiary AL/ R EETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
if: PNk AERLS R/ RER B B IEEE

AW w200
Zg--f "E-%E Cg--f —EC%E

Kongtop Industrial (Shenzhen) 25 December 2003 Registered capital - - - 100%  Manufacturing of Handsets and 10T
Co., Limited” The PRC USD3,000,000 terminals business and Electronics
FhEE (R BRA “RT=F+ZRCTRA EMER manufacturing Services business in
ke 3000000£7 the PRC

EREUSEETRENBRLGRH
RETRERBEERRS

L Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE") registered in the PRC. 1 HEREEMZ 2 EREE -

2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC. 2 EREGEM 2z RINEBRE -

3 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC. 3 EFREARNEREIMZ 2 EIREDE o

4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC. 4 ERRIEEZE2REDE

5 The Company was de-registered at 25 June 2021. 5 ZARN T —F A +HBECHEM -

® The Group does not hold any interest in the Company upon the 6 AEER-_ZT_—FWNANBHEE ST HEER
disposal of Shanghai Yunhao at 6 April 2021. BRI A 52 A Rl 2 (AR ©

7 The Company was disposal of at 22 December 2021. 7 ZARR B —F+_A-t+_HHEHE -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting S S AE ] B B A B ANEE B R Sk AN B N E{A]

at the end of the year or at any time during the year. R BB (A A Y (B 15 752

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42.
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

TEM BN R ZFFE @

A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Handsets and
|IOT terminals business, Electronics manufacturing services
business and Property Management. The principal activities
of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal place of

Principal activities of business
FEXK FTEEEMR
Handset and I0T terminals business PRC

T T2 e A Ao SR 7S H
Electronics manufacturing services business PRC

B RERGHERER H
Property management PRC
MEMEERE 215

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling

interests:
Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests
and principal and voting rights held by
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests
) FRRER
it P EMHYRIEEELY RERERRAZRELY
2021 2020
ZBz-F 3
SYRE PRC 40% 404
ESIEE hE

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

LR AL

Summarised financial information for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

ZEMBRBRBA I EHE TR B AER
MER - BETRERGHERERURYER
EER - ZEWMBRRZEBEBMIIMAT

Number of subsidiaries

MEBAREE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E_EF
7 7
1 1
4 4

TREJIAEENEFHRAEAI RS
F2EMBAR :

Profit (loss)
allocated to Accumulated non-
non-controlling interests controlling interests
AREFEREL
& (58) ZitkERER
2021 2020 2021 2020
B 3 B 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL TR ThL
909 (2,562) 9,994 1302
2,937 2441
12,931 15,463

AEEBREEAFERESZHBLARTRER
B —FER_FEF+_A=+—HIEF
EBZHEERBIBINT » TXATEz B ER
BE AR ELEBAARIFEEEE o

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

42. TEME AT 2 #F1F @)

SYRE
EMEX
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Non-current assets EMBEE 15,770 16,304
Current assets MEEE 13,324 22,921
Non-current liabilities EmBAaE (44) (43)
Current liabilities mEBE & (3,599) (6,627)
Total equity e 1BRE 25,450 32,555
Revenue WA 1,773 510
Expenses M 231 (7,278)
Income tax refund REFTISH 269 364
Profit (loss) for the year AN s A (E518) 2,273 (6,404)
Other comprehensive income (expense ) AEEEME2ERRE (FAX)

for the year 466 (2,119)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AREEE2EWE () E%58

for the year 2,739 (8,523)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to YIS EEMAFEE A (&E)

— the owner of SYRE —ERABEEZHEBA 1,364 (3,842)

— non-controlling interests of SYRE —RAEFEZ TR ER 209 (2,562)
Profit (loss) for the year KEZmA (EE) 2,273 (6,404)
Other comprehensive income (expense) TS BEEMAFEZEM

for the year attributable to 2Ekz (X

— the owner of SYRE —RABEZHEEA 280 (1,271)

— non-controlling interests of SYRE —RiBFE 2 IEERER 186 (848)
Other comprehensive income (expense)

for the year AEEEMEEmYE (FAX) 466 (2,119)
Total comprehensive income (expense) TYEERLAFEEEHE

for the year attributable to s () 58

— the owner of SYRE —BREBEEZHEEA 1,644 (5,113)

— non-controlling interests of SYRE — R B IR ER 1,095 (3,410)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AEE2ENE (FAX) 258

for the year 2,739 (8,523)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating LETEEBIR S CRH) mA

activities R (8,650) 9,829
Net cash (outflow) inflow R R RAFE (8,650) 9,829

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021




43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

e P RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-ZT-_—Ft-A=t—BHLLFE

43. N QBB BRI R R w#E

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables
Financial assets at FVTPL
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets (liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
R—EMB AR ZKE
FE W B /B8 A R OR

RBEE

Hfth FE YRR
BAFEFABRSCEREE
RITHEER

wRBAE
FEAH B X RIFRIR
Ho At B R SRS BT R0

RBEE(BE)FHE
REERRBRE
BEAXR#E

(e

G

R

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
179,803 179,803
1,162,859 1,223,360
1,342,662 1,403,163
9,223 4,876
4,152 6,408
796 365
14,171 11,649
11,700 11,700
1,657 2,580
13,357 14,280
814 (2,631)
1,343,476 1,400,532
227,977 236,255
1,115,499 1,164,277
1,343,476 1,400,532

RABBZEERGRAE — T —FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_ZT-_—4F+-A=1+—HIEFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

AN B HEAR N R B Ak A ()

Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 January 2020

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Exercise of share options

Share options lapsed

Purchase of shares and the
share award scheme

Repurchase of ordinary shares

At 31 December 2020

Loss and total comprehensive
expense income for the year
Exercise of share options
Share options lapsed
Purchase of shares under the
share award scheme
Repurchase of ordinary shares

At 31 December 2021

RZZ-25-A-R
AEEEHREE
Wt
ke
RIERM
e R
BERR
RoEak
RZT-ZE
%:ﬂi%
FEEEERRE
e
fifikiE
BB
RIER (DB
EERD
FOEEk
RIT-F
+-A=+-H

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

AARREEE
Share

Capital based Employee (Accumulated

Share  redemption payment share trust Special  loss)/retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Py EERH (BithR)/
RiVEE ErRERERE DG R RHlRE REER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TER TR TR TER
806,123 15,165 19,041 - 193,848 142,875 1,177,052
- - - - - 1,442 1442
1 = (1) = = = =
= = (436) = = 486 -
- - - (3,187) = = (3,187)
(11,030 6,318 - - (6,318) (11,030
795,094 21983 18,554 (3,187) 193848 137,985 1164277
- - - - - (8,776) (8,776)
917 - (387) - - - 530
- - (107) - - 107 -
- - - (13,436) - - (13,436)
(27,09) 8,492 - - - (8,492) (27,096)
768,915 30,475 18,060 (16,623) 193,848 120824 1,115,499




Principal Properties

As at 31 December 2021
RZB-—F+=-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Group’s effective

interest in the Approximate gross Category of

Location properties floor area Usage lease
REBRYE S
ih 2 Z BB ERE BRBEEEE 23 AR
(sq. m)
(E7K)

Block A, SIM Technology Building, 100% 9,761 Commercial Medium-term
No. 633 Jinzhong Road, [HES lease
Changning District, FREBFRAY
Shanghai, the PRC
B G RER S ERKG633 9E
EEHEREAZ
Block B, SIM Technology Building, 100% 11,262 Commercial Medium-term
No. 633 Jinzhong Road, [EE S lease
Changning District, AR EATE AT
Shanghai, the PRC
B G RER S ERK633 9t
EARE K EBE
An industrial complex located at 100% 22,209 Industrial Medium-term
No. 888 Shengli Road, T lease
Qingpu District, FREAFRAY
Shanghai,
the PRC
F B g5 R B 7588855
) —E TR
An industrial complex, located at 100% 42,411 Industrial Medium-term
No. 37 Shenbei Road, T lease
Shenbei New District, AR EAFE AT
Shenyang,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC
PEIEZE R &SI
LAEEE37 FRA— (A TR R
Shop 32, Block 1, 60% 2,279 Commercial Medium-term
The Riverside Country, [E S lease
location at No. 32 FRERFR 4D

Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District, Shenyang,
Liaoning Province, the PRC
FEIEEREG TR

PLAEBE325R S MK B 112 325 P A

ERNBEEERAT T G458 285
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Financial Summary

MBRE

RESULTS
Revenue

Prafit (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Prafit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2021

ES
WA

FRBEATE N (B 1)

B

AEREM (B1R)

AT AL :
RREEBA
SRR

BEHER
REE
BAaR

NG 2PN 5

JER R

For the year ended 31 December

HBE+t-A=t+-BLFE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“T+tF “T-N\F “T-NF —Z-% —EC--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTHT THT FTHT TEL
3,258,517 2,312,230 1,281,505 1,073,218 755,994
138,796 299,646 (91,497) (56,652) (252,310)
(36,190) (84,607) 16,636 9,459 6,788
102,606 215,039 (74,861) (47,193) (245,522)
111,651 238,012 (76,938) (38,323) (245,800)
(9,045) (22,973) 2,077 (8,870) 278
102,606 215,039 (74,861) (47,193) (245,522)
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“E—tF “T-)N\F “T-NF - 2 —Z--%§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT FTHT TEL
3,630,405 2,972,011 2,866,930 2,801,636 2,583,180
(1,407,114) (749,572) (756,259) (653,771) (688,997)
2,223,291 2,222 439 2,110,671 2,147 865 1,894,183
2,121,810 2,159,034 2,092,341 2,132,402 1,881,252
101,481 63,405 18,330 15,463 12,931
2,223,291 2,222 439 2,110,671 2,147 865 1,894,183




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms YEUNG Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr WONG Cho Tung (President)

Mr LIU Jun (Chief technical officer)

Mr ZHU Wenhui (appointed as
executive Director with effect
from 3 February 2021)

Mr GAO Jun (Chief executive
officer) (appointed as executive
Director with effect from
24 December 2021)

Non-executive Director

Mr WONG Hei, Simon
(appointed as non-executive
Director with effect from
24 December 2021)

Independent non-executive
Directors

Mr LIU Hing Hung

Mr WANG Tianmiao (resigned
as independent non-executive
Director with effect from
3 February 2021)

Mr WU Zhe

Mr LI Minbo (appointed as
independent non-executive
Director with effect from
3 February 2021)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr WANG Tianmiao (resigned as
a member of Audit Committee
with effect from
3 February 2021)
Mr WU Zhe
Mr LI Minbo (appointed as
a member of Audit Committee
with effect from
3 February 2021)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr WANG Tianmiao (resigned
as a member of Remuneration
Committee with effect from
3 February 2021)

Mr WU Zhe

Mr LI Minbo (appointed as
a member of Remuneration
Committee with effect from
3 February 2021)

Mr WONG Cho Tung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr WU Zhe
Mr WONG Cho Tung

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms CHAN Chi Yin

AUDITORS

Certified Public Accountants

Registered public interest
entity auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO
HONG KONG LAWS

LCH Lawyers LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

BERMUDA REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HONG KONG REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 1206, 12th Floor,
Billion Trade Centre
31 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong

Hong Kong

SHANGHAI HEAD OFFICE

Building A, SIM Technology Building
No. 633 Jinzhong Road

Changning District

Shanghai

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

Corporate Information

HITES
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FHEREE (425)

RERE (BERIE)

RIBRE (R=F=—F
ZA=HZERHTT
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DR STE (BEHTE)
R=—F——F1=H
ZTHAZERYPITESE)

FHITES

FBAEE R=ZF=—F
+=A=+mH
EERHAITEE)

BYFYTES

FTHELEE R=F=-—F
Z A =HFEETIEHT
EF)

REEE

FHOREE (R=F=—F
A =HZEREIEHTT
)

EREEE
BEMEE (F/E)

THEEE R=ZF=—F
—H=HFTEFEEZA S
%5

RELE

FROREE (R=ZF=—F
—A=HZTAERESE
Z5)

FHESS

BEHEE (FE)
THELE R=F=—F
ZACABTHEHES S
Z58)

REEE
FHORSEE (K=

FHEREE

NAEER

REEES

BEMEE (/)
REEE
FHREE

DRAME
PR 2e £
BT

$?Lﬁ TN
AR B BB EED

REeRIE Ry BFTENTT

BREEZAERE

BEREMITHERERAEAR
FEAERBAT

EARITERAT
EEHRERIRT

BREZMREE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BREMNEE

)

B

TEE 315
PR
12181206 %

=30

Ligm
S HERR6335%
EARRAZAR

IR 1318 F B R AR

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda
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Corporate Information

NAEEHR

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.sim.com
STOCK CODE

2000
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